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VISION, MISSION & CORE VALUES

VISION STATEMENT

To be a leading Company in meeting the growing energy
requirements for the country by increasing domestic production
through conventional and non-conventional sources and marketing
of cheaper energy alternatives while ensuring optimal value for all
stakeholders.

MISSION STATEMENT

To maximize energy production with a sustainable growing return
to the shareholders and recognizing our people as the most
valuable resource.

CORE VALUES

Professional Competence
Creative and Proactive
Ethical Behavior and Integrity
Authority with Responsibility
Accountability
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Nasir Mahmood Khosa
(Chairman
Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Momin Agha
(Non-Executive Director)

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem
(Non-Executive Director)

Ms. Huma Pasha
(Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Rana Tarig Mehmood
(Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Ahmed Ali Quddusi
(Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Saqgib A. Saki
(Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Masood Nabi
(Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Muhammad Arif
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Sohail Abbas Rajani

AUDITORS

A.F. Ferguson & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Rehman & Associates
Attorneys at law & Corporate Counsel

TAX ADVISORS

M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

BANKERS

National Bank of Pakistan
United Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Bank Al- Falah Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

7 Floor, Petroleum House

Ataturk Avenue

G - 5/2, Islamabad

REGISTRATION NUMBER

| - 02570

CONTACT DETAILS

PABX: +92 (51) 9211236-7, 9213976,
9211239-240

Fax: +92 (51) 9213972
Web Site: www.ghpl.com.pk
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COMMITTEES OF THE

B

OARD

The Board has constituted four Committees to
discharge its responsibilities in effective manner:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Board Audit Committee

Board Finance, Procurement and Risk
Management Committee

Board Business Development & Strategy
Committee

Board Human Resource and Nomination
Committee

Board Audit Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2023
Mr. Haseeb Shakoor .
Chairman
Paracha
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member
Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem Member
Dr. Sajjad Ahmad Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Board Audit

Co

mmittee include the following:

Review of annual and interim financial
statements of the company, prior to their
approval by the Board;

Review any financial, operational, or legal
matters which could significantly impact the
financial statements;

Facilitating the external audit and discussion
with external auditors on major observations
arising from interim and final audits and any
matter that the auditors may wish to highlight;

Ensuring coordination between the internal
and external auditors of the company;

Review of management letter issued by
external auditors and management’s response
thereto;

Suggesting the appointment of external
auditors and any questions of resignation or
removal of the external auditors, audit fees,

and the provision by the external auditors of
any service to the Company in addition to the
audit of the Company’s financial statements.

Considering the objective and scope of any
non-financial audit or consultancy work to be
undertaken by the external auditors and
reviewing the remuneration of this work;

Review the scope and extent of the internal
audit, audit plan, reporting framework, and
procedures and ensure that the internal audit
function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the company;

Consideration of major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response
thereto;

Recommending the hiring or removal of the
chief internal auditor;

Determination of compliance with relevant
statutory requirements;

Monitoring compliance with the best practices
of corporate governance and identification of
significant violations thereof;

Review Code of Conduct and related policies
applicable to employees, officers, and director
and other agents and associates of the
Company as and when required;

Determination of appropriate measures to
safeguard the company’s assets;

Ascertaining that the internal control system
including financial and operational controls,
accounting system and reporting structure are
adequate and effective;

Review of the company’s statement on internal
control system prior to endorsement by the
Board of Directors;

Overseeing  whistle-blowing
protection mechanism; and

policy and

Consideration of any other issue or matter as
may be assigned by the Board.
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Board Finance,
Procurement and Risk
Management Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2023

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Chairperson
Ms. Ayla Majid Member
Mr. Mohammad Hassan

Member
Igbal
Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem Member
Mr. Haseeb Shakoor

Member
Paracha
Mr. Masood Nabi Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Board Finance,
Procurement and Risk Management Committee
include the following:

Finance

Review and recommendation of operational
plans, long-term projections and financing
plans for the Company’s projects/operations
for approval by the Board of Directors;

Evaluation and recommendation of the Annual
Operating and Capital Budget;

Review of policies relating to financial matters
prepared by management for Board approval;
and

Review corporate objectives, strategies
developed by the Management and the
Company’s overall performance against the
Annual Strategy;

Procurement

Review and recommend the Annual
Procurement Plan of the Company and the
required budget;

Review the Company’s policies and
procedures for the procurement of goods,
services, and works and recommend changes
for improvement thereof;

Ensure compliance by management with
applicable laws, including the PPRA Rules
while  procuring goods, services, and
consultancy;

Review special cases of procurement referred
by the Management for seeking
directives/guidance/instructions of the
Committee; and

Review any changes to financial authorities
relating to procurement.

Risk Management

Environmental,

Identification and management of strategic
business risks of the Company;

Review the risk identification and management
process developed by management to confirm
it is consistent with the Company’s strategy
and business plan;

Review management's assessment of risk
periodically and provide an update to the
Board in this regard;

Monitor steps management has implemented
to manage and mitigate identifiable risks, and
assess the effectiveness of the Company’s
Risk Management processes and recommend
improvements;

Review the controls, risk mitigation measures,
and extent of disclosure with the objective of
obtaining reasonable assurance that all risks
are being effectively managed and controlled;

Review with the Company’s counsel, legal
matters which could have a material impact on
the Company and related public disclosure,
including through the financial statements; and

Providing regular updates to the Board of
Directors on key risk management issues and
its proposed mitigating factors.

Social, and Governance

(ESG)

Recommend to the Board the Company’s
overall strategy with respect to ESG Matters;

Identify the Company’s ESG risks and

opportunities;

Oversee the development of related policies,
practices, and performance with respect to
ESG matters across the company; and

Report to the Board on ESG matters that may
affect the business, operations, performance,
or public image of the Company or are
otherwise pertinent to the Company and its
stakeholders and, if appropriate, detail actions
taken in relation to the same.
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Board Business Board Human Resources

Development & Strategy and Nomination
Committee Committee
Composition as at June 30, 2023 Composition as at June 30, 2023
Ms. Ayla Majid Chairperson Dr. Sajjad Ahmad Chairman
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member Ms. Ayla Majid Member
Mr. Shahbaz Tahir M Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member
ember
Nadeefn Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem Member
Dr. Sajjad Ahmad Member Mr. Masood Nabi Member
Mr. Masood Nabi Member
Terms of Reference
Terms of Reference The Terms of Reference of the Board Human
Resources and Nomination Committee include

The Terms of Reference of the Board Business
Development & Strategy Committee include the

following: = Recommend the  human  resource
management policies to the Board

the following:

= Review the corporate medium to long-term . o .
business development strategy of the = Review organization structure periodically and
company prepared by the management and recommend changes in the organization,
recommend it to the Board. functions, and reporting relationships of

_ o . ) management positions;

= Review proposals/feasibility studies for special i )
projects to assess possibilities for prospective * Establish plans and procedures that provide an
business expansion and investment. effective basis for management control and

_ _ monitoring over company manpower;
= Review the proposed annual Business Plan to

ensure alignment with the overall strategy of * Review and recommend to the Board,

the company and endorse the same for succession plans and talent management for
approval of the Board. critical Senior positions;

= Review and advise on business opportunities = Determine appropriate ‘Limits of Authority’ and

in upstream sectors such as Farm-in in approval procedures for personnel matters

requiring decisions at different levels of

Exploration Joint Ventures
management.

= Review growth possibilities through new

projects and diversification. = Recommend to the Board for consideration

and approval a policy framework for

* The Committee shall consider any other issue determining the remuneration of directors and
or matter as may be assigned by the Board senior management;

= Ensure that compensation policies and
procedures are aptly designed to attract and
retain the caliber of personnel needed to
manage the business effectively;

= Recommend annual increments and bonus to
employees;

= Review and recommend to the Board the
development and training needs of employees
and Board members in line with the strategy of
the company;
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Undertaking, annually, a formal process of
evaluation of performance of the Board as a
whole, its members and its committees; either
directly or by engaging an external
independent consultant;

Develop professional and ethical standards
and values to be incorporated in the Code of
Ethics / Code of Conduct and provide support
to the Board on various aspects of employee
relations;

Employee workplace policies concerning
safety and wellbeing, engagement, work-life
balance, diversity and inclusion and other
standards detailed within the Company’s Code
of Conduct;

Formulation and oversee the implementation
of gender diversity policy for recruitment,
promotion along with gender pay gap analysis
within the organization;

Identify, evaluate and recommend candidates
for vacant positions including casual vacancies
on the Board including candidates
recommended by the Government for
consideration of shareholders or in case of
casual vacancy to the board of directors after
examining their skills and characters that are
needed in such candidates; and

Monitoring whether satisfactory orientation at
the time of induction is provided for new
directors with respect to their Board and Board
Committee responsibilities
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD & COMMITTEE

MEETINGS

Name of Director

Meetings

Board of Directors

Attendance

Meetings

Board Finance,

Board Audit Committee Procurement & Risk

Manage ment Committee

Attendance Meetings Attendance

Ali Raza Bhutta * 5 5 - - -
Ayla Majid 15 15 - 6 6
Haseeb Shakoor Paracha 15 15 7 6 6
Hassan Mehmood Yousafzai ** 3 3
Muhammad Anwer Shiekh *** 4 3 3
Saira Najeeb Ahmed *** 11 11 3 3
Sajjad Ahmed 15 15 - -
Syed Imtiaz Hussain Shah **** 4 4 - - -
Muhammad Mahmood * 10 10 - - -
Nisar Ahmad **** 3 3 - - -
Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem ***** 3 3 - 1 1
Muhammad Anwar Ul Haq Azad ***** 1 1 1 - -
Mohammad Hassan Igbal ** 7 7

Abrar Ahmad Mirza ***** 4 3 2

Board Business
Development & Strategy

Board HR & Nomination

Board Special Purpose  Fee paid to the

Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Directors
Meetings  Attendance  Meetings  Attendance  Meetings  Attendance (Rupees)
Ali Raza Bhutta * 1 1 - - - - 800,000
Ayla Majid 9 9 11 11 9 9 7,350,000
Haseeb Shakoor Paracha - - - - - - 4,000,000
Hassan Mehmood Yousafzai ** - - - - - - 1,550,000
Muhammad Anwer Shiekh *** 7 6 5 5 - - 3,650,000
Saira Najeeb Ahmed *** 6 6 7 7 2 2 5,000,000
Sajjad Ahmed 9 9 11 11 11 11 7,700,000
Syed Imtiaz Hussain Shah **** - - 3 3 - - 900,000
Muhammad Mahmood * - - - - - - 1,500,000
Nisar Ahmad **** - - 2 2 - - 750,000
Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem ***** - - 1 1 - - 750,000
Muhammad Anwar Ul Haq Azad ***** 1 1 - - - - 450,000
Mohammad Hassan Igbal ** - - - - - - 1,500,000
Abrar Ahmad Mirza ***** 1 1 5 4 - - 1,800,000

* Mr. Ali Raza Bhutta was replaced by Muhammad Mahmood w.e.f October 28, 2022

** Mr. Hassan Mehmood Yousafzai was replaced by Mohammad Hassan Igbal w.e.f February 24, 2023

*** Mr. Muhammad Anwer Sheikh was replaced by Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed w.e.f April 14, 2023

**** Syed Imtiaz Hussain Shah was replaced by Mr. Nisar Ahmad w.e.f October 28, 2022

*xx% Muhammad Anwar Ul Hag was replaced by Abrar Ahmad Mirza and Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem
succeeded him w.e.f June 22, 2023
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HIGHLIGHTS 2022-23

Operational Highlights
13 11 06 2,257 1,009

Exploration Development Discoveries Line Km 2D Sqg. Km 3D
seismic acquired seismic acquired

/ Appraisal wells wells
Operational activity in partner operated blocks

Financial Performance

Rs. 126 Rs. 924 Rs. 492 Rs. 2271 39%

Net Sales Revenue Gross Profit Profit after taxes Earnings per Share  Net Profit Margin
(billion) (billion) (billion) (basic and diluted)

Production Results
7,730 196 201

LPG
(MTD)

Gas

Oil/condensate
(MMSCFD)

(BPD)

Net GHPL'’s share of Production

Net Sales Revenue
(Products)

Chanda
3%
Sinjhoro
Gas 4%
46%
Gambat South
! 10%

Net Sales Revenue
(Main JVs)
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SIX YEARS SUMMARY

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Operational Performance

Seismic Survey - 2 D line km 2,166 619 938 640 1,045 2,257
Seismic Survey - 3 D sqg. km 440 614 510 730 600 1,009
Wells Drilled - Exploratory / Appraisal numbers 22 21 9 10 13 13
Wells Drilled - Development numbers 7 10 5 4 10 11
Oil & Gas Discoveries numbers 6 8 3 3 6 6
Oil / Condensate BPD 9,384 9,094 7,780 7,781 7,899 7,730
Gas MMSCFD 262 257 233 227 219 196
LPG MTD 163 197 181 189 206 201

Sales - Gross Rs. billion 69.5 86.8 81.4 75.7 111.3 139.2
Sales - Net Rs. billion 61.9 77.6 71.9 67.1 99.0 126.0
Gross Profit Rs. billion 42.9 59.6 49.4 46.3 71.4 92 4
EBITDA Rs. billion 48.0 58.1 58.0 55.1 73.8 94 3
Profit before Taxation Rs. billion 421 54.4 50.4 48.4 65.2 85.8
Profit after Taxation Rs. billion 275 34 6 33.0 335 43.2 492
Share Capital & Reserves Rs. billion 103.4 136.7 165.1 193.5 232.5 291.8
Non Current Liabilities Rs. billion 17.2 17.6 17.7 16.8 14.3 84.2

Current Liabilities Rs. billion 111 15.6 16.4 12.7 89.0 42.3
Total Equity & Liabilities Rs. billion 131.7 169.8 199.2 223.0 335.8 418.3
Fixed Assets Rs. billion 48.8 48.2 49.9 48.7 47.0 49.3
Long term investment & deposit Rs. billion 2.8 3.0 3.4 53 422 61.6
LOﬂg term loan including current portion Rs. billion 8.1 84 79 6.7 56 4.4
Receivable from GoP Rs. billion - - - - 64.0 70.4
Trade Receivables Rs. billion 53.4 84.7 104.5 109.0 141.5 191.7
Cash, Bank & Term Desposits Rs. billion 15.3 222 30.0 49.2 314 35.7
Other Current Assets Rs. billion 3.2 3.3 3.6 4.1 4.2 5.0
Total Assets Rs. billion 131.7 169.8 199.2 223.0 335.8 418.3
Operating activities Rs. billion 6.1 19.8 14 4 271 26.8 79

Investing activities Rs. billion 11.1 (1.4) (2.5) (9.0) (37.4) 11.0

Financing activities Rs. billion (18.0) (4.8) (4.6) (5.1) 4.7) (4.5)
Changes in Cash & Equivalents Rs. billion (0.9) 13.6 7.3 13.1 (15.2) 14.4

Reserved against Mining project Rs. billion - - - - - (5.0)
Cash & Equivalents at year end Rs. billion 26 16.2 23.5 36.6 214 30.7
Total Contribution Rs. billion 31.8 40.3 42.4 40.4 47.8 66.8
Gross Profit Margin % 69% 7% 69% 69% 2% 73%
EBITDA Margin % 78% 75% 81% 82% 75% 75%
Pre tax Margin % 68% 70% 70% 72% 66% 68%
Net Profit Margin % 44% 45% 46% 50% 44% 39%
Return on equity % 30% 29% 22% 19% 20% 19%
Return on average capital employed %o 39% 40% 30% 25% 29% 28%
Debtor turnover Times 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.9 0.8

Debtors Collection period Days 219 293 428 519 413 439

Current ratio Times 7.0 7.3 8.9 12.9 71 6.4

Cash to Current Liabilities Times 1.4 1.4 1.8 3.9 1.3 1.0

Earnings per Share Rupees 13.6 16.8 15.8 16.0 20.5 227

Dividend per share Rupees 2.5 2.4 2.4 3.4 2.3 2.2

Dividend Payout Ratio % 18% 14% 15% 21% 12% 10%
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Net Sales (Rs. in billion) Sales Volume (BoEs in million)

126.0
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mGas Sales mLPG Sales mOil Sales

Sales per day (BoEs in 000’) Average Realized Exchange Rate & Prices
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Gross Profit & Net Profit (Rs. in billion) Margins (%)
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Trade Receivables (Rs. in Billion)

Debtors Turnover (in days)

192 519
/
141 /
104 109 293
85 219/
53 I
17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23

Current Ratio (times)

Contribution to National Exchequer
Rs. in Billion

8.9/12.9\

— 7.3
7.0 T — 6.4

17-18 1819 19-20 20-21 21-22  22-23

Total Assets, Equity and Liabilities

Rs. in Billion

o
g
&
O
E
mmmm §
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IiiERE =lim I
Non-Current  Current Assets Equity Non-Current  Current liabilities
Assets liabilities
n 1718 n 1619 1920 n 20-21 n21-22 n 2223

17-18

66.8
47.8
403 424 404
] I I I I

18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22  22-23

= The Company’s revenue grew to its highest
level of Rs. 126 billion for FY 2022-23 mainly
due to positive foreign exchange variance.

= The Company's revenue fluctuates due to

changes in international oil prices, production

level and USD/Rs. exchange rates.

Over the years, the Companys trade

receivables have increased due to the circular

debt issue.

During FY 2022-23, the trade receivables

reached unprecedented level of Rs. 192 billion,

mainly due to low recoveries from SNGPL and

SSGCL.

Despite mounting receivables and liquidity

constraints, the Company has managed to meet

all its operating, regulatory & statutory financial

obligations and is a significant contributor to the

National Exchequer.
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VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Vertical Analysis

Sales - Net 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Cost of Sales -31% -23% -31% -31% -28% -27%
Gross Profit 69% 7% 69% 69% 2% 73%

Expenditure & Other income - net -1% -1% 1% 3% 6% -5%

Profit before Taxation 68% 70% 70% 72% 66% 68%

Taxation -24% -26% -24% -22% -22% -29%
Profit after Taxation 44% 45% 46% 50% 44% 39%

Share Capital &Reserves 78% 81% 83% 87% 69% 70%
Non Current Liabilities 13% 10% 9% 8% 4% 20%
Current Liabilities 8% 9% 8% 6% 27% 10%
Total Equity & Liabilities 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Non Current Assets 41% 33% 27% 27% 28% 43%
Current Assets 59% 67% 73% 73% 72% 57%
Total Assets 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Sales - Net 100% 125% 116% 108% 160% 204%
Cost of Sales 100% 95% 119% 109% 145% 177%
Gross Profit 100% 139% 115% 108% 166% 215%
Expenditure & Other income - net 100% 622% -123% -252% 749% 785%
Profit before Taxation 100% 129% 120% 115% 155% 204%
Taxation 100% 137% 119% 103% 151% 252%
Profit after Taxation 100% 125% 120% 121% 157% 178%
Share Capital &Reserves 100% 132% 160% 187% 225% 282%
Non Current Liabilities 100% 102% 103% 97% 83% 490%
Current Liabilities 100% 140% 147% 115% 800% 380%
Total Equity & Liabilities 100% 129% 151% 169% 255% 318%
Non Current Assets 100% 104% 99% 110% 173% 333%
Current Assets 100% 146% 187% 210% 31% 307%
Total Assets 100% 129% 151% 169% 255% 318%
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION

2021-22 2022-23
Rs. Bilion % Rs. Billion %

Gross Revenue 111.3 114% 139.2 113%

Less: Operating, G&A and Exploration ©.4) -10% (11.5) 9%
Expenses

101.9 104% 127.6 104%

Add: Income from Financial Assets 4.9 5% 12.6 10%

Income from Non-Financial Assets 0.8 1% 0.8 1%

Less: Other Expenses (10.0) -10% (18.4) -15%
97.6 100% 1227 100%

Total Value Added

DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:

Employees Remuneration and Benefits 0.5 1% 0.9 1%
Government as:
Company Taxation 220 23% 36.6 30%
Sales Tax, Excise Duty etc 124  13% 13.1 11%
Royalty and other levies 114 12% 15.3 12%
Dividends 5.0 5% 5.0 4%
50.7 52% 70.0 57%
To Society 0.0 0% 0.1 0%
Retained in Business:
Depreciation 2.6 3% 2.6 2%
Amortization 3.8 4% 4.7 4%
Impairment 1.8 2% 0.1 0%
Net Earnings 382 39% 442 36%
464 47% 51.6 42%
Total Value Added 97.6 100% 122.7 100%

DISTRIBUTION OF VALUE ADDED

, ‘

Govemment
Society & Employees

Retained in business
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QUARTERLY ANALYSIS FY 2022-23

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Annual

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

SALES - NET Rs. billion 31.3 30.6 33.6 30.5
Royalty and other levies Rs. billion (3.9 (3.8) (4.2) (3.4)
Operating expenses Rs. billion (3.8) (3.9 (3.9 (6.8)
GROSS PROFIT Rs. billion 23.6 23.0 25.5 20.2
Exploration & prospecting expenditure Rs. billion (0.1) (0.2) (0.1) (0.2)
General and administrative expenses Rs. billion (0.4) (0.3) (0.3) (0.5)
Net impairment loss on financial assets Rs. billion - - - 0.3
Other income Rs. billion 0.0 0.3 0.0 -

Other expenses Rs. billion (2.6) (1.8) 2.7) (4.0)
Finance income / (cost) - net Rs. billion 15 1.7 1.2 21
Share of loss of associate Rs. billion (0.0) (0.1) (0.1) (0.5)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION Rs. billion 22.0 22.8 23.4 17.6
Taxation Rs. billion (7.2) (8.6) (7.8) (13.2)
PROFIT AFTER TAX Rs. billion 14.8 14.2 15.6 4.5

Gas MMBTUS in million 14 14 14 13
Qil BBLs in million 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.6
LPG MTs in thousands 19 18 18 18

4th
Quarter
24%
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC
SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE)
GOVERNANCE RULES, 2013
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pwc AFFEFRGUSONE& CO.

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
THE PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES {(CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in
the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by
the Board of Directors of Government Holdings (Private) Limited {the Company) for the year
ended June 30, 2023.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Qur respensibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directers’
statement on internal contrel covers all risks and contrels or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this reguirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. VWe have not carried out any procedures to determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2023,

“RFF e

Charered A¢tountants
Islamabad

Oate: December 28, 2023
UDIN: CR202310083YoZ5jcglL

A. B FERGUSON & 0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
74-East, 2nd Floor, Blue Aren, Jinnah Avenue, P.O.Box 3021, Islomuabad-44000, Pokistan
Tel: +92 (51} 2273457-60/2604934-37; FFax: +92 (51) 2377024, 2206473; < www.pwe.con/ pk
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Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Name of company; Government Holdings {Private) Limited (the Campany)
Name of the line Ministry: Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Divigion)
For the year ended: June 30, 2023

I This statement is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies {Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013 {hereinafter called "the Rules") issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good
governance, wheraby a public sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of
public sector governance,

Il. The Company has complied with the provisicns of the Rulas in the foliowing manner:

Director Dr.  Sajjad
independence as defined under the Rules. Ahmad was  initially
appaointed as an
Independent Director an
034 Jan. 2020. However,
on 29 July 2021, he was
appointed by the
Government of Pakistan
for another assignment in
its Attached Department,
the Geological Survey of

Pakistan.
2. | The Board has at least one-third of its total members 33 ¥ | Number of Independent
as independent directors. directors was lower than
At present the board {as of June 30, 2023} includes: the required strength.

Category Names Date of
appointment
Executive 1. Mr. Masood 19-Jun-2020

Directors MNahi
(MDICEQ)
Independent | 1. Ms. Ayla Majid | 03-Jan-2020
Directors {Chairperson)
2. Mr Haseeb 03-Jan-2020
Shakoor
Paracha
Non- 1. Capt {Reid.) | 28-Oct-2022
Executive Muhammad
DCirectors Mahmood
2. Mr.
Mohammad 24-Feb-2023
Hassan Igbal

3. Mr. Shahbaz 22-Jun-2023
Tahir Nadeem

4. Ms. Saira
Najeeb 14-—Apr"2023
Ahmed

5. Dr. Sajjad 03-Jan-2020
Ahmad




Name of company:
Name of the line Ministry:
For the year ended:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

June 30, 2023

Government Holdings (Private) Limited (the Company)
Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)

_s.irﬁfEF

Provigian of the Rules

Fule No. —

E YF_.

N o

: Remarks

The directors have confirmed that none of them is
serving as a director on more than five public sector
companies and listed companies simulianeously,
except their subsidiaries.

3(5)

The appointing authorities have applied the fit and
proper criteria given in the Annexure to the Rules in
making nominations of the persons for election as
board members under the provisions of the Act.

3(F)

The chairman of the board is working separately from
the chief executive of the Comparny.

a(1)

The chairman has been elected by the board of
directors except where chairman of the board has
been appointed by the government.

44

Chairman of the Board of
Directors has heen
appointed by Federal
government.

The Board has evaluated the candidates for the
position of the chief executive on the basis of the fit
and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specified
by the Commission. {Not applicable where the Chief
Executive has been nominated by the Government)

S5(2)

N/A

{a} The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct”
to ensure that professional standards and corporate
values arg in place.

(b} The Board has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
company along with the supporting policies and
procedures, including posting the same on the
company’s website {(www ghpl.com_pk}.

{¢} The Board has set in place adequate systems
and controls for the identification and redressal of
grigvances arising from unathical practices.

5(4)

The Board has established a system of sound
internal control, to ensure compliance with the
fundamenta! principles of probity and propriety;
chjectivity, integrity, and honesty: and relationship
with the stakeholders, inthe manner prescribed in
the Rules.

5(5)

10.

The Board has developed and enforced an
appropriate conflict of interest policy to lay down
circumstances o considerations when a person
may be deemed to have actual or potential conflict
of interests, and the procedures for disclosing such
intarest.

S5}

11.

The Board has developed and mplemented a policy
on anti-corruption to minimize actual or perceived
corruption in the company.

5(8)(b) (vi)

12.

The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by
establishing open and fair procedures for making
appointments and for determining terms and

conditions of service.

S{5)e (i)

AT 2




Name of company:
Name of the line Ministry:
For the year ended:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

June 30, 2023

Government Haoldings (Private) Limited (the Company}
Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)

S. ¥

Provision of the Rules

RisleNo!

0

N

Remarks

13.

The Board has ensured compliance with the law as
well as the company’s internal rules and procedures
relating to public procurement, tender regulations,
and purchasing and technical standards, when
dealing with suppliers of goods and services.

S{EK i)

v

14.

The board has developed a vision or mission
staterment and corporate strategy of the company.

5(6)

15.

The Board has developed significant policies of the
company. A complete record of particulars of
significant policies along with the dates on which they

5(7}

16.

The board has quantified the outlay of any action in
respect of any service delivered or goods sold by the
Company as a public service obligation and has
submitted its request for appropriate compensation to
the Government for consideration.

5(8)

N/A

17.

The Board has ensured compliance with policy
drectiopns  requirements  received from  the
Government.

5(11)

18.

{a) The board has met at least four times during the
year.

{b) Written notices of the board meetings, along
with agenda and working papers, were circulated
at least seven days before the meetings.

{¢) The minuies of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated,

8(1)

6(2)

6(3)

Motice of 165, 186, 188,
188, 170, 172, 173, 174,
178, 177, 178, and 179
meetings of BOD could
not be circulated within
the stipulated time due to
the urgent nature of the
agenda. However, the
same requirement has
been waived off in the
respective meetings by
800

18

The Board has monitored and assessed the
performance of senior management on
annualfhalf-yearly/gquarterly basis and held them
accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals
and key performarce indicators set for this
puUrpose.

8(2)

20.

The board has reviewed and approved the related
parly transactions placed before it after
recommendations of the audit committee, A party
wise record of transactions entered with the related
parties during the year has been maintained.

21

{(a) The board has approved the profit and loss
account for, and balance sheet as at the end of, the
first, secand and third quanter of the year as well as
the financial year end.

10

The company has nat
placed the guarerly
financial statements
within the stipulated time

WAL 3




Mame of company:
Name of the line Ministry:
For the year ended:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
{(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

June 30, 2023

Government Holdings {Private) Limited {the Company)
Ministry of Energy {Petroleum Division)

8.8

Provision of the R,,%Ies

Ruie No.

it

B3

Remarks

'
| o

(&Y In case of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared
half yearly accounts and undertaken limited scope
feview by the auditors.

{c) The Board has placed the annual financial
statements on the company’s website.

N/A

before the board as
required by Public Sector
Companies (Corporate
Governance} Rules,
2013

22,

All the board members underwent an orientation
course arranged by the company 1o apprise them of
the material developments and information as
specified in the Rules.

11

23.

{a) The board has forrmed the requisite committees,
as specified in the Ruies.

(b} The committees were provided with written
term of reference defining their duties, authority,
and composition.

() The minutes of the meetings of the committees
were circuiated to all the board members.

(d} The committees were chaired by the following
non-exgcutive directors:

No. of
Members

Name of
Chair

Cammittes

" Audit Committee 4 Mr. Hasesb

Shakoor

Human Resource and 4
Nomination Committee

Dr. Sajjad
Ahmad

Ms. Saira
Najeeb
Ahmed

Finance, Frocurement 5
and Risk Management
Comrnittee

Business 4
Development and
Strategy Committee

Ms. Avla
Majid

12

Number of Independent
directors was lower than
the requirement of the
rules.

24

The beoard has approved appointment of Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Chief
internal Auditor, by whatever name called, with
their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employmant.

13

25.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Cornpany
Secretary have requisite guslification prescribed in
the Rules.

14

26,

The company has adopted |nternational Financial
Reporting Standards notified by the Commission in
terms of sub-section {1} of section 225 of the Act.

16

27.

The directors’ report for this year has been
prepared in compliance with the requirements of
the Act and the Rules and fully describes the salient
matters required to be disclosed.

17

ShATL L 4




Name of company:
Name of the line Ministry:
For the year ended,.

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
{Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

June 30, 2023

Government Holdings (Private)} Limited (the Company)
Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)

. S. #

Erovision of the Rules

Rulgﬁo.

¥

Remarks

28,

.The directors,

CEQ and executives, or their
relatives, are nat, directly, or indirectly, concerned
or interested in any contract or arrangement
enterad by or on behalf of the company except
those disclesed o the company.

18

v

29,

(a} A formal and transparent procedure for fixing
the remuneration packages of individual directors
has been set in place and no directer is invalved in
deciding his own remuneration,

(b} The annual report of the company contains
criteria and details of remuneration of each
director.

19

30.

The financial statements of the company weare
duly endorsed by the chief executive and chief
financial officer before consideration and
appraval of the audit committee and the Board.

20

31.

The board has formed an audit committee, with
defined and written terms of reference, and having

the following members,

Name of
Member

Category

Professional
background

Mr. Haseeb
Shakoor
Paracha

Independent
director

Lawyer

Dr. Sgjjad
Ahmad

Non-
Executive
Director

Technical {Geologist)

Ms. Saira
MNajesh

MNon-
Executive
Qirectar

Joint Secretary (CF)
in the Ministry of
Finance {Finance
Division}

Mr. Shahbaz
Tahir
Nadeem

MNon-
Executive
Director

Joint Secretary
(CAJA} in the Ministry
of Energy (Petroleum
Division)

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are
rot members of the audit committes,

21(1)

21(2}

WAL,




Name of company:
Name of the line Ministry:
For the year ended:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
{Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

June 30, 2022

Governmeant Holdings {Private) Limited [the Company)
Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)

5.

F‘rovigiqn af the Rules

- Rute No.

v

N

Remarks

32.

{a} The chief financial efficer, the chief intemal
auditor, and a representative of the external auditors
attended all meetings of the audit commitiee at which
issues relating to accounts and audit were discussed.
{b) The audit commitlee met the external auditers, at
least once a year, without the presence of the chief
financial officer, the chief internal auditor, and other
executives.,

{c) The audit committee met the chief internal auditor
and other members of the internal audit function, at
least once a year, without the presence of chief
financial officer and the external auditors.

21(3}

¥

33

{a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit
function, which has an audit charter, duly approved by
the audit commitiee.

(b) The chief internal audifor has requisite
gualification and experience prescribed in the Rules,
{c) The internal audit reports have besn provided to
the external auditars for their review.

34,

The extemal auditors of the company have confirmad
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International  Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in Pakistan.

23(4)

35.

The auditors have confirmed that they have chserved
applicable guidelines issued by IFAC with regard to
provision of non-audit services.

23(5)

SO,

Nowin Medovd koo _
‘-_..i-'
Name: NF\SIR MAHMDBD I(HQ,SA- Name: Mﬁ.SQDQ NARS T
Chairman Managing Director! CEO
Dated: Datecd:
Islamabad Islamabad

UameADDok .




{Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

MName of company:
Name of the line Ministry:
For the year ended:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies

Government Holdings (Private) Limited {the Company}
Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)

June 30, 2023

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with except
for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek compliance
by the end of the next accounting year.

Sr. No.

Rule fsud-rule no.

Reasons of Non-Compliance

Further course of action

| 1

2(d), 3(2) & 12(2)

One of the Independent Directors, Dr,
Sajjad Ahmad was initially appointed as
Independent Director on 634 Jan. 2020,
However, on 29 July 2021, he was
appointed by the Government of
Pakistan for ancther assignment in its
Attached Department, the Geological
Survey of Pakistan.

The Government of Pakistan
reconstituted the Board on July
03, 2023 and the requisite
number of independent
directors on the Board as well
as on Board Committees have
been achieved in compliance
with Public Sactor Companies
{Corporate Governance) Rules,
2013,

One of the Director, Capt (Retd)
Muhammad  Mahmeod  has  not
confirmed that he is not serving as &
director on more than five public sector
companies and listed companies
simultaneously, except their
subsidiaries.

The required declaration is in
process and expected to be

provided before the signing of |

the report.

10

The Board has approved the profit and
loss account for and balance sheet as at
tha end of the first, second, and third
guarter of the vear as well as the
financial year. However, the Quarterly
Financfal Statements were not prepared
within one month of the relevant quarter
because cost  statements  from
respective operators are issued within
30 days of the relevant month as per the
Petroleurn Concession  Agreement
(PCA) approved by the Government of
Pakistan {GoP}.

There is a time limitation for the
preparation and approval of
guarterly financial statements
because cost statements are
issued by the JV pperator within
30 days of the relevant month
as per the signed Pstroleum
Concession Agreement.
However efforts will be made to
ensure preparation of Quarterly
Financial Statements within the
required time inciuding taking
up the matter with the
raspective operators.

SIFTH -

_N_f"’l_e‘w_ﬁﬁqn_ bk

Name: NAS(R MAHMOor) KHosA

Chairman

Dated:
Islamabatl

Nameg:

YipsooD NADBI

Managing Director/ CEQ

Dated:
Islamabad
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended June 30, 2023

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are
pleased to present the Directors' Report for the
year ended June 30, 2023 along with the Annual
Raport, the audited Financial Statements of the
Company, and the Auditors” Report therean,

INTRODUCTION

The Company, Government Holdings (Private}
Limited {GHPL} was incorparated in the year
2000 as a private limited company under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now governed by
Companies Act 2017).

GHPL is one of the three public sector Qil and
Gas Exploration and Froduction (E&P)
Companies operating under the governance of
the Petroleum Division of the Ministry of Energy.
Pakistan. ltis also the fifth-largest E&P company
in the country.

GHPL acts as a non-operator partner in onshore
petroleum E&P joint ventures and is the licensea
of offshaore petroleum exploration licenses m
Fakistan,

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Callectively, the Company and its subsidiaries
are referred to as "the Group”.

GHPL also holds a 25% equity interest in
Pakistan International Oil Limited {PIOL), an
E&F Company based in Abu Dhabi, UAE.
Mareaver, as part of its diversification strategy,
GHPL owns a 33.33% equity stake in Pakistan
Minerals {Private) Limited (PMPL} that holds an
indirect 25% non-operating share in the Reko
Dig Mining Project for the extraction of gold and
copper.

EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION PORTFOLIO

The Company is fully owned by the Government
of Pakistan (GOP) and all the mambars of the
Beard of Directers are nominated by the GOP.

GROUP STRUCTURE

The Company holds 100% equity stake in
Interstate Gas Systems (Private) Limited {ISGS)
and Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL).

ISGS is mandated by GoP to overses the import
of transnational gas pipelines into the country
and make improvements in Pakistan's strategic
Qil and Gas infrastructure. PLL’s principal
activity is to impert, transport, market and
distribute Liguefied Natural (Gas (LNG).

GHPL holds a diverse portfolio of exploratian
and production assets across the country with
international presence in UAE. It is partner with
several local and foreign E&P companies, which
includes OGDCL, PPL, VEP, MOL, OPPL, POL,
WMPCL, Al-Haj Enterprises, and KUFFEC.

The Company's onshore E&F investment
portfclio within the country as at year-end
comprised of;

i. 52 Exploration Licenses under wvarious
Petroleurn Concession Agreements (PCA}

i. 103 Development and Preduction [D&P)
Leases

Further, the Company through its eguity
investrnant in PIOL (25%) holds working interest
in Abu Dhabi Offshores Block = 5.

The Company is also the licensse of two (02)
offshcre biocks within the country, under
Praduction Sharing Agreements (PSA).

The Company is constantly exploring
opportunities to enhance its investments in the
Energy Sector.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Seismic Activities

A total of 2257 L. Km of 2D seismic and 1,009
5q. Km of 30 seismig lines were acquired during
the year in different non-operated blacks of the
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Company. In 2021-22, the corresponding figures
were 1,045 L. Km and 600 Sq. Km, respectively.

Drilling Activities

Following drilling activities were carried out in
different non—operated blocks of the Company.

ells Status 2022-23 2021-22
Explcration &
Appraisal E )
Development 11 10

Discoveries

A total of 6 discoveries wera made during the
year ended June 2023:

» Takhat-1 discovery was made in Mirpurkhas
Block operated by UEPL.

= Fatah-1 discovery was made in Khipro Block
operated by UEPL.

= Shahpur Ghakar Morth discovery was made
in Gambat South Block operated by PPL.

» Tolan] West-2 discovery was made in Tal
Block operated by MOL.

= Kot Mawab-1 discovery was made in Sinjhoro
Block operated by OGDCL.

= Kot Palak-1 discovery was made in Baska
Morth Bfock operated by Al-Haj.

These discoveries resulted in an addition of
~22.17 BCF of natural gas and ~3.7 MMBO of
oillcondensate to the Company's hydrocarbon
resourcesfreserves.

Production
GHPL's share of average daily production from

all fields during the year ended June 2023 is as
follows:

2022-23 2021-22

Qil (BOPD} 7,730 7,947
Gas {(MMSCFD) 196 221
LPG (MT/D} 201 204

The raduction in production is primarily
attributable to natural decline in the Company's
mature fields, in line with the overall depletion of
hydrocarbon reserves in the country. New oil

discoveries brought on production have
contributed to sustaining oil production levels,
resulting in only a marginal 2% decline.
Nevertheless, the Company's share of
production in the year 2022-23 remained
consistent with the previous year, accounting for
11%, €%, and 10% of the Country's averall Gil,
Gas and LPG production.

{* Shage of Company's produchion to the Countnds overall production
as rapavtedd in PAIS Annual Repast far FY 2023-23)

Reserves

The total net proved {1P) reserves of the
Company as of June 30, 2023, are 8.23 MMBO
(2022 10.02 MMBO} of oil'condensate and
262 .92 BCF (2022: 287 45 BCF} of gas.

Major Development and Producing Assets

Mirpur Khas & Khipro Blocks (GHPL's
working interest (W) 25%)

= (perated by UEPL.

= Total average production from these iwo
blocks was -~274.55 MMscfd (Million
Standard Cubic Feet Per Day) of Gas, ~7,213
Bpd {Barrels per day) of Condensate and
~71.14 MTD {(Metric Tons per day} of LPG.

= Various compression and  efficiency
improvement  projects wera  initiated/
completed during the year. Production of
LPG was enhanced through the segregation
af LPG-rich gas fram lean gas and selling gas
through separate delivery points after revised
Gas Sales Agreaments,

= New discoveries in the blocks as well as
production from new development wells
resulied in oil & gas  production
sustainability/enhancement.

Tal Block {GHPL's Wl 15%)

= Operated by MOL Pakistan

= Total average production was =252.55
MMscfd of Gas, -14,932 Bpd of Qil &
condensate & ~452 MT/D of LPG.

» Several well interventions, surface well
testing, and reservoir monitoring activities
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were also camied out during the year for
production continuity and enhancement.

» Projects completed in TAL Block are
Manzzalai Fiald Secondary compression and
Makeri-3 Produced Water Treatment &
Injection Facitity Project

Nashpa Block (GHPL's W 15%}

= Operated by OGDGL

= Average produclion was ~87.97 MMscid
Gas, ~10,822 Bpd Cil and ~-337.43 MTD of
LPG.

= Compression remained operational during
the year.

= Saveral well interventions, surface well
testing, and reservoir monitoring activities
were carried out during the year for
production centinuity and enhancement.

Chanda D&PL (GHPLs WI 17.5%)

= Operated by OGDCL

= Average production was -957 MMscfd,
-2,435 Bpd and ~-13.14 MT/D of LPG (Metric
Ton per Day) from 05 walls.

= A reservoir simwiation study has been
completed to evaluate further potential and
enharnce recovery.

Tando Allah Yar Block (GHPL's W| 22.5%)

= (peratad by OGDCL

* Average production was ~32.94 MMscid
Gas, ~71& Bpd QilfCondensate and ~73.74
MTD of LPG.

= Production from the field is being processed
at KPD-TAY Plant.

= Pasakhf East-1 wall production revived post-
workover,

= Several well intervention activities and
workovers are planned 1o bring shut-in wells
on produstion.

Gambat South Block (GHPL's Wl 25%)

= Operated by PPL

= Total average production was around
~135.75 MMscfd Gas, ~1,285 Bpd
condensate and ~11.32 MTD of LPG,

Regular reservoir surveillance and well
intervention activities were conducted. G&G
and reservoir studies are in progress to
identify further drilling prospects.

Shahpur Chakar North-1 flowline is in
progress to connect the well with the existing
gathering netwark.

Sinjhoro Block (GHPL's Wl 22.5%)

Operated by OGDCL

Average production from fields was - 30.8
MMscfd Gas, ~1,559 Bpd QifCondensate
and ~122.44 MT/D of LPG.

Several wall-intervantion jobs were carried
out to maintainfenhance production.
Lala-Jamali-2 and Kot Nawah-1 walls were
put on production after tie-in with Sinjhoro
pracessing facilities.

NIm Block (GHPL’s W1 22.5%)

Ogperated by OGDCL

The average production was ~13.07 MMscid
Gas, ~37 Bpd Gif Condensate and -06
MT/D of LPG.

Jarwar-1 well remained suspended due to
surface faciliies maintenance,

Production  continued from  Mangrio-1,
Chutte-t, Saand-1 and Saand-2 wells.
Saand-1/2 wells are being processed at the
KPD-TAY LPG plant. Saand-2 well caasad to
flow during the year. However, preduction
was reinstated after carrying out a worlkover
to mitigate well integrity issues.

Surface well testing of low-pressure wells in
the Block was carried out.

Guddu Block (GHFL's W1 22.5%)

Operated by OGDCL

Avearage production from the field was around
~7.4 MMscfd Gas.

Gas from the Guddu field is being supplied to
a third party (M/s Engro).

Umair SE-1 exploratory well injected info the
system during the year.

The Field Compression project has been
compieted and commissionad.
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Bitrism Block {GHPL's W1 22.5%)

= Operated by OGDCL

* Average production was around ~B.44
MMscfd Gas, ~423 Bpd Condensate and
~24.1 MTD of LPG.

= Bitrism wells are being processed at Sinjhoro
processing facilities.

* Preduction continued from Pandbi-1 and
remained suspended from Gundanwari-1
well after the water breakthrough and loaded
up.

* Sulaiman field development is currently in
progress.

Jakhro D&PL (GHPL's Wl 22 5 %)

= Operated by OGDCL

* Field ceased to flow during the year and
production cauld not revive even after several
attempts. Exploration prospects are being
evaluated

Zarghun Scuth DEPL (GHPL's W1 17.5%)

= Operated by MPCL

= Average production was ~3.58 MMscfd Gas
and -0.01 Bpd Condensate

= Due io raing and floods in August 2022,
production remained suspended for ~4
months due to damage to SNGPL sales gas
line and wells feeder lines.

= Security issues remain a threat, however,
and are being managed for smooth
operations.

Dhok Sultan Block {GHPL's W] 25%)

= QOperated by PPL

= Total average preduction was ~2.79 Miscid
(as, ~1570 Bpd Qil and ~14.28 MTD of LP{.

= The work on the rental oil handling facility &
gas transportation pipeline for gas
processing and LPG recovery at a third-party
plant was completed to bring the well on
production.

Mehar Block (GHPL's W1 25%)

Operated by UEP

Average production was ~15.9 MMscfd Cas
and ~752 Bpd Condensate from four wells,
Compression remained operational during
the year.

Mshar-6 well brought on production during
the year.

Sofiya-4 well is currentty under drilling.
Several well intervention activities including
reservoir surveillance, and reperforations
were carried out during the vear.

Sawan D&PL (GHPL's W1 22 5%)

Cperated by UEP

The average gas production was around
~22 .94 MMscfd.

Production from Sawan undergeing natural
decline.

Several well intervention activities and
application of deliquification techniques for
off-loading of wells & continuity of production
were carried out to maintainfenhance the
progucticn.

Sawan processing facilifies continued to
process Latif JV gas resulting in efficient
utilization of spare capacily available at the
processing facilities and extensian of field
lifa,

Zamzama D&PL (GHPL's W/ 25%)

Qperated by OPPL

The average production was ~5.92 MMscfd
Gas and ~38 Bpd condensate.,

The field is on naturat decline,

Several well intervention aclivities including
reservair surveillance, and water shut-off
fadditional perforations jobs especially at
Zamzama-5 were carried out.

Others

Average production from Benari D&PL
(GHPL's WI. 2.5%; Operator: PPL) was
~0.17 MMscfd Gas and -~0.08 Bpd
condansate, Wall witnassed a sharp decline.
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= Average preduction from Chabare D&PL
{GHPL’s W1 22 5%; Operator: OGDCL) was
~9.57 MMscfd GGas, ~48 Bpd condensate and
~5.28 MTD of LPG.

» Average production from the Mazarani
B&PL (GHPL's WI: 12.5%,; Cperator: PPL)
was ~221 MMscfd and ~08 Bpd
Condensate.

s Average produciion from Chachar D&PL
{GHPL's WI: 25%.; Operator: PPL) was ~1.47
Miscid Gas.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Campany has two (02) subsidiaries namely
Interstate Gas Systerns {Private) Limited {I5GS)
and Pakistan LNG Lirnited {PLL}.

Interstate Gas Systems (Private) Limited
(I5GS)

Interstate Gas System (Private) Limited {I5GS)
was incorporated on August 04, 1986 as a
private limited company.

Projects being pursued by the 1I5GS include;

- Iran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project (IP-
Project);

- Turkmenistan - Afghanistan - Pakistan - India
{TAP|) Gas Pipeline,

- Pakistan Stream Gas Pipeline (PSGP) Project
{formerly known as Morth-South Gas Pipeline};

- Strategic Underground Gas Storage {(SUGS)
Project; and

- South Narth Gas Pipeline (SNGP) Praject.
The Company holds 100% shares of ISGS.

wMoreover, under a loan arrangament between
the Company and 15G5 for funding the latter's
operational requirements, the total outstanding
amount due from ISGS is Rs. 107.9 million on
account of principal and Rs. 829 million on
account of accrued interest on June 30, 2023,

Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL)

PLL was incorporated as a public company on
December 11, 2015. in compliance with the GoP
decision, PLL merged with its associated
company, PLTL (Pakistan LNG Teminals
Limited) w.e.f January 01, 2021 with PLL being
the surviving entity.

The principal activity of PLL is to impor, re-
gasify, fransport, market, and distribute
Liguefied Matural Gas (LNG).

The Company holds 100% shares of FLL.

The Company has also provided a loan to PLL
to meet its operational requirements. As of June
30, 2023, the total outstanding amount due from
PLL is Rs. 2,596 million an account of principal
and Rs. 1,543 milion on account of accrued
interest.  Subsequent to  year-end, the
outstanding loan amount along with interest has
bean fully repaid by PLL.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

In FY 2021-22, the Government of Pakistan
{GoP), through GHPL, secured a short-term
finance facility from the National Bank of
Pakistan (NBP) to fulfil its commitrment towards
the Govarnment of Balochistan (GoB) to acquire
an equity stake for GoB in the reconstituted
Reko-Dig Project.

Dunng the year, this |loan facility was renewed,
for a tenor of seven years, including a two-year
grace period, effective from December 31, 2022,
The loan carries an interest rate of B-month
KIBOR + 0.20% and is repayable in equal semi-
annual instalments of the pringcipal amcunt
starting from June 30, 2025. The loan is secured
apainst a GoP guarantee and |etter of comfort.

As of year-end, the outstanding loan amount
including interest is Rs. 70447 million.
Accordingly, a correspanding amount has baean
recognized as recsivable from GoF at June 30,
2023.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The key financial resutts of the Company are

summarized as under:
2022-23 2021-22

Rs. in million

Sales 126,038 98 961
Gross Profit 82,362 71439
Profit before tax 85,799 65,179
Profit afier tax 49,160 43,140
EPS - basic (Rs.) 22.M 20.53

Sales Revenue

During the year, the Company’s net revenue
increased by 27% to its highest level at Rs.
126,036 million, refiecting a substantial Rs.
27,075 million increase from the previous year's
revenue of Rs. 95 961 million.

The revenue increase is mainly attributable to a
positive foreign exchange variance of Rs.
30,957 million as the realized exchange rate for
the year (Rs. 245 7 US$) was significantly higher
as compared to the previous year {Rs. 178 {
Uss).

Gas sales revenue increased by Rs. 14,787
millicn to Rs. 58,534 million, predominantly
driven by favourable price and exchange rate
vaniance, aggregating Rs. 20,143 million, which
offset a negative volume variance of Rs. 5,356
million. The net negative volume variance is
attributable to the natural decline in MKEK,
Famzama, Sawan, and Tal JVs.

Simllary, oil sales revenue increased by Rs,
10,698 million to Rs. 58,522 million, largaly due
to favourable foreign exchange variance of Rs.
14,853 million that offset negative variances in
bath price {Rs. 3,485 million} and quantity {Rs.
681 million},  Although gil sales volumes
gxperianced a marginal decline, the average
realized ail prices reduced to $83.3/bbl In FY23
from § 80.26/bbl the previous year, in alignment
with the decline in international oil prices.

Additionally, LPG sales revenue grew by Rs.
1,550 miliion to Rs. 10,980 million, primarily due
to an increase in LPG prices.

Profitabillty

In the fiscal year, the Company recorded its
highest profit after tax at Rs. 48,160 million
surpassing the previcus year's profit of Rs.
43,190 million. These results franslated into
eamings per share of Rs. 22.71 up from Rs.
20.52 in the previous year.

The Company's pre-tax margin improved from
66% in FY22 to 68% primarily due o growth in
sales revenue and finance income, effectively
offsetting increased axpenses under the heads
of cost of sales {royalty and operating expenses)
and other expense (exchange losses, provision
for windfall kewyl.

However, the Company's net profit margin
declined to 39% from 44% in the previous year,
primarily due to a disproportionate increase in
the tax expense as a result of the imposition of
a 10% super tax through the Finance Act 2023,
Despite the decline in net profit margin, the
Company's profits increased by Rs. 5,970
million, marking a 13.8% year-over-year
increase.

Liquidity Management and cash flows

An amount af Rs. 7,922 million {2022: Rs 26,813
million} was gererated from the Operating
activities of the Company which was mainly
used to undertake exploration and development
activities, capital expenditures, investments, and
payment of dividends. At the end of the year, the
Company reportad cash and cash equivalents of
Rs 30,728 million {2022: Rs 21,367 million).

The Company places a strong emphasis on
liquidity management and as part of this effon,
financial projections are prepared regularly to
ensure the availability of funds at all timas while
gengrating optimum  returns  through  the
placement of surplus liguid funds in a secure and
well-diversified investment portfolio.
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Trade Receivables

As at June 30, 2023, the Company's trade debts
have increased significantly to reach the highest
level of Rs 191,709 million compared to Rs.
141,458 milion in the previous year. This
includes overdue trade receivables of Rs.
170,710 million with over 97% of these
receivables due fram SNGPL and 83GCL.

For recovery of trade debts, frequent follow-ups
are made with gas distribution companies and
refineries alongside reporting the receivables
position to the concermed Ministry on a regular
basis.

The mounting trade debt balance places a strain
on the Company's liquidity position. However,
the recent measures taken by the Government
to address the circular debt issue, including an
increase in power and gas tariffs, are expected
to contribute positively to the resclution of the
outstanding debt issue.

Dividends

During the year, the Company paid an intenm
cash dividend of Es 5,000 million {Rs. 2.15 per
share).

Contribution to national economy

The Company is a significant confributor to the
national economy. During the vyear, GHPL
contributed Rs. 66,848 million to the National
Exchequer on account of carporate taxation,
dividend, royalty, sales tax, federal excise duty,
petraleum levy, and windfall levy.

In addition, the Companys oil and gas
praduction also contributed toward foreign
exchange savings as importt substitution.

Movement in Reserve position

During the year, profits aggregating Rs. 51,231
million, set aside in prigr years against the
general reserve, committed outlay reserve,
asset insurance reserve, and LNG project
raserve, were reverted to accumulated profits.
Additionally, 2 Mining project reserve of Rs. 20

billion has been created, in view of the future
funding requirements for the Reko-Dig project,
against which the required funds are to be
accurmulated over a span of four years. As at
year-end, an amount of Rs. 5 billion out of the
Company's short-term investments, has been
earmarked against the reserve.

Group's Financial Parformance

The Group reporied sales revenue and profit
after tax of Rs. 237,544 million {2022: 497,540
million) and Rs 10,965 million (2022: Rs. 21,258
miillfon).

Auditors’ Opinion

The Auditors bave expressed an unmodified
opinion in  their Audit Reports on  the
unconsolidated and econsolidated  financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Company is
committed to maintaining high standards of
corperate governance to ensure business
integrity and transparency.

Specific statements to comply with requirements
of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 are as follows:

= The Board has complied with the relevant
principles of corparate governance and has
identified the regulations that have not been
complied with, the period such non-
compliance continued and the reasons for
such nan-compliance.

= The financial statements, prepared by the
Management of the Company, prasent its
state of affairs fairly, the result of iis
cperations, cash flows, and changes in
equity.

= Proper bocks of accounts have been
maintained by the Company.

» Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in the preparation of
financial  statements and  accounting
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estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

Internaticnal Financial Repaorting Standards
as applicable in Pakistan have been followed
in the preparation of financial stataments.

There are no doubts upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board recognizes its responsibility to
astablish and maintain sound system of
internal control, which is regularly reviewed
and monitored.

The appointment of the Chaiman and other
members of the Board and their terms of
appgintment along with the remuneration
policy adopted are in the best interest of the
Company as well as in ling with the best
practices.

Disclosure on remuneration of Chief
Executives and Executives is given in Nota
372 of the Company's unconsclidated
Financial Statemenis for the yaar endad June
30, 2023,

Directors only receive directors’ fees for
attending meetings of the Board and Board
Cammitteas. The details of feas paid to aach
director are provided in the relevant section
of the Annual Report.

No subsidy or financial support has been
taken from the Government.

Reasons for significant deviations from last
year's operating results have been explained
in the relevant section of the Directors’
Report.

Key operating and financial data of the |ast
six years has been summarized in the
relevant section of the Annual report.

Information about outstanding taxes and
levies is given in the notes to the financial
statements.

The value of investment in employee
retirement funds as of June 30, 2023 is as
follows:

- Employees Frovident Fund  Rs. 73,685.213

- Employees Gratuity Fund Rs. 190,752,165

= The number of meetings of the Board and its
Cornmitlees hald during the year and the
attendance theraat by the respective Director
has been disclosed in the relevant section of
the Annual Repart.

= A staterment of pattern of shareholding in the
Company as at June 30, 2023 has been
disclosed in the Directars’ Report.

= In accordance with the requirement of State -
Owned  Enterprises  (Governance &
Operations} Act, 2023, the Board of Direclors
is pleased to declare that, in its opinion-

{a} there are reasonable grounds for believing
that the Company and its subsidiares, shall
be able to pay their debts, if any as they
become due and payable; and

{k) the financial statemants and the notes ta them

comply with the requirements of the Act and
International accounting standards.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company's auditors, A F. Ferguson & Ca.,
Chartered Accountants will retire upon the
conclusion of the upcoming Annual General
Meseting and being eligibie offered themselves
for re-appointment as external auditors of the
Company.

The Audit Committes considerad the matter and
recommended  the re-appointment of AF.
Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, as
external auditors for the financial year 2023-24.
The Board of Directors has endorsed the Audit
Committee's recommendation for approval at
the Company's upcoming Annual General
Meating.
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FUTURE QUTLOOK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Company remains firmly committed to
warking closely with its Joint Venture partners to
expand and expedite exploration efforts aimed
at discovering new hydrocarbon resources
within the country. These discoveries are critical
for reducing the country’s import bill 2nd meeting
its growing energy requirements. The Company
will alsc maintain its focus on the development
and production activities within its non-operated
blocks to sustain and enhance production levels.

Looking ahead, the Company will actively sesk
opportunities to strengthen its existing portfolio
by acquiring or ingreasing its stake in new or
existing petroleurn blocks, both domestically and
internationally. Furthermore, the Company will
explore diversification prospects to expand its
business and create new revenue streams,

By pursuing these initiatives, the Company is
well-positioned to capitalize on emerging
opportunities and drive sustainable growth for
the benefit of all stakehclders.

PUZ N N@YN

The results for the year could not have been
made possible without the loyalty, dedication,
hard work, and commitment of the Management
and staff. The Directors acknowledge and
deeply appreciate their contributions toward the
achievement of the Company's goals.

The Diractors would alsa like to express their
gratitude o the Ministry of Energy (Petrocleum
Division), Ministry of Finance, and other
respective stakeholders for their continuous
suppant, guidance, and cooperation.

¥ 7 0P

Chief Executive Officer

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Government Holdings (Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Government Holdings (Private) Limited
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies and cther explanatory

information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the hest of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June
30, 2023 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section cf our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Cther than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infermation included in the annual repert, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements dees not cover the other informaticn and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is tc read the other
information and, in doing sc, consider whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

AMA7L0

A. F. FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Avcountants, a member firm of the Pw( netivork
74-Enst, 2nd Floor, Blue Area, Jinnah Avenue, P.O.Box 3oz1, Ilamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 227345760/ 2604034-37, Fax: +02 (51) 2277024, 2206473: < wivw.pwe.com/pk>
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017{XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related te going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professionai skepticism throughout the audit. YWe also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or arror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and apprepriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentaticns, or the override of internal centrol.

» Obtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinfon on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting peolicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the geing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. i we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financlal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur

IRFTG L,
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future svents or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentafion.

YWe communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on cur audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
JehanZeb Amin.

g INNAL

Chartered Acgpuntants
Islamabad

Date: December 26, 2023
UDIN: AR202310083Vjsezn1wF
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS {PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

e

r—

2023 2022 2023 2022
Note ---se--r---Rupees ("000}----—--- Note ---—---—--- —Rupees ("000}------------.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ASSETS
EQUITY NON CURRENT ASSETS
Share capital 22 23,221,212 | 21,327,561 | Property, plant and squipment 6 28,531,464 27,429,821
Capfal reserves 23 25,000,006 53,945,247 | Intangible assets Vil 1,663 ¥.872
Revenue reserves 23 15,471,304 2 668,599 | Exploration and evaluation assets 8 4,438,429 5,775,068
Unappropriated profit 227,603,263 | 152,222 554 | Development and production assets g 16,367,623 13,759,238
Advance against issue of shares 22.3 525,069 2,328,885 | Investment in subsidiaries 10 5,849,581 5,761,158
TOTAL EQLITY 291,820,848 232464 856 Long termn investment in associates 11 55,759,241 2,165 4989
Deposit with the Government of Pakistan
for equity stake in Reka Dig project 19 - 34,301,231
NON CURRENT LIABILITIEES Receivable from Government of Pakistan (3oF} 12 64,899,131 -
Lang term liabifities 24 4,507,802 3,436 946 | Long term loan to subsidiaries and staff 13 2,706,356 3,724 238
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan {NBP) - secured 25 64,899,131 o
Deferred tax liability 26 315,880 | 2578 858 178,554,488 92 924 662
Frovision for decommissioning cost 27 14,408,445 5,240 918
Deferred employee benefits 28 45,537 64,787 | CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools - share in Joint
84,176,795 14,322,557 operations' inventony 14 4,800,359 4132757
CURRENT LIABILITIES Current portion of long term laan to
Trade and other payabilas 28 26,207,297 18,788,392 | subsidiaries and staff 13 1,721,218 1,910,578
Current portion of lang term fiabiliies 24 1,667,523 1,588,557 | Trade debts - net 16 191,708,859 141,458 170
Contract iabiliies a2 1,708 87,353 | Loans, advances and other receivables 17 177,595 12,641
Current portign of [can from Nalional Bank Short term prepayments 18 20,090 11,287
of Pakigtan {NBP) - secured 25 5,548,325 63,966,865 | Receivable from Government of Pakistar (GoP) 12 5,548,325 53,966,965
Prowizion for taxation 30 5,836,207 4571874 | Accrued interest receivable 15 137,567 160,026
42,261,060 88,994 241  Short term investments 20 25,258,016 24,053,955
Cash and bank balances 21 7,332,186 7. 180,603
239,704,215 242,886,992
TOTAL LIABILITIES 126,427 B55 103,315,798
TOTAL EGUITY AND LIABILITIES 418,258,703 335811654 TOTAL ASSETS 418,258,703 335 811,654
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 3
The annexed notes from 1 ta 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
U )
Chief Executive Officer Director
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Royalty and other levies
Cperating expenses
GROSS PROFIT

Exploration and prospecting expenditure

(GGeneral and administrative expenses

Net impairment reversal / (loss) on financial assets
Other income

Other expenses

OPERATING PROGFIT

Finance income
Finance cost

Finance income — net

Share of loss of associates accounted for
under equity method

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Earnings per share- basic and difuted (Rupees)

32

33
34

36
37
16.3
S
38

35
35

11

40

41

2023

126,035,663

(15,262,778}

98,860,646

{11,358,391)

(18,410,825}  (16,161,786)
92,362,060 71.439 469
(447,903} (685,935)
(1,494,115) (763,140)
343,004 (539,704)
328,592 149,195
{11,156,460) (7,070,135)
79,935,178 62,529,750
13,157,664 5,568,907
(6,610,271) (405,630}
6,547,393 5,163,277
(683,150} (2,513,552)
85,799,421 65,179,475

(36,638,987)

{21,989,152)

49,160,434

43,180,323

22.7

20.53

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

VAFAY-

M.

Chief Executive Officer

ol |

Director
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS {PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income / (loss):

ftems that will not be subseguently reclassified o
staterment of profit or icss:

Remeasurement loss on employees’ retirement benefits
Taxation

ftems that may be subsequently reclassified to
statement of profit or loss:

Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate
Share of effect of translation of investment in a foreign

associated company of the associate
Taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Note

29.3

11

11

2023

2022

49,160,434 43,190,323
{28,835) (39,971)
18,237 17,587
{10,598) (22,384)
1,460,902 474,041
14,020,097 ]
(393,668) (90,088)
15,087,331 383,973
16,076,733 361,588
64,237,167 43,551,912

The annexed nofes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lo b

RO

M _rn Ot

Chief Executive Officer

Director
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GOVERMMENT HQLDINGS [PRVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2023

Share capital Revenue Reserva Ciapital Resanve
Falr value Foreign x
Issued, Advance Committed _ Assak Assets Mining N
Subscribed  against issue R adjusimernt c”mm.r'y outiay S BreIet inguranse AcGuisitian project Total Unappropriated Tatal
= resanve on lean 1o translation rasarye prafits
and Fard-up of shares R Tasanta regerye resene reserve
__subsidlary reserye
Rupass ["TH0)
Balence ag al July 1, 2021 20 285,131 2336091 2,284 628 1,464,181 3 20,945 247 25, (0,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 - A3,845 247 112,590 424 193,506,700
Total comprehansive income for the yaar
Profit for 1ha year - - - . - - - - - - 43,190,323 43,130,323
Oitar comprehensive incame / (loss) for the year - - - 383,573 - - - - - [22,3B4] 361,689
Totel comprehensiva incoma For tha yaar - = - - F83,5973 - - - - = 43 167 934 43551 912
Tran&actions with owners of the Company
Contribulions
Advance received agamnst issus of shares - 435,244 - - - - - - - - 435 244
Issua of sheres 442 440 (442 440§ - & & - - - - = L .
Fair value adjusiment on loan lo subsidiary - - o 116 298 - - - - - o {116,298] -
Transfar of fair velus edjustmant an taan (o
subsidiary reserve 1o unappropniated prefits i i 3 {1.580.486) - = i 2 3 i 1,980,489 -
442 440 (5,155 - 1,484,181} E b - - - - - 1,464 191 435 244
Dietributions
Intatim dividend 2022 Ra. .34 per ahare = - - = = = - - - - [5,000,000) [3,000.000)
Tolal contributlans and distributions - net 442 440 {6,196} - {1,454,181% o - - - - (3,535309) {4,563, 756)
Halance as at June 30, 202% 21,327,561 23258956 2!2545520 - 383 85T 20,346 247 2EIIJUGEW0 3,005,004 5,000,000 - 53,946 247 157 332 554 222 434 856
Balance ae at July 1, 2022 29,327 561 2228.835 2,284,828 383,572 20,346,247 25,000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 n 51,946,247 152,222 554 232 494 BE5G
Tatal comprehensive income for the year
Proflt for the year - . - . - - - - - 49,160,434 45 164,434
!?El:fr comprehensive incoma f {loes) for the R d R 15,087,331 i _ . . iy {10,558) 15,078,713
Tetal comprehensive incems For the year = - - - 15 087,30 - - - - - - 49,145 836 64, 237 157
Transacticns with awners of the Cempany
Cantributionz
Advance recaived against issue of shares - B8, 825 - - = - - 28,825
lE%ue of charea 1,893,651 (1,883,651) - - - - - =
Transfer of reserves to unapproprated prefits - (2,284,828) - (20,946, 247) {25,000,000)  {3,000,000) - - {48 546, 247) 51,2M,873 =
Transfer of profits to Mining project reserve - - . - - - - 20,000,000 20,000,000 {20,000,000} -
1,092,651 (1,804,826}  [2,254,625) - E [20,946,247) (25,000,004)  {3,000,000] 20,000,000 (28,546,247) 31,230,873 28,825
Distribulicnz
Interim dividend 2023: Rs. 2.15 per share - - - - - - - - - {5,000, 310} {5, 000,000
Total centributions and dislributions- net 1,883,651 {1,504,828)  {2,384,626) - - {20,946,247) (25,060,000) (2,000,040 = 20,000,000  (28,546,247) ZE,230,873 {4,911,175)
Bafance as at June 30, 2023 23 221 212 525 {65 - - 15471, M = - &, 000 00D 20 000,000 25,000,000 227 600, 283 251,830 B48

= = =

The annexed nates fram 1 4o 47 farm an intagral pert of theae financial stalemarts

H—Lgd .

Chief Executive OHlcar

Director
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE} LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on Joint operations' fixed assets
Amortization of development and production assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
Impairment on development and production assets
Depreciation on owned fixed assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Share of loss of asscclate

Dry hole wells

Provision for employees benefits

Unwinding of discount on provision for
decommissioning cost

Unwinding of discount on iong term liability
Discount of long term lability

Unrealized exchange |loss

Provision for windfall levy on oil f condensate
Reversal due to change in decommissioning

cost estimates

Net impairment (reversal) / loss on financial assets
interest income

Changes in working capitai:

Increase in stores, spare and loose tools - sharg in
Joint operations' inventory

Increase in trade debts

Increase in loans, advances and other receivables
Increase in short-term prepayments

(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease) / increase in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Increase in loans to staff

Income tax paid

Employee benefits paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

WA LY.

Note

34
34
38
34.2
342
37
37
11
36
28829

35
35
35

38
27.3

16.3
35

30
28 &29.3

Page 1 of 2

2023 2022
------------ -—=Rupees ("000}-mmsaamammamrass
85,799,421 865,179,475
2,611,052 2,581,680
4,739,174 3,805,248
{328,571) {1,003)
104,076 459,808
308,352 772,213
22,291 23,620
6,655 18,212
633,150 2,5135562
7,160 388809
£9,759 73,557
923,436 384 365
137,133 9 829
{519,532) (545 289)
4,911,634 2,148,675
5,881,892 4,995 336
{391,758) (347 222)
{343,004) 538,704
{12,638,132) {5,038,216)
91,984,150 77,868,453
(667 ,603) (33,546)
(49,670,240} (32,559,435)
{164,954) {1,843}
(8,802) {882)
(273,568) 1,044 680
(65,645) 67,353
{50,850,811) {31,483.673)
41,133,379 46,384,780
{67,505) (6.804)
{33,023,2686) {19,504,130)
{120,333) (60,662)
7,922 275 25,813,184




1 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
I

Capital expenditure
Deposit with the Government of Pakistan in
connection with Reko Dig Project
' ] Proceeds from disposal of properly, plant and equipment
interest received
= Investment in subsidiary
Investment in associates
Sale of short term investments
3 Receipts against loan to subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advance received against issue of shares
Repayment of shaort term borrowing
Proceeds from long term loan
Repayments against long term liabilities
| ] Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

‘ ] NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
j OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RESERVED AGAINST
f] MINING PROJECT RESERVE

l
| S0

1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

WL,

Chief Executive Officer

wJ
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Page 2 of 2
2023 2022
----------- Rupees ("000)--—-ru-smsumnma:
(8,576,999) {7,096,162)
- {34,301,231)
328,631 1,055
12,666,188 5432412
(88,825} (436,244}
(4,494,172} {4205 500}
10,000,600 2,000,000
1,117,674 1,240 291
10,952,497 {37,365 380}
28,825 436,244
{63,966,965) =
63,966,965 -
296,715 {109,003)
{5,000,000) {5,000 000)
{4,514,460) {4 672 75%)
14,360,312 {15,224 955}
21,367,457 36,582,412
(5,000,000} -
30,727,769 21,367 457

Director

e
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1.
11

1.2

1.3

1.4

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Government Holdings (Private) Limited {the "Company") was incorparated in Pakistan as a private limited
company on January 15, 2000, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed by the Companies Act,
2017). The Company's registered office is situated at 7th Floor, Petroleum House, Ataturk Avenue, G-5/2,
Islamabad. The main objectives of the Company are to.

a} Acquire shares of the companies or interest of Government of Pakistan {GoP) in the existing and new
ol and gas concessions, either by payment or by issuance of shares, credited as fully paid, or other
securities, as the Company may think fit and to hold and enjoy all interests, rights, contracts and
privileges vested in, or connected with, the fitle of such shares; and

b} Take over, acguire, renew, unitize, and hold any exploration, prospecting, development and production
concessions of whatever nature or otherwise acguire any estate or interest, develop resources of work,
dispose off or otherwise tum to account land or sea beds in any part of the world contatnhing or thought
to contain petroleum or any other oil in any form, and to search for or participate in the exploration for
petroleumn or any other oil in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances or natural gas, or any
substance used or which may be capable of use, and to organize, equip and employ expeditions,
experts and other agents to carry out drilling and other exploratory operatiens, and to establish and
operate oil and gas wells znd other undertakings for the extraction of any of the aforesaid substances.

Pursuant to enactment of "Sovereign Wealth Fund Act, 2023" {the Act), Pakistan soversign wealth fund (the
Fund} is to be established by the Government of Pakistan (GoP). Subsequent to the creation of the Fund, the
entire shareholding of the GoP in the Company is expected to be transferred to the Fund subject to regulatory
approvals and other procedural matters.

As of the date of statement of financial position, the Company has the following equity investmants,

a) Inter State Gas Systemn {Private} Limited (ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary
b) Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) - wholly owned subsidiary (effective from January 1. 2021,
Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) was merged into PLL with PLL being the surviving entity. )
c) Fakistan International Qil Limited {PIOL) - foreign operation - 25% sharsholding
d) Pakistan Minerals {Privaie) Limited (FMPL) - 33.33% sharsholding

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in
subsidiary companies are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of
reported results. Investments in associates are accounted for using the eguity method of accounting, after
initially being recegnized at cost. Consaolidated financial statements are prepared separately,

The Company has interest in certain joint operations / concessions as non-operator. Geographical location of
concessions / blocks is as under:

Operator Concession ! Block Working Interest (%) Province

Al-Haj Baska North 4.15 Balochistan & KPK
Al-Haj Potwar South 23 Punjab

Hycarbex Yasin 5 Sindh & Balochistan
KPBY Malkchad 25 KPK

Tallahasse Karak North 2.5 KFK

MOL Tal 5 (Exp} ~ 15 (Dev)” KPK

MPCL Bolan / Zarghun South 17.5 Bzlochishian
MPCL Wali West 2.5 KPK

MPCL Sharan 25 Balochishtan
MPCL MNargli 2.5 Balochishtan
MPCL Mach 2.5 Balochishtan
MPCL Chaghar 2.5 Balochishtan
OGDCL Bitrism 5 {Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)* Sindh

OGDhCL Guddu 5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dev)* Sindh & Punjab
QGDCL Gwadar 2.5 Balochistan
QGDCL Jhakro 225 Sindh

AN
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Operator

OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
CGDCL
OGDCL
CGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDGL.
OGDCL
OGDLCL
OGDCL
OPPL
PEL
PEL
PEL
POL
POL
POL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
VEP
VEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEF
UEP
UEP
UEPR
Paige

Concesslon { Block

Khuzdar South
Khuzdar North
Khewari

Kotra

Nashpa

Nim

Crakzai
Palaniak
Pasni West
Pezu
Rakhshan
Ranipur
Chanda
Sinjhoro

Tirah

Tando Allah Yar
Gurgalot

Zin

Lilla

Jhelum
Sujawal South
{hah Bali
Khewari East
Suleiman
Zamzama
Block 22
Kandra

Mirpur Mathelo
Pariwali
Minwal

North Dhurnat
Bela West
Dhok Sultan
Gambat South
Hisal
Mazarani
Chachar
Nausherwani
Shah Bandar
Sirani

South Kharan
Musakhei
Punjab

Sui North
Kalat West
Badin 1]
Gambat / Tajjal
Khipro

Kuhan

Mehar
Mehran

Mirpur Khas
Mubarak
Sawan
Murgha Fagir Zal

* Exp- Exploratory phase
* Dev- Development phase

AT

Working Interest {%)

Province

2.5

25

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 20 (Dav)*
5 {Exp) ~ 15 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dev)*
4 66

25

2.5

2.64

2.5

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 17.5 (Dev)*
5(Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5

5 {Exp} ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp)”

5 (Exp}*

2.5

23

23

2.5

25

25

25

5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 {Dev}*
S (Exp)*

17.5

ot

2.5

2.5

25

25

2.5

12.5

25

25

25

25

25

2.5

2.5

2.5

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp} ~ 22.5 {Dewv)*
5 (Exp} ~ 25 (Dev)"
2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 {Dewv)*

5 (Exp) ~ 25 {Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
225

5 (Exp)y*

Sindh & Balochistan
Balochistan
Sindh
Balochishtan
KPK

Sindh

KPK
Balochistan
Balochistan
Punjab & KPK
Balochistan
Sindh

KFK

Sindh

KPK

Sindh
Punjab & KFK
Balochistan
Punjat
Punjab
Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
FPunjahb
Funjah
Funjab
Balochistan
Funjab & KFK
Sindh
Punjab
Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Baiochistan
Funjab
Balochistan
Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh & Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
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BASLS CF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

- International Financial Reporling Standards {IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (|ASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurament

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for cerain items as
disclosed in the relevant accounting policies balow.

Functional and presentation currency

tems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
anvirgnment in which the Company operates. The financial staternents are presented in Pakistani Rupee
{PKR / Rupsses / Rs) which is the Campany's functional currency.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
New or amendments / interpretations to existing standards, interpretations and forthcoming

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the company:

Effective date {annual
reporting pericds beginning
an or after)

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {Amendments} January 1, 2023
1AS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

(Amendments) January 1, 2023
1A5 12 Inceme Taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows {Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments January 1, 2023
IAS 12 Income taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts {Amendments} January 1, 2023
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024

The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and interpretations in future
petiods will have no material impact on the Company's financial statements other than in presentation /
disclosures.

DAL L-
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Further, the following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (|ASB), which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), far the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The following interpretations issued by the IASB have been waived of by SECP:

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements
Standards and amendments te approved accounting standards that are effective

There are certain arrangements and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
applicable on the Company from July 1, 2022, however, these do not have significant impact on the
Company's financial reporting.

The 3ecurities and Exchange Commissicn of Pakistan {SECP) through S.R.0O. 67{)/2023 dated January 20,
2023, in partial modification of its previous S.R.0. 1177 {1%/2021 dated September 13,2021, has notified that
in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in respect of
circufar debt, the reguirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of expected credit loss (ECL)
model shall not be applicable till December 31, 2024, providad that such companies shall follow relevant
requiremnents of 1AS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' in respect of above referred
financial assets during the exemption period. Earier io the S.R.Q. 985(1)/2018 dated Sepiember 02, 2019,
SECP in a press release dated August 22, 2015 communicated that IFRS 9 needs to be iooked inte from
Fakistan perspective where phenomenon like circular debt need to be given due consideration. it was noted
that concerns expressed by companies regarding practical limitations in determining ECL on debts due from
government, due to uncertain cash recovery pattems of circular debt, camry weight. Public information
regarding expected settlement of circular debt by GoP in coming years may result in subsequent reversals of
impairment losses recegnized in 2019, Financial assets due from GoP include those that are directly due from
GoP and that are ultimately due from GoP in consequence of the circular debt In accordance with the
exemption granted by SECP, ECL has not been assessed / recognized in respect of financial assets due
directly / ultimately frorn GoP which includes trade debts amounting to Rs. 166,972 million (2022 Rs. 117,764
million} on account of inter-corporate circular debis.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are belisved to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future period affected.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the management has mads the following
estimates, assumptions and judgments which are relevant to these financial statements:

07,



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.

Property, plant and equipment - notes 5.1 and &

The Company reviews appropriataness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation on property, piant and equipment. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is made for possible impairmsnt on an annual basis. In
making thesa estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change
in the estimate in the future might affect the carryving amount of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment, with corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure - notes 5.3 and 8

The Company’s accounting policy for exploratich and evaluation expenditure results in certain items of
expenditure being capitalized for an area of interest where it is considered likely to be recoverable by future
exploration ¢r sale or where the activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment
of the existence of reserves. This policy requires management to make certain estimates and assumpticns as
to future events and circumstances, in particular whether an economically viable extraction operaticn can be
established. Any such estimates and assumptions may change as new information becomes avaitable. If,
after having capitalized the expenditure under the policy, a judgment is made that recovery of the expenditure
is unlikely, the relevant capitalized amount is written off to statement of profit or Inss.

Development and production expenditure - notes 5.4 and 9

Joint cperations where Company has camied cost working interest, on announcement of commercial
discovery, the Company initially provides for the liability related to relevant carried cost of the joint operations
and then recognize correspending development and production expenditure; on the basis of bast estimates
available from the shared cost statement of the relevant joint operation. An adjustment is made based on the
finalized cost agreed with the operator.

Taxation - notes 5.14 and 30

In determining tax provision, the Campany takes into account the current tax laws and decisions taken by
appellate authorities. The current tax payable or receivable is the bast estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received that refiects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Instances where the
Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and the
Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are
disclosed as contingent liahilities unless the possibility of any cutflow is remote. Where the final tax oulcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
cutrent and deferred tax balances in the year in which such determination is made.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance - notes 5.10.1 and 16.3

The measurement of the Expected Credit Loss {“ECL"} allowance for financial assets requives the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit betavior (e.g. the
likelihood of counter parties defaulting and the resulting losses).

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accotinting judgments and astimates inciude:

- Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and choice of inputs;

- Determining the criteria if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financia! assets should be measured on a lifetime G basis and the gualitative assessment;

- The ssgmentation of financiai assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective hasis;

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs. and their
effect on Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure At Default (EADs) and Loss Given Default (LGDs); and

- Selection of forward-locking macroecenomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
econormic inputs into the ECL models.

SRATLL
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4.6

4.7

4.3

5

Provision for decommissicning cost - notes 5.12 and 2Y

Provision is recognized for the future decommissioning and restoration cost of oil and gas welis, production
facilities and pipelines at the end of their useful lives and involves estimates related to future expected cost,
discount rate and timing. Estimates of the amount of provision recognized are based on current legal and
constructive requirements. technology and price levels. Provision is based on the best estimates, however,
the aclual outflows can differ from eslimated cash outflows due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the fulure. The estimated
timing of decommissioning may change due to certain factors, such as reserve life, a decision {o terminzte
operations or change in legislation. The carrying amount of provision is reviewed annually and adjusted to
take account of such changes.

During the year, the Company revised its estimates of decommissioning cost, reserve life, discount and
inflation rales. This has been treated as change in accounting estimates, appliad prospectively, in accordance
with IFRIC Interpretation 1 “Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilitizs",

Fallowing ling iteims would have besn affected had there been no change in estimates:

Rupees
Provision for decommissioning cost would have been higher by 714,814
Property, plant and equipment would have been higher by 49 241
Development and preduction assets would have been higher by 273,815
Exploration & evaluation assets would have been higher by -
Operating expenses would have been higher by 391,758
Toial comprehensive incorne would have been lower by 391,758

Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves - notes 5.4 and 9

Qil and gas reserves are an important element in calculation of amortization charge and for impaiment testing
of development and production assets of the Company. Estimates of oil and natural gas rsserves are
inherently imprecise, raquire the application of judgement and are subject {o future revision. Reserves are
estimated by referance to available reservoir and well information, in¢luding production and pressure trends
for producing reservoirs and, in some cases, subject to definitional limits, to similar data from other producing
reservoirs. All reserve esfimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based on new
information, such as from development, driliing and production activities or from changeas in economic factors,
including product prices, contract terms or development pians.

Changes in estimates of reserves, affects the amount of amortization recarded in the financial statements far
development and production assets.

Impairment of non financial assets inciuding development and production asssts and related property,
plant and equipment - notes 5.5, 6,8 and 9

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets io determing
whether there is any indication of impairment. f any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimated.

E&E assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate that carrying amount may
exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at which a determination is
made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the Company has right to
explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expacted to be renewsd substantive
expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any other event
that may give rise to indicstion that E&E assets are impaired.



aJ 4J & 3

sl

4.9
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Impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and cireumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate
that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable quanidities of
hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the produgtion field
and the net sslling price of the hydrocarbons produced. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows largely independent of other assets or CGUs. The
CGU applied for impairment test purpose is generally based on a number of fields grouped as a single cash
generating unit where the cash flows of each field are inter-dependent.

The carrying value is compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by
reference to the future net cash flows expected to be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable ameunt. Impairment losses are
recognized in statement of profit or loss. The impaimment loss is allocated o the assets in CGU on a pro rata
basis.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credif in statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount dees not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

Employee benefits - notes 5.13, 28 and 29.3

The Cempany operates an approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The obligation at
the date of statement of financial position is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
cutflows. Calculation of gratuity obligations require assumptions to be made of future cutcomes which mainly
includes increase in remuneration, expected long-term return ¢n plan assets and the discount rate used to
convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying
assumptions. The assumptions used vary for the different plans and they are determined by independent
actuary annuaily.

The Company also has a policy whereby its regularicontractual employees are eligible to encash accumulated
laave balance at the lime of retirement / contract renewal / resignation up to a maximum of 90 days. The
benefit obligations in respect of compensated absences are sensitive to changes in the underlying
assumptions. The assumptions used vary and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

Provision against financial assets not subject to ECL modet - notes 5.10.1 and 18.3

As referred to note 3.3, the SECP has deferred applicability of ECL madel in respect of financial assets due
directly / ulimately from Government of Pakistan (GoF) till December 31, 2024 in respect of circular debt,
Accordingly, the Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts and investrments that are due directly /
ultimately from GoP in respect of circular debt fo assess whather there is any objective evidence of
impairment as per requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' at each
reporting date.

The Company has overdue receivables on account of inter-corporate circular debt. These overdus balances
are recelvable from oil refineries and gas distributicn companies. The Government of Pakistan {GoP) is
committed, hence continuously pursuing for satisfactory settiement of inter-corporate circular debt issue.
However, the progress is slowsr than expected resulting in accumulation of Company's debts. Inter-corporate
circular debt in Pakistan arises due to delayed payments in the energy sector supply chain; GoP ejther
diractly or through its direct/indirect ownership of entities within energy sector supply chain is at the core of
circular debt issue. The Central Power Purchase Agency (CPPA), a government owned entity, is sole power
purchaser for the Country and the circular debt is a shorifall of payments primarily by the CPPA, however, in
case of gas distribution and transmission companies the shortfall alsg occurs because of a delay in receipts
of subsidies frcm the GoP for supply of gas to certain domastic /7 industrial consumers.
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Settlement of the Company's receivables is slower than the contractual terms primarily because circular debt
is @ macro economic level issue in Pakistan and its level at any given time is dependent on policies andiar
priorities of the GoP, the level of subsidies offered by GoF to certain domestic and industrial consumers,
exchange rate fluctuations, global crude oil prices and cerain other systemic issues within energy sector
(tariffs, losses, non f delayed recoveries).

The Company's assessment of objective evidence of impairment with respect to over due amounts on
account of inter-corparate circular debt takes into account commitment made by the GoP, contractual rights to
receive compensation for delayed payments and plans of the GoP to address the issue of inter-corporate
circular debt,

The Company has contractual right and is entitled to charge interest if payments from customers delayed
beyond credit terms, however, the Company recognizes interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers
or investments only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income
recoghized will not occur when the uncertainty asscciated with the interest is subsequently resclved, which is
when the interest on delayed payments is received by the Company,

Stores, spares & loose tools - share in Joint operations' inventory - notes 5.9 and 14

The Company reviews the stores, spares and loose tools for possible write downs / provisions on an annua'
basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the raspective items
with a corresponding affect on the provision.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment

These are initially recognized at acquisition cost, including any costs directly attributable to bringing the
assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of aperating in the manner intended by the
Company's management. These assels are subsequently measured using the cost model, which is cost less
subseguent depreciation and impairment lasses (if any), except for freehold land and capital work in progress,
which are stated al cost less impairment loss (if any).

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the
recognition critena are met. Depreciation is charged using the straight line mathod when asseats are available
fer use over the useful life of the underlying asset. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is prabable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or
loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
on derzcognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognized in as other income in the statement
of profit or loss.

Capital work in progress is transferred to the respective item of property, plant and equipment when available
for intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on inilial recognition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment ioss.
Costs associated with routine maintenance of intangible assets are recognized as an expense when incurred.
However, costs that are directly attributable to identifiable intangible assets and which enhance or extend the
performance of intangible assets beyond the original specification and useful life is recognized as capital
improvement and added to the original cost of the software. The cost of intangible is amortized at 33% per
annum on a straight line basis.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The effect of any adjustment to the
useful life is recognized prospectively as a change in accounting estimates.

Exploration and evaluation assets (EXE Assets)

The exploration cost of all those joint operations is accounted for under the “Successful Efforts” method.
Under the successful efforts meathod of accounting, all property acquisitions, exploratory/evaluation drilling
costs are initially capitalized as intangible Exploration and Evaluation (E&E) assets in weli, field or specific
exploration cost centers as appropriate. Costs directly associated with an exploratory well are capitalized as
an intangible asset until the dritling of the welj is completed and results have been evaluated. Major costs
include employee benefits, material, chemical, fuel, well services and rig operational costs. All other
exploration costs including cost of technical studies, seismic acquisition and data processing, geological and
geophysical activities are charged in the statement of profit or loss as exploration and prospecting
expenditure. Pre license cast are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when they are incurred.

Intangible E&E assets relating to each exploration license / field are carried forward, until the existence or
otherwise of commercial reserves have been determined subject to certain limitations including review far
indications of impairment. If commercial reserves have been discovered, the carrying value after any
impairment 1oss of the relevant E&E assets is then reclassified as devaloprment and production assets and if
commercial reserves ara not found, the related costs are written off in statement of profit or loss. EAE assets
are not amortized prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities.

Development and production assets (D&P Assetis)

During exploratery phase under carried cost working interest holding, relevant working interest of the
Company in various concessions is carried by its relevant partners in the respective Joint aperations, in
accordance with the related Petroleum Concession Agreements. Consequent to the deciaration of commercial
discovery by the operator and approval by the Director General, Petroleum Concessions (DGPRC), the
ompany has right to increase its working interast up to 25% and the resuiting consideration is payable to
relevant joint operation partners in these Joint operations, according to the provisions of the related Petroleum
Concession Agreements.

The carried cost payable to joint operation partners comprise of the cost of the successful welis and
expenditure that are attributable to the commercial discovery. The cost is directly recognized as
development and production assets to the extent to which the cost relates to wells. The remaining portion of
the cost is charged off fo statement of profit or loss 23 exploration and prospecting expendifure.

Development and production assets also include the cost of developing the discoverad commercial reserves
and bringing them into production, together with the capitalized E&E expenditures incurred in finding
commercial resarves transferred from E&E asseats as cutlined in note 5.3 above and the cost of recognizing
provisions for future site restoration and decommissioning.

Expendiiure carried within each field is amortized from the commencement of production on a unit of
production basis, over the astimated useful life of the field determined by reference to proved reserves, on a
field by field basis. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field development costs are
dealt with prospectively. Amordization is charged to statement of profit or loss. Amortization expense for the
year is computed on all development and production assets at year end including additions [/ adjustments
made during the year. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future figld development costs are
dealt with prospeciively,

Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Cbmpany reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets o determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimated.
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E&E assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circgumstances indicate that carrying amount may
exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at which a determination is
made that as to whether or not commercial reservas axist, the period for which the Company has right to
explore has expired or will expire in the near fulure and is not expected to be renewed, substantive
expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any other event
that may give rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.

Impairment test of development and production assets and related properly, plant and equipment is
performed whenaver events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate
that carrying amount of the develepment ang production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable guantities of
hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
hecessary to recover the hydrocarbons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selling price of the hydrocarbons produced.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped togeiher into the smallest group of assels that generate cash
inflows largely independent of other assets or CGUs. The carrying value is compared against expected
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by reference to the future net cash fiows expected to he
derived from such assels. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss,

Where conditions giving rise ta impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount dogs not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amertization, if no impairment loss
had been recognized,

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therafore, an addition to
the carrytng value of the asset, the Company considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the
asset as a whole, and if o, test for impairment in accardance with the IAS-38 Impatrment of Assets.

Joint operations

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual right and obligations of the parlies to the arrangement, The Company has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint operations. The Company has recognized its share of
assels, liabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred under the joint operations on the basis of
latest available audited accounts of the joint operations and where applicable, the cost statements received
from operators of the joint arrangements for the intervening period up to the statement of financial position
date.

Investment in subsidiary

investment in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. At subseguent reporting date, recoverable amounts are
estimated to determine the extent of impaiment loss, if any, and carrying amount of investmeant is adjusted
accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss. Where
impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amounts of investment are increased to its revised
recoverable amount, limited to the extent of initial cost of investment. Reversal of impairment losses ara
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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The profits or losses of subsidiaries are carried forward in their financial statements and are not dealt within
these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiaries. Gains and losses on
disposal of investment are included in other income. When the dispasal on investmeant in subsidiary results in
loss of control such that it becomes an agsociate, the retained investment is carried at cost.

Investment in associated company

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in the joint venture. Significant influence is the power to paricipate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not contral or joint contref over those policies.

The results, assets and liabilities of the associate have been incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially recognized
at cost adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
associate in profit or loss and the Company's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
associate in other comprehensive income, Cividends received or receivable from the associate is recogrized
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the carryving amount may also be
necessary for changes arising from the foreign exchange translation differences. The investor's share of
those changes is recognized in the investor's other comprehensive income. Losses of an associate in excess
of Company's interest in that associate are recognized only to the extent that the Company has incurred lega!
or constructive obligation or made payment on behalf of the associate. Where objective evidence of
impairment of investment in associate is identified, then the carrying amaount of equity-accounted investment
is tested for impainment in accordance with the policy described in note 5.5.

Stores, spares & loose tools - share in Jeint operations' inventory

Stores, spares & logse tools are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value less mpairment for slow
moving items, Cost is determined on the basis of costing methods adopted by operators of respective Joint
operations. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognized at the time when the
Company losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecegnized at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are taken to the statemeant of profit or Ioss.

Financial assats

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
a) Amortized cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;

b} Fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH

The classification depends on the eniity's business mode! for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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For assels measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit or loss or
statement of other comprehensive income (OCI). For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this depends on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of inilial
recognition 1o account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQOCI}.
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecogrition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on irade-date, the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have bean transferred and the Company has transferrad
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measuras a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or less (FVTPL), transaction costs that are direcily atiributanle to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carrizd at FVTPL are expensed in
statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of dabt instruments depends on the Company's business mode| for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Company classifies its debt instruments:

(a) Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income fram these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective inlerest rate method. Anv gain or less arising on
derscognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other operating gains/{losses),
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impaiment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statament of profit or loss.

(b)  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI}

Assets that are held for coliection of contractual cash fiows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FYTOO!
Movements in the camying amount are taken through OCI except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in prefit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognized in
OCl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit or loss and recognized in other income/charges,
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other incomeicharges and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line itemn in the staterment of profit or loss.

{c) Fair value through preofit or loss (FYTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOC) are measured at FYTPL. A gain or
logs on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss and presented net within other operating gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises.
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De-recagnition of financlal assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

i) The Company has transferred its rights to recsive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through® arrangement, and either {a) the Company has transferred substantiaily all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferrad ils rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
passthrough arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's
continuing involvement in the asset.

In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the assotiated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvemnent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assasses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Lossas (ECL} associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FYTOCI. The impairment methodotogy applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL madal:

- Trade debts

- ! pans, advances, and other receivables

- Cash and bank balances

- Accrued interest receivable

- Loans to subsidiaries and staff

- Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP}
- Short term investments

General approach for loans, advances, and other receivabios, cash, and bank balances, deposits,
short term investments, , loans to subsidiaries and staff and recelvable from Government of Pakistan

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given defaulf (i.e.
The magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted
for factors that are specific to the counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate). As for the exposure at defauit for financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross
carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward leoking, based on 12 month expected
credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are
based on lifetime expected losses.
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Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by
the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating,
allowances are recognized when there is reduction in the net present value of expected cash flows, On a
significant increase in credit risk, allowances are recognized without a2 change in the expected cash flows,
although typically expected cash flows do also change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12
menth o lifetime expectations.

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Gompany recognizes life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of
ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and preobability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating 2 range of possible
autcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Trade debts are separately assessed for ECL measurement. The lifetime expecied credit losses are
estimated using the Company's historical credit loss experience based on payment profiles of sales over the
period of 80 months before June 30, 2023, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, cormresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period, general economic conditions and an assessment of
hoth the curtent as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of
maoney where appropriate. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information affecting the ability of the custorners to settle the receivables. Trade debis outstanding on account
of inter-corporate circular debt is exempt from recognition of ECL and are accounted for under 1AS 39
'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' which is further described in note 3.3.

Significant increase in cradit risk

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recegnition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongaoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess wheather
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default accurring on the
instrument as at the reperting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-iooking information.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data abaut the following events:

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

- abreach of contract, such as a default or past dus event:

- the company for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, have
granted ¢ the borrower a concession(s) that the Company would not otherwise cansidar;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial rearganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; if
applicable.
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Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal cradit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that mest either of the following criterta are
generally not recoverable,

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developed intemaliy or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full {without taking into account any coliaterals hald by the
Company).

irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that a default has cccurred if a debtor is more than
385 days past due in making a contractual payment unless the Company has reasonable and sugporlabie
information fo demenstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or less in the statement of profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off

The Company write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts
and has concluded there is no reascnable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonabie
expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate
sufficient future cash flows to repay the amount.

Finangial Yahilities
Classifisation, initial recognitlon and subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

— at fair value through profit or loss ("FVYTPL"); and
- at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. Al financial liabilities
are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, also include directiy
attributable trensaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilties depands on their
classification, as follows:

Fair vaiue through profit or loss

rinancial abilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liakilities held-for-trading and financial
iabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or foss. The Company has nol
designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Amortized cost

After initiel recognition. other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognized in the statemant of
profit or less, when the liabilties are derecognized as weall as through sffective interes! rate amoriization
process,
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De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another frem the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company dereccgnizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial ligbilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or llabilities
assurmed, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financia! assets and liabilities are offset and the net amaount is reported in the statement of financial position if
the Company has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends to
sattle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise of term dspository receipts
maturing within 3 manths, cash in hand, cash at banks and the related accrued interest income maturing
within 3 months. Cash equivalents are short term highly liguid investments, that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Decommissioning cost

The activities of the Company normally give rise to obligations for site restoration. Restoration activities may
include abandonment and remcval of wells, facility decommissioning and dismantling, removal or treatment of
waste materials, land rehabilitation, and site restoration.

Lizbilties for decommissioning cost are recognized when the Company has an obligation for site restoration,
and when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. The Company makes provision in full for the
decommissioning cost on the declaration of commercial discovery of the reserves, to fulfil the obligation of site
restoration and rehabilitation. The obligations for oil and natural gas production or transportation facilities, are
required on constriction or installation. An ¢bligation for decommissioning may also crystallize during the
period of operation of a well / facility through a change in legislatiocn or through a decision to terminate
operations.

The amount recognized is the estimated cost of decommissioning, discounted to its net present value at a
currant pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning fiability and the expacted
outflow of economic resources to setile this obligation is up to next thirty vears.

Decommissioning cost, as appropriate, relating to producing or developing fields is capitalized to the cost of
development and production assets and property, plant and equipment as the case may be. The recognized
amount of decommissioning cost is subsequently amortized/depreciated as part of the capital cost of the
development and produclion assets on a unit of production method and property, plant and equipment over
the assets useful life respectively. At the time of decommissioning of the field, any differences arising from
settlement of the provision are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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While the provision is based on the best estimate of future costs and the economic life of the fields, there is
uncertainty regarding both the amount and timing of incurring these costs. The Company reviews the
decommissioning provision at the reporting date. Any change in the present value of the estimated
expanditure is dealt with prospectively and reflected as an adjustment to the provision and a corresponding
adjustment to property, plant and eguipment and development and production assets. If a decrease in 3
provision is greater than the carrying value of asset, the excess is recognized in statement of profit or loss.
The unwinding of the discount on the decommissioning provision is recognized as finance cost in the
statement of profit or loss.

If the change in estimate resulls in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the carrying value of ihe asset, the Company considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the
asset as a8 whole, and if so, test for impairment in accordance with the 1AS-36 Impairment of Asssats.

Employee benefits
Employees gratuity fund

The Company operates approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The investments of
gratuity funds are made through approved trust funds. Employees are entitled to benefils under gratuity funa
frem July 1, 2010, Contributions are made in accordance with actuarial recommendations. Actuarial
valuations are conducted by an independent actuary, annually using projected unit credit method related
details of which are given in note 29 to the financial statements. The obligation at the date of statement of
financial position is measured at the presant value of the estimated future cash outflows.

Actuarial gains and losses (remeasurement gains / losses) on employees' gratuity fund are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income and past service cost is recognized In statement of profit or loss
when thay occur.

Cost primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for the employees' gratuity
fund earned on employees service during the year and the interest on the net liability / (asset) inn respect of
employee's service in previous years. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Caleulation of gratuity obligations require assumptions 1o be made of future outcomes which mainly includes
increase in remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert
future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions. The
assumptions used vary far the different plans and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

Employee compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the rules of
the Company. Each employee can encash the un-utilized leave balance up to 90 days based on last drawn
gress salary at the time of resignation, contract renewal / termination.

Defined contribution plan
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contribution

is made both by the Company and the employee to the fund at the rate of 8 33% of basic salary. The
Company's contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax,
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Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based cn taxable income at the applicable rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any, adjusted for payments o the Government of Pakistan {GoP) for
payments on account of royalty and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previcus years. Income tax
expense s recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Company recognizes provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final
tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax
orovision in the period in which such determination is made.

The Company takes inte account the current income tax law and decisions taken by tha taxation authorities.
Instances where the Company's views differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and
where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts
are shown as contingent ligbilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liablility rrethod in respact of all
temporary differences arising between tha carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax lizbilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, un-
used tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferrad tax is calculated at the rates that are substantially
expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on the tax rates that have been enacted.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to income axcept in the case of items credited or charged to equity in
which case it is included in equity.

Deferred taxation is recognized taking inte account availability of taxable profits. The management uses
assumptions about future best estimates of the availability of future taxable profits based on availabie
informatian.

Cifsetting deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxalion authority. Gurrent tax
assets and tax liabilties are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
o settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Group taxation

The Company has opied for group taxation regime and thereby to be taxed as a one fiscal unit along with its
wholly owned subsidiaries under the Incoma Tax Ordinance, 2001. Current and deferred income taxes are
recognized by sach entity within the Group in their respective statement of comprehensive income, regardless
of who has the legal rights or obligation for the recovery or payment of tax from or to the tax authorities.
However, {ax liability / receivable is shown by the Company based on annual tax computation, who has the
legal obligation to pay or right of recovery of tax from the taxation authorities. Balances betwaen the group
entities on account of group tax is shown as other receivable / liakility by the Company.

Provisions and contingent liakilities

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Gompany has a present, legal or
constructive obligation as a result of & past event, and it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the arnount of such obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of fime value of money and rigk specific {o the liability.
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A contingent [iability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confimad enly by the occurrence or non-cccurrence, of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control aof the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an oufflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recegnition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when or as the Company satisfies a performance
cbligation by transferring & promised good to a customer. Revenue associated with the sale of crude oil, gas
and liquefied petroleum gas is recognized at transaction price that is allocated to that performance obligation.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good to a customer. A good is fransferred when the customer oblains control of
that good or service, The transfer of control of crude ofl, gas and liguefied petroleum gas coincides with title
passing {0 the customer and the customer taking physical possession. The Company principally satisfies its
performance obligations at a peint in time and recognizes revenue relating to the performance.

Revenue i3 measured at the transaction price, net of government levies. Transaction prices of crude il and
gas are specified in relevant agreements and / or as notified by the gevernment authorities based on
agreements with customers, relevant applicable petroleum policy, decision of Economic Coordination
Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet or Petroleum Concession Agreements. Prices of liguefied petroleum gas are
approved by the appropriate authority of operator keeping in view the ceiling price notified by Oil & Gas
Regulatory Authority {OGRA). Effect of adjustments, if any, arising from revision in sale prices is reflected as
and when the prices are finalized with the customers andfor approved by the Government of Pakistan {GoP).

Billings are generally raised by the end of each month which are payable within 30 to 45 days in accordance
with the contractual arrangement with customers. Amounts billed or received prior to being earned, are
deferred and recognized as advances from customers. The Company based on its assessment has nat
identified a significant financing component in its current contracts with customers because payment terms of
30 to 45 days are explicitly specified and delay in settlement of invoices does nol result in a significant
financing component.

Finance income and expense

Finange income comprises interest income on funds invested or [oan issued to subsidiaries and exchange
gain. Interest income of financial assets at amortized cost is calculated using the effactive interest method
and is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Interest income is calculated by applying the affective intarest
rate to gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subseguently become credit
impaired. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

The Company has contractual right and is entitled to charge interest if paymeants fiom customers delayed
beyond credit terms, however, the Company recognizes interest, if any, an delayed payments from customers
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income recognized will
not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequenty resolved, which is when the
interest on delayed payments is receivad by the Company.

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings (if any), unwinding of discount on provisions or
liability and bank charges. Mark up, interest and other charges on borrowings are charged to profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred,
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Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at
the rate of exchange ruling on the statement of financial position date and exchange differences, if any, are
credited / charged to statement of profit or loss for the year.

Foreign operations

The transactions of foreign operation are transiated at rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
All monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of foreign cperation are translated into Pak Rupses at
exchange rate prevailing at the date of statement of financial position and the resulting currency translation
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate reserve in equity
until the disposal of foreign operation, upon which thase are reclassified from equity to statemeant of profit or
loss when gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

Dividends and reserves

Dividend distribution and appropriation of reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

Earning per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share {EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Bilutad EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributeble to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liability unless payment is
not due within twelve {12) months after the reporting period. They are recognized initigily at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Reserves

The Company has a policy to set aside out of the profits of the Company such amount as the Company think
proper as a reserve or reserves, which shall, at the discretion of the board of directors, be applicable for
meeting contingencies, or for any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied,
and pending such application may, in the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company
or be invested in such investments, (other than shares of the Company) as the board of directors may fram
time to time think fit. Reserves are reviewed periodically and adjusted as necessary by the board of directors.



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cwned fixed agsels

Share in joint cperations’ fixed assets

Share in joint operations' capital work in progress

5.1 Owned fixed assets

As at July 1, 2021

Gost
Accumiliated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book value
Additions
Disposais

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge
Closing net book value

As at July 1, 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net boak value
Year ended June 30, 2023

Opening net boak valua
Additions
Disposalks

Cost

Accumulated depraciation

Depreciation charge

Closing net book value

As at June 38, 2023

Cost
Accumuilated depreciation
Net book valuse

Annual rate of
deprecialion [%)

-21-

2023

2022

MNote e --Rupees [("000)------—----

6.1 62,360 41,803

6.2 24,583,240 24 021 823

8.3 3,875,864 3,365,195

28,531,464 27429821

Office Furniture and Cur!'lputer Vehicles Total
equipment lixtures egquipment
Rupees ("00{) .-

37,450 33,067 44 411 11,836 126,754
{19,598) {17,954} (27.802) {10,422) {75,876}
17,852 15,103 16,509 1,414 50.878
17,852 15,103 16,509 1,414 50,878
2,348 2777 9,472 2 14,598
3,768 243 2,286 - 5,278
{3,741 {218) {2 266) = (6,225)
(28) (25} 3 i (53)
{6,587) 4,305) {11,678} (1,052} (23,620)
13,586 13,550 14,305 362 41,803
36,030 35,581 51617 11,836 135,074
(22,444) (22,041} (37.312) {11,474} {83,271}
13,586 13,550 14,305 362 41,863
13,586 13,550 14,305 362 41,803
10,552 8,632 1,882 21,842 42,908
1,176 684 1,870
(1,154) {556) - {f,810)
(22) - {(38) . ]
(6,848) {5,000} (9,337} {1,106} (22,291}
17,268 17,182 6,812 21,088 62,360

45,4086 44,223 52,805 33,678 176,112
{28,138} {27,041) {44,093) (12,580) {113,752)

17,268 17,182 6,812 21,098 62,360

20 15 20-33 20
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6.2

Share in joint operations’ fixed assets

Ag at July 1, 2021

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated Impairment

Net book value
Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book value

Additions / (adjusiments)
Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers frorm CWIP

Depreciation charge

Impaimant charge

Closing net bock valug

As at July 1, 2022

Cost

Accumulated depraciation
Accumuiated Impainment
Mat book value

Year ended June 30, 2023

Opening net book value
Additions ! {adjustments)
Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Tranafers From CWIP
Dispasals
Cost
Accumutated depreciation
Accumulated Impairmant

Depreciation charge
impairment charge
Closing net book value

As at June 30, 2023

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumilated mpairment
Met book value

Annual rate of
depreciation (%]

o
Leasebaold Plapt and ik lies O'fflca Furniture Vehicles Dec-omrnlssmn Total
land equipmant equipment and fixtures ing cost
Rupees (100)
54 BOS 46,102,772 7,914,804 344,746 77 869 179,900 1,159,803 55,834,889
{41950} {22 026,532 {4,279,944) {262,928) {72,575 {166,860} {444 502} (27,325,201}
(G 458) (2,861,158) {648,320) (25,969) (3,8148) (3,130} {55,032) {3,608,8582)
5,488 21,215 081 2,985,540 25,849 1475 9,510 656 370 24.900.717
6,488 21,215,081 2,985 540 25,849 1,478 0810 656,370 24,800,717
- 1,762,650 357,238 6,077 (180} 4,399 95,424 2,225.607
& {251,847} - - - - (291,231) {543,078)
= 3,384 178,676 - - - - 480,065
5 {2,145 065} {319.277) {4,568) {207) (5,2559) (107,304) (2,681,680
{6.488) {310,143} {121,677) {4,302) - {66} {17.132) (459,808)
- 20,572 085 3,080,500 23 056 1081 8 984 336,127 24,021,823
54,395 47,914,864 8,450,718 350,623 77683 184,258 964 096 57,997,483
(41,950 {24,171,588) {4,589,221} {297,496) (72,782) {172,119} {551,808) (29,908,971}
{12,945} (3,171,301} {770,987} {30,271) {3,818} (3,196} {76,183} {4,068,689)
- 20,672,065 3.080.500 23,066 1,091 5 984 336,127 24,021,823
- 20,572,065 2,080,500 231,056 1,091 8,984 336127 24,021,523
= {359,695) 30,998 28,221 1,495 40 752,504 453,353
- {46,204) {1,288} - - - - (47,552}
- 2,456,697 420,303 - - 2,877,000
- 332,712 - - 332,712
{274,782) {274,782}
- {57,930) - - - - {57,930}
{1,984,102) {548,826) {8,497} (372) {2,326) {105,923) {2,611,052)
{85,002) {12,517} 12,624} {149 s = {100,252)
20,553,659 3,008,170 40,156 1,753 @,698 982,798 24,593,240
54,895 49 632,950 8,900,731 379,044 78,881 184,339 1,716,680 60,947,533
{44,950} {#5,380,918) {5,109,047) {305,993) (73,160 [174,445) (657,729) [{32,243,242)
{12,945} {3.198,373) (783,514) {32,895) {3.965) {3,198} (76,163) {4,111,051)
- 20,553,659 3,008,170 40,156 1,75 6,698 982,798 24,593,240
334 33-4 334 20 15 20 334
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6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.4

6.5

6.6

7

Share in joint operations’ capital work in progress

Balance at the beginning of the year

Cost incurred during the year

Transferred 1o development and production assets
Transferred to share in joint operations' fixed assets

Accumulated impairment
Balance st the end of the year

2023 2022
emmne——— Rupees {'000)-—---—--—-=

3,587,696 3,311.421

3,393,976 756,340
(3,523) -
(2,877,000) {480,065)
4,101,149 3 567,696
(225,285) (221,501

3,875,864 3,366,195

Total capitalized cost includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 235,200 thousand as at June

30, 2023 (2022: Rs. 151,892 thousand)

Movement in accumulated impairment

Balance at the beginning of the year

Charge far the year
Balance at the end of the year

AlloGation of depreciation

Operating expenses

General and administrative expenses

Allocation of impairment

Operating expeanses

2023 2022
wm———— Rupees {"000)--------a- -
221,501 221,501
3,784 -
225,285 221,501

2,611,062 2,581,630
22,21 23,620

2,643,343 2605300

104,076 459 808

As the Company is a non-operator, property, plant and equipment other than owned fixed assets are not in
the possession of the Company and are operated by joint cperatiocns in which the Company has woiking

interest.

INTANGIBLE ASSTES - SOFTWARES

Cosi
Accumulated amortization

Net book value

Opening net book value
Additions
DCisposals

Cost

Accumulated amortization

Amortization charge for the year
Ciosing net bock vaiue

Annual rate of amortizaticn (%)

WYL

2023 2022

116,589 116,143
(144,928) (108,271)
1,663 7,872
7,872 24,065
446 2,019
{6.655) (18,212)
1,663 7,872
33% 33%
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Note
EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
Balance at the beginning of the year 8.1
Expenditure incurred during the year
Cost of dry and abandoned wells during the year 36

Transfer to development and production assets during the year

Balance at the end of the year

2023 2022
---------- Rupees ('000)-------nmn-
6,775,066 5,752,966
442,770 410,709
6,217,836 6,163,675
(7,160) {388 609}
(1,772,247) -
(1,779,407) {388,608)
4,438,428 5,775,066

This includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 7,293 thousand which has been transferred

tc development and production assets during the year.
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= = 5=

= B E s BE EOE e EE

=— ==

25
9 DEVELOPMENT AND PRODUCTION ASSETS
mz Cast AGPGLAI G ripaiNrEnd Camying amauni
At i Adinsiment of Azl R at s et 5 At Charge Bswl Aa 1
Parnculars Working Interest Juky 1, 2022 UL LT T ot D“‘"_cw gf L Rir=nzfer Jume 30, 2023 Juty 1, 2B12 (ull':tr:»!e'?:ur e BTG5 NN Gorthegedr  Jwe30,2033  Janedh, 2099
marmmanis —— —Fupaes {00 foupess QM Rupees Q0] Rupaas {'0Hy
Preduchng fehds-lainl opemtions

Eiadin Ill 2500% I0RTIZ . - - - EETETH 306,792 - 306,792 - - - -

Bioc-22 rall heloe) 22 5% 255,405 - - - - 258,805 204,718 3 204.718 25487 o EE,127 .
Abmaaliawzll 17 A TATL g & & E TELIOT 037,512 AFATE £78.957 o o & 182,720
Htaveal 17 S0 1831 . {18) a S 3812 1,782 % 1857 - - - 1,945
MAzaream| 12 Sir 126,608 B o o . 136,602 118,273 o 148373 ilize - 25,828 1
Eawsn 2 504 142034 53 . o B 1423952 1623018 P RTH 2881370 £04,061 . Ena.ds1 167,518
Zamzama 25.00% 4774428 16,650 FERET]] {21 493) - 4,756.459 3,711,562 15,301 1,726,851 1016730 - 1.HE730 22,556
Mubarak 25.00% TAMTI 8,828 162,180) . B 1,444,130 2141 5167 FIr AT 1039875 - 1,029.475 B1,384
Nim - 2 50% 20,849 4,130 {102,131) 5 3 EET A4 237,481 1,52 308,004 - - - 250,236

Kaaliran 250 69,403 - . . . 89,208 1,233 8 1,823 5L - ET.270 -
Charda 175 1.516,436 - . - . 1 B1E4H 1,186,480 108,613 1.ITHN3E & . B 341,238
Gamnbat 25005 $42,403 T AL B o = 439,656 242,720 72851 248,871 198,632 - 195,632 1
Tal (ull Szld=) 15.00% 6253675 198,532 9,341 144262 80,348 E4THEL 52r24n4 IBL AT 5E61.5M - - - 1.012,734
Khipra {all feds) 500 3245941 463 055 {5,245) B 148 087 3,858 d&E 2413244 48,360 2 TE2,T04 - - - 1 056, T84
Sdirpurkhan fall fiekda) T5.00% 6,200,624 1,163,955 {110,158) - 143,304 7,297,743 5,136,448 650,258 B,TEE#8Y o o o 1,411,060
Chachar 25005 251 881 g . 613 - 251,230 159,060 113 150,178 91,855 - .455 215
Muthpa 15.00% 5.029,483 - 2 o 5 £ 074 dd 2,734,802 37277 3ATLITY - - - 1057,
Sinlrare 22.50% 330,390 TBOS1 . (2,137 ALENGT 1068311 AT2 E0G 137,54 140,550 - - - 458,763
Mazhar 25.00% 4,112,405 15845 [ELE 3] - - 4,339,458 1,745,730 A% 2,258,178 E71,21B 187,764 BSBAB2 +234,798

Mhakemn 22 Ea% 16,147 - . - - 10,107 10.6TH . 10078 28 . 28 .
Guddu 2250% 154,939 2] - (1691} - 1521 119,855 5.0 125194 - - - 28,173
Balan 17.50% 565015 - {2,437} . . ZEXATH 473,494 24,53 LIYTTY) S & a 50,737
CGAmbal Soull 25.400% 1,724,830 a 2 {53,887) 335807 20165950 2,827 RETY 0 #37 228 . . . 1,118,728
Edtrrsimy 22.50% 312,807 1231 12,203} o - 10,9H 120,232 279 143,028 - - - 167906
Tanvdo Allab ¥ar (all Gelds) 22.50% 253,519 81 508 . {70y 28,314 344,627 MEIY 20761 A & - - 100,444
Ehah Banaer 2.50% 53017 S = 8 & 58,017 57,030 1085 50,018 . . - 1
Kheazsi 22.50% 209,783 . 12,381} o = 207,282 5770 39,784 46,556 - - - 160,824
Dihoke Sutin 25410 . - . . 1764854 1,764,864 . 1,008,35 1,008,350 - - . TEE.084
Oecommisianing cost 562,347 1.660.10% 1139,053) 7,293 4,550,692 1,867,536 #83,272 2524808 231,821 12443 2,354 1,821,520
Hub total producing Heids AB2ET,TIZ 3,822,756 (309, 443) {281,245} PETEETT 52,383,184 3,022 438 4,739,472 35,761 668 4,048,157 98,707 4,248 H64 12,372,610

“This includes reversal of decommisioning cashameurting Rs. 125, 752 Monsand directy macs againal relatad Tald 2seets uiler piaviions af IFRIC 1 - Changes in mxsling decamrrissicning, resiocatian and simitar liabilbics
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Derelaping Nelds-Joint oparations 3
Eot] Amantzatian Impainmeni Carrying amouni
as at " : St Asal P Eharga & at Aa sl Charge as at Azt
Fartulars Working Interest By 1, 2612 Aagions) ARt Dm"“g:_:_:"‘"'"“ TPANSIers  june 30,2023 Suly §,2022 Tar lh:'gy!ar June W, HZ3 July 1,208 fer Ihe?l\ear June 39,2023 June 30, 2023
Rz { M) Jenasr nnsns s e smiees Fujmes (0] Aupsss |00} Rupees [(100)
Davaloplng NleldE-Jolnt cpermtions.
#dehar A5.00% 5 825,193 - - . B25,093 - . - - 108,634 108544 715,389
AhurracalParkall 17.50% D o - . . 5 - B . . . e R
Tando Allah Yar {34 fislds; 2250% 531 64,137 - . {25111} 124,535 - - B - - - 13413
Handra 35.00% 35T - = - - 35T = . E 3517 - 3577 -
i 2Z.50% {2,807} - - - - [ZA0T} - . . a - - 1401
Hatra 20.4H1% &7 M2 8.828 o o - ETR | . g . 0,524 - s0.824 43,847
Mubarak 25400% - - - = & = 5 . . - = = =
Tal 1500% 255,368 1,104 [LE] - (255,343} 1,404 & 3 & B . . 1,104
Mirparithas {all figids) E5.00% 139,781 23,600 . - {139,781 23600 - - - - - = 13,605
Khlpra fall Neids) 25.00% 456,287 (3T - . [148.88T} 13,435 - - . . - . 13,039
Sawan 2350 - . o g 4 . - = o a o . .
hushpa 15.00°% BYL58 542,387 B 5 L 1,515,568 - . * & = 5 1,415,568
kazaman T3 S0 o o - - 2 o - . 5 a o o .
Badin tf 25.00% a o o . o 3 L . = N N E .
SEMbaL auh 25 00 4T LR - - . {335,207 534,777 - - - . - - =¥ R
Bleck-2 2250 1550 . . - - 15,5 . - - 15,534 - 15,534 -
Zamzamra 24 09 . - b - . - - - - - - . .
Sinjhare 32E50% 163,010 214,881 . - {1s3mi 214,661 . - o o - - 214,661
Chenoa 17 50% n 432,809 E - . 452,081 & = . B R . 357 81
Bitrizm 22.50% 3 o o - - g & i R R . . A
Fehaeatd 22.50% 104,700 - [16,253) . . 92,441 . - . a 5 S 52,441
Docerraressinnng fosl 124,435 . - {11871 g 112,524 . - - T.293% - 7294 104,230
Sk atal gevel pang Mretds 2,620,462 2858872 {18,277} a7 11,068,224) 4,189,881 g o = 722 108,544 185873 1,984,984
Toral 42802174 EATY 628 [EELEEL] [273,815] 1,775,748 58,564,029 31,022,488 4728172 35,761,669 3,136,386 304,352 4,434 737 16,387 k23

Cevefaping kelds comprisa of coat af wells and relared eipenditure which ara undsr deyalsgmsit! wdar Silling end, hance, na amobzation hercon has boan change.
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8.2 DEVELOFWENT AND PRODUCTHIN ASSETS

2022 Cost ATArkEatan Impairmart H
_ Camying ameount
Adjuslmanl of
. hs gh - As at Ac at Charga Az a As At Cherga / As 3l As 3
iy ol A U 1) ;!
Particulars 8 uiy1,2021  Addriens Adusiments Detommissoring - TISRSE jued0,2022 1,201 forMeyex JunedD.Z022  Juy 12021  (Reversal) June 30,2022 June 30,2022
o far Ihe yaar
.................... —Rupees (UM ————— e — —— e —— Rupees (00 Rupses {100)———————  Rupass {TI0)

Producing flelds-Joint eperations

Badir Ili 25.00% 306.752 = = - - 26 792 M08, 792 . 306,752 - =
Efack-22 {all fislds) =2 5% ZE8,275 2 18,370) - - 259,905 Pkt {837 204718 55,187 - 55 187 -
AhmadaliParivwali 17 506 TTA,THa 758 - s s 7re.AT2 585,817 41 645 637,512 s d = 141,960
Iirvaal 17 50% 3647 184 & 5 5 3,831 1688 an 1,782 - - - 2,045
tdazzran; 12.50% 1365 641 = [35) = £ 125,602 115,512 (5% 115273 21,528 . 24,328 1
Sawvan 22 50% 3,411,768 8,555 | - - - - 3,420,351 2,506, 330 26,583 2,623,018 504,063 - Bh4. 063 193,240
Zamgama 25.00% 4,554,362 %863 {SET) % 21B,7R1 4,774,426 3633825 o773k 3,711,562 BTO,287 46 443 1,016,730 4,714
Whibarak 25 D% 1,359,278 53,422 . - - 1,404,703 215,260 55 w51 273,211 1,025,477 54,34 1,084,875 42614
i 22 0% 201 263 75,4955 S - 151 D5S £20, 844 113,903 121,584 27483 - - - 283 361
Mshran 25 D0% 89,203 - - - - - E9203 1,933 = 1,933 B7.270 - &7.2T0 -
Chanda 17.50% 1,512,514 5,121 (1,213 {78 = 1616,4%6 B35 805 166673 1,166,460 = = = 248 956
Gamtat 25.00% 441,430 B4 - g s 447 403 241,755 BG4 242720 189 82 & 159,882 1
Tai (all fickis) 15.00% 6,274,550 96,251 = [115,525) - 5,253,675 483951% 432,895 5272414 - - > 841,261
Kripra (gl falds] 25 ()4 2870345 411,761 130,468} [15,B47] = 3,245,951 2,230,152 133,210 2413344 = 2 S 832,547
WiFporihas (all fialds) 25 % 5,570,871 706,614 45,171} [3T BBE) s 6,200,628 4,606,308 530,147 5,136,448 . = 1,064, 150
Chachar 25.00% 2515 - - 15, 0a0) - 251 &8 153,956 104 156,060 21,855 . 41,655 446
Hathpa 15.00% 5,007 511 4,441 {16,288} (T E72) a1 301 5,025 463 2,006,007 535,805 27340 . . . 2994, 581
Sinjhoro 22 500% 501138 334418 & 15, 168)] = B30, 300 A70,553 102,009 472 602 o s = 357,788
Mehar 25.00% 3380802 | 1,058,157 (5,733 - - 4,372 405 1,194,314 551,444 1,745,730 . &71.2148 B71,248 1,955,457
Lngkro 22 50% 10157 - - - - 10,307 10,03 Lol 10,078 - 24 28 -
Guddu 2% 50% 154,513 29 - - 154,939 131 44 8,431 119,555 - - - 35054
Bolan 17.50% 553,788 2950 1924} s = 565,815 372528 100,783 473,111 . s = 42,704
Gambat Sauth 26.00% 1,808,757 2 (3,903} {70,524) - 1,734,530 539,539 1B2,584 702,527 o s = 1.03z,403
Bitrigim 22 E0% 286 0ED 26527 . = S 312,907 70220 50,01 120,232 = = s 192,675
Tandg Allah Yar ¢ail fields) 32.50% 267,750 &a7 - {10,118 = 258,519 178,012 35,36, 215,474 L s 2 43,143
Shah Bandas 2 60% £ 551 4 . 1535 = 58,017 11,342 45,5491 &7,038 - - - 1,9a7
#hewar 22.50% 178,725 5568 . 5 27,440 208783 2 8,771 8,770 = S 2 202,993
Qecommissioning tesl 3,000 Gad 443577 . (6B1,178) 3 3,062,347 1,337,923 5236173 1, BE1 535 145,352 38,560 231,521 865,890
Suil total producing fields 43655,038 3,243,587 |98 525) [9E2,263) 438,677 46,287 712 27,207 250 3805 243 31,022 488 3,130,501 EETES 4044 157 11,216,457

“Thiis includas revarsal of decommissioning cost amaunting Rs. 271 088 thauszand directly made againat related field assets urder provisions ef IFRIC 1 - Changes m exsling gecommissicning, resiaration ard smilar hzblbties.
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DHeveloping Aelds-Jdoint cperationg
2073 Cga: Amotizaticn ImnpRirment Carrying amount
Asal . GETCIETE As 8l Az hargs As at Ac gt Charge A5 at EEP
Paniculars \;mg;? Julp 1, p0z1  Addibons - Adustmants Dmm(":”;f'm'”g Transtars ) nedn, 2022 July 1, 2021 m:::nersear June 30, 2072 Julp 1, 2021 fer mef-aa: Juna 30 2023 June 30, 2027
I —— e — Fupees (D00 —————— s Rupees ['O6h) Rupsaes {'D00) ———— Rupass {000} ]
Dewveluping felds-Joint oparations.
Mehar 25.00% - - - & g - - - - - - . -
AhmadalFarmali 17 6% - o = - - - . . . . - - -
Tanda Allah Yar (all fislds) 2 50% . 25,311 S - - 25311 4 . 5 s & = 26,311
Kandra 25.000% 3,577 - - 1 = 3677 = L 3 3,577 - 3577 -
Nim 22 50% 146,268 s S 3 [151,D65) (2,807} - . = s . = 2.807)
Kitra 20.00% B9,343 3 {1,409) g - 87 @42 . 5 = 50,524 5 50,824 37118
Whubarak 25.00% - - - - g . - - - = & = =
Tal 15.00% - 265 365 - 9 = 255,385 - - - - - - 255,286
hrpurkas {all fislds) 25.00% S 138,781 - - . 136 781 = 2 = B . 5 138,781
KEtipro (all fields) 2EO0Y% T.430 148 8ET - = - 156,287 - - - - - - 156,287
Sawan 22 50% b 5 S L a . i . o 3 R N -
Neshpa 18.00% 4B E14 565 3548 = g 41,381) 573 BBl < e - - - . 572,561
Mazarani 12.80% - 3 o & & o . g d o B i .
Eadin It 2E00% - s = - - - - . - - - - -
Gambal Sauth 26.00% ERT=CT . s : - 970,684 - . . . . B 870,604
Bllpgk-22 22 50% 15,534 . S 5 = 15,534 . . = 15,534 s 15,534 -
Zamzama 25.00% 218,781 2 = 2 [218,781) = . . . 145,443 | {14543 3 =
Einjhoro 22.50% - 163,010 . a a 163,010 - - . . . - 162,010
Chanda tr .50 - - - - - - - - - a . . -
Bilrism 3 L% o 4 o A . 4 - _ . - ) - =
Khawari 23 50% 164,198 43,522 (80,575) - (27,4404 104,700 5 - - - - 108.700
Dracommisstaning cost B3, 546 161 . {45,213} - 124,485 - - - 7234 - 7254 117,241
Sub totai developing felas 1625853 1,340,377 (81,880) (a5,212) [433577) 2,520,461 - = e 373E72 {145,447 77,229 2,543,232
Total - 4,554,264 {166,605) {997 475) = 48 504,172 27,217 250 3.805.24;[\' 31,022,458 3354472 172212 4,126,388 13,755,289

9.3  Daveloping fizlds comprise of sost of welle and relatad sxpenditure which are under developrmentt under deilling and, rca, no amartizalian therean has been chargad
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2023 2022

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDWARIES ] Rupees ["000)--------ammmx
Investment in subsidiaries - at cost

Inter State Gas Systems (Private) Limited (ISGSL) - nota 10,1

Shares igsued by ISGSL 5,294,912 3,401,261
Advance against issue of shares 525,063 2,329,895
5,819,981 2,731,188
Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL} - note 10.2 30,000 30,000
5,849,981 5,761,156

Inler Gtate Gas System {Private} Limiled (ISGSL) was incorporated on August 4, 1996 in Pakistan under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1884 (repealed by Companies Act, 2017) as a privats limited company, The Cempany has a shareholding of 100% with
520,491,231 (2022:100% with 340,126,105) equity shares of Rs.10 each held in ISGSL. Significant projects being pursued by the [SGSL

include:;

- Pakistan Stream Gas Pipeline {(PSGP) Project (formerly known as North South Gas Pipeline);

- Turkmenistan - Afghanisian - Pakistan - India (TAPI} Gas Pipeling;

- Iran Pakistan {IP} Gas Pipeline Project;
- Strategic Underground Gas Storage (SUGS) Project; and
- Souih Morth Gas Pipeline (SNGF) Fraject,

Movemanl in investment in [13GSL during the year is as follows

Shares issued by ISGSL
Halance at the beginning of the year
Shares issued against advance during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Advance against issue of shares
Balance at the beginning of the year
Shares issued against advance during the year
Advance dishursed for issue of shares
Balance a! the end of the year

2023 2022
--------- Rupees {'000)---—rm—memeee
3,401,261 2,858,821
1,893,651 442,440
5,294,912 34012681
2,320,885 2,326,091
{1,593,651) (442 440}
88,825 436,244
625,059 2,329 895
5,519,981 5,731,158

Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL} was incomorated in Pakistan as a public company on December 11, 2015 under the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (repealed by the Companies Act, 2017).The Company has a sharehalding of 100% wilh 1,500,003 {2022:10G0% with 1,500,003} equity

shares of Rs, 10 each held in PLL.

Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited {PLTL) was merged into PLL with PLL being the surviving entity with effect from Januwary 1, 2021, The
1,500,000 equily shares al Rs. 10 gach of PLTL were transferred to PLL.

The summarized financial information for ISGSL & FLL is given below The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the

unaudiled financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2023,

Summarized statement of financial position
Current assets

Mon- current assels

Current liabilities

Men-current liabilities

Met azsats

Reconcilistion 1o carrying amounts:

Cpening net assets

Advance against issue of shares

Issue of Share Capital

Changes in reserves

Femeasurement loss on employees’ retirement banefits - net of tax
Profit 7 (Loss) for the year / period

Closing net azsets

Company’s percantage shareholding
in lhe subsidiary
Company's share in net assets at cost

AT

2023 2022
Inter State Gas
Systems Pakistan LNG
{grivataj Limited (PLL) iy Vel
Limited
Rupees {'000}
549 TG 146,548,265 147,008,020 174,182,909
3,845 104 125,971,051 123,816,155 128 268 265
{475 055) (150,635,653} (151,110,912} {1649,158,315)
{111,821) {171,716,668) (171,828 48F) {141,434, 408)
3,807 579 {49,833 203) (46,025,224 {6.139,549)
3,749,063 {11,888 612) (B,139,549) 13,206, 794
(1,804.526) 5 {1.804,8286) {6,196)
1,893,651 - 1,893 651 442 447
293 202 - Z83 292 284,480
{10,405] - (10,405) (23,752)
{312,796} (27 944.501) {38,257 387) (22,043,325}
3 807,979 {49.833,203) (45,025,224} (8,129,548)
100% 100%
3,807,979 {49,832,207) (45 025,224) {6,139 548)
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2023 022
Inter State Gas
Systems Fakistan LNG
Private) Limited (PLL) dic:2l letal
Limited
Rupees ("000}- -
Suramarized statements of comprehensive income
Gross prafit - 12.6491,048 12 691,048 23,262 485
Profit { {Loss) for the year (740,371} (49615120 (49,615,120} {28,396,339)
Tax for the year 427 575 11,670,529 12,098,104 5,353 014
Other comprehensive income { {loss) 282,887 - 282 887 260 738
Total comprehensive losa (29.908} {37 944 591) (37,234 129) (21.782.587}

During the year ended Jung 30, 2023, management assessed the investment in 1SGSL for impairment in respect of triggering evants as
specified by |AS 36 applicable to the nan-current assels. An impairment test has been carried out by the management to determine the
recoverable amount of non-current assets of ISGSL due to changes impacting the projects being pursued by ISGSL on account of non-
availability of necessary financing, implementation delays and inlernational sanctions on Iran leading {o significant project delays stc,

For the purpose of detennining the recoverabte amounl, 1he management performead impairment assessment during the year ended June
30, 2023 using the valug-in-use (VIUJ) model. In asseseing the value in use, eslimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
valug, using a discount rate that is based on the exigling policy rate grevailing within the country, The discouni rate applied to cash fow
projections is 18.37% per annum, The project's recoverable ameount i-e VIU based on management cash flow forecasts is Rs 42 085 million
which is determined to be higher than the carrying amount. Based on the above, managemeant has cancluded that there s no nead o
recognize an impairment (083 in the financial statements.

2023 2022
Note e --Rupees ('000)-—---—-——-
LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Linguoted Company
Foreign Operation - Pakistan International Qil Limited {PIOL)
Cost of investment (3,500,000 (2022: 2,500,000] fully
paid ordinary shares of USD 10 each) 111 6,431,700 4,205,500
Post acquisition profits f {losses) Erought forward {2,029,511) =
Share of loss for the year 112 {297,110} {2,513,552)
Effect of transiation of investment 1,460,502 474,041
1,163,792 (2,039,511
Post acquisition profits / {losses) camy forward {875.719] (2,059,511}
Clozing Balance 5.558.981 2,165,989
Pakistan Minerals {Private) Limited - PMPL
Crzt of investment
lzsued Share Capital (4,000 {2022; Nil) fully
paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each) 40 -
Ardvance against equity 36,569 163
1.3 36,569,203 -
Share of foss for the period - net of tax (Nov 24, 2022 1o Jun 30, 2025} 11.4 [286,040] 5
Share of other comprehensive income for the period - net of tax 14,020,097 -
Post acquizition profil carry forward 13 634,057 -
Clasing Balange 50,203, 26¢ &
55 759,241 2165980

Pakistan infernational Oil Limiled (PIOL) is a company engaged in lhe business of exiraction of oii and naturai gas and is registered as a
limited liability company in the Emirate of Abu Dthabi and incorporated in Abu Dhabi Global Market. Each consortium company (inveskors)
which includes the Company, Mari Petrolewm Company limited (MPCL}, Pakistan Petroleum Company Limiled (PPL) and Gil & Gas
Development Company Limited {OGDCL)Y have a 25% equily stake in PIGL. During the year, the Company subscribed to a further 1 million
ardinary shares of PIOL, by paying further USD 10 million {Rs 2,228 millian),

The loss for the period mainky retates to exploration and evaiuation expenses incwred by PIOL.

AL
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The Company made a deposit of Rs 35801 million {2022 Rs 34,301 million} for investment in Reko Dig Project. subject to conditions
precedent Bs 3et out in Framewnrk Agreement signed an March 20, 2022, The Framework Agreement sels out the conditions for the
reconstitution and development of Reko Dig Mining Project. Al the conditions precedent, including but not limited to, the signing of the
definitive agreements and judicial validation were completed as on Dacember 15, 2022, The Comgany has invested in the projeg! cempany,
i.&. Reko Dig Mining Company {Private) Limited (RDMC) through Pakistan Minerals {Private) Limited {PMPL), an entity incorporated in
Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017, with initial subzscribed share capital of 12,000 shares with par value of s 10 each in accordance
with the agreements for collective representation of the Company, Pakistan Petroleumn Limiled (PFL) and Cil and Gas Davslopmert
Company Limiled (QGDCL), together calied the State Owned Enterprizes (SOEs). RDMG is engaged in the mineral exploration activities in
Pakiztan, PMPL holds an indirect working interest of 25% (8.33% of each SOE) in the REMC thraugh offshore holding companies namely
Reko Dig Holdings Limiled and Reka Dig Investments Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Holdeos™. ROMC is incorporaled in Pakistan and
Heldeos are incorporated in Bailiwick of Jersey. The Compeny's equity interest in PMPL is 33.33% with an effective interest of 8.33% in
RDMC. The SOEs have representation an the Boads of Holdeas and ROMC through PMPL.

The investment in PMPL by the Company has been accounted for as an associate with the carrying amount of invesimenl amounting to Rs
35,507 million, based on the total purchase consideration paid by the Company in the form of initial entry fee Rs 34,301 million and the
inlerest payments Rs 1,600 millian thereon till December 15, 2022, Initial accounting in respect of acquisition undar the applicable financial
reporting framework involves identifying and determining the fair values to be assigned to the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities, for
determination of goodwill or bargain purchase gain, if any, The Campany has conducted its assessment for identification and valuation of
assets and liabilities of lhe investes, and as & result of this assessment has nol identified any geodwill or bargain purchase gain in the
aforasaid aequisition,

During the year, the Company made additional investrnent in PMPL amounting to Rs 668 million which increased the total equity investmant
of the Campany in the associate to Rs 36,569 million as at June 30, 2023, In addition to the initial subscribed share capital. PMPL is in he
pracess of issuing shares to the Company against further equity contributions.

Furthenmare, discussions are currently in progress in respect of the interest expressed by a potential investor in the squity stake of PMPL in
the Reka Diy project. However, as of the date of approval of these financial slalements, nothing has been matenialized.

The |less for the period mainly relates to PMPL's share of loss in its asseciated Company, Reko Dig Heldings Limited {RDHL} while the other
comprehansive incoms relates to gain on retranslation of PMPL's share of investment in foreign operation i-e ROHL.

Summarized financial information far associates

The share of logs of PMPL and the belew summarized financial information is bazed on the avdited financial siatements of the associate far
lhe period from inception to June 30, 2022 whereas share of lags of PIOL and the below summarized financial information is based on the
audited financial statements of the associate fer the period from inception to December 31, 2022, adjusted for transagtions and events up to
June 3¢, 2023 based on management accounts, in USD, convered into PKR at closing exchange rate.

PMPL PIOL
2023 2022 2023 2022
-------- Rupees {'000) -~----—— ——---—- Rupees ('000) ———---

Summarized statement of financial position
Currenl assets 120,621 - 14,080,068 2968078
Mon-current assets 167,171,543 - 8,845,552 6,310,510
Current liabilities {8,590} - {701 ,896) (614,634)
Mon Current lizbilities {16,710.030) - -
MNet azsets 150,573,444 = 22,223,522 8 663 954
Reconciliation to carrying amounts:
Opening net assets - - 8,663,954 -
Issued share capital 120 - 8,504,800 16,622,000
Advance against issue of shares 109,671,153 - =
Profit / (loss) for the period (1,158,120) - {1,182,435) {10,054 208}
Cther comprehansive income / (loss) 42,060,291 = =
Retranslation of investrent - - 5,843,607 1,896,162

150,573,444 - 22,223,922 8,863,954
Company's percentage shareholding in the aszociates 33.33% 25% 25%
Company's share in carrying value of net assets 50,191,148 - 5,555,981 2,165,988
Others - exchange rate difference on egquity contributions 12,112 - - -

50,203,260 - 5,555,981 2165588

Summarized statement of comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the period (1,158,120} - 1,188,438} (19,054,208}
Share of comprahensive loss (336,040} - {287 110} (2.512,552)

WN374L
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RECEIVABLFE FROM GOVERNMENT CF PAKISTAN (GoP}

2023 2022
Nan - Non -
Current Co Total Current Cutrent Tatal
------------------ Rupees {"'000) —Rupees {'000}-=mmmrmmmremm
Receivahle frem GoP

Principal amaunt - 64,899,131 64,899,131 61,895,158 - 51,805,156
Accrued interest 5,548,325 - 5,548, 325 2,071,808 - 2071808
5,548,325 64,899,131 70,447,456 63,966,965 - 63,066 065

This represents receivable from GoP against amount paid by the Company in connection with the Reko Diq Project on behalf o3

£

the Government of Balochistan (Go8) upan instructions of the Federal Government. The principal amount is inclusive of all
related expenses ie. transaction cost, out of pocket expense incurred by the company. During the year ended June 30, 2022, the
In order to fulfill the commitmeant of the Government of Pakistan {GoP) towards the Government of Balochistan (GaB), the
Company arranged a shert term finance facility for nine months, The Company settled the shert term finance during the year. The
settlement of short term finance facility was financed by the company through obtairing long term loan from National Bank af
Pakistan {NBP) for tenor upto seven year which resulted in the apportionment of the principal amount of the borrowing from NBP
and related receivahle from GoP as well as related finance cost f income into currert and nan-current assets and liabilities.

Mavement in principal amount and interest acerued is as follows 2023 2022
—mmmnans Rupeas ("000)--—-----—
Princigal Amount:
Balance at baginning of the year 61,395,155 -
Additions during the year 3,003,975 561805156
Principal amount received during the year - 3
Balance at end of the year 64,599,131 51,895,156
Accrued Interast:
Balance at beginning of the year 2,171,809 -
Interast accrued during the year 3,714,875 2,071,609
Interast on loan from MBP directly repaid by GoP {€,238,359) -
Balance at end of the year 5,548,325 2.071.80%
LONG TERM LOAN TQ SUBSIDIARIES AND STAFF
2023 2022
Note Non - MNon - ,
Current Current Total Current s Total
] Rupeges (*000) Rupees {'000}-—-——--—--
Lean to subsidiaries
Principal
Pakistan LNG Limitad (PLL) 131 1,200,000 1,395,747 2,595,747 1,240,291 2,468,347 3,706,638
Inter State Gas Systems
{Private] Limited (1ISGSL) 13.2 107,968 . 107,966 270,302 270,302
Accrued Interest
Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) 304,462 1,238,526 1,542,938 304 4862 1,237 523 1,541,885
Intat State Gas Systems 82,286 - 82,886 4,808 - 84 808
(Frivate} Limited (ISGSL)
Loan to staff 133 25,904 72,683 98,687 10,715 20,268 31083
1,810,578 3,724 238 5634818

Wﬂ 1,721,218 2,706,958 4,428,174
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2023 2022
Mote -] Rupees ("000)------
Balance at beginning of the year 3,706,638 4,945 529
Repayment by PLL during the year (1,040,291  (1,240.281)
Adjustment of group tax benefit {70,600} -
Balance at end of the year 2,585,747 3706638

The Company had provided advances to PLL for operational activities related to LNG imports and alsa to fulfill the guaraniees set
farth in the LNG import confracts. On November 22, 2017, the Corpany agreed to convert the entire amount of advances into an
interest-pearing joan, as agreed upon in the term sheet signed by Lath parties. Cn October 19, 2018, both parties renegotiated
the |zan repayment schedule in 3 term sheet amendment, with the loan now payable to the Company over a period of three years
until March 2021, The rate of interest on the [oan was set 1o six (08} months KIBOR plus 2% as of the date of the transaction,

The loan repayment timeline were adjusted and PLL is paying Rs. 200 million towards the principal and Rs. 50 million towards the
interast every two months. The repayment of the loan is to be constantly monitored by the board. During the year ended June 30,
2023, the Company has adjusted Rs 70.56 million of lgan receivable against payable to PLL, the share of tax benefit claimed by
the Company under group taxation. Subseguent to year end, the cutstanding loan arnount along with interest has been fully
repaid by PLL.

2023 2022
Hote e ~Rupees ("000)---—ve
Balarice at beginning of the year’ 270,302 270,302
Repayment bif IEGSL during the year {77,383) -
Adjustment of group tax benefit ___ {84,953y -
Balance at end of the year 1322 197,966 270,302

This represents amount paid to ISSSL under a loan agreement signed by the Company and ISGSL on August U, 2018 as per the
directive ¢of tha ECC dated December 15, 2018, wherein ECC directed the Company to fund all expenditure on the Government
mandated projects being undertaken by the ISCSL, The loan carried an interest rate of annual KIBOR + 0.1% effeclive from the
date of disbursement. Loan along with interest was repayahble in a single bullet payment dug on Decernber 14, 2020.

The facility was entered into in line with ECC decision, however, as a secondary arrangement secured by the way of lien, charge,
first and prefeired rightfinterest on any of the assets/properties whether movable or immovable, righis, inlerests, gross revenues,
profits, receivables and properties whether existing or acquired in future wherain the 1SGSL has any cwnership, right or interest,
|SGEL can not dispose of any of the properties and assets as mentionad hereinabove, except with the prior written consent of the
Company As at June 30, 2023 remaining loan is Re. 107.9686 million (2022: 270.302 million). The management expecls that
amaunt will be settied in next financial y2ar.

2023 2022
---------- Rupees {'000}------—--
Balance at beginning of the year 13.3.1 ‘2,083 24 280
Lean disbursed during the year 37,179 18,737
Repayment received during the year {19,675) {11,934)
Balance at end of the year 28,587 31,083

This includes loan to managing director /chief xecutive officer amounting to Rs. 2.867 millior (2022: Rs. 5.588 million). The laan
was granted in accordance with the Company’s service rules and is deductible against salary and carries no interest. The loan
was fully repaid during the vear '

2023 2022
-------- ~Rupges {'B30}-—--m-—
Ralance at beginhing of the yaar 2,877 5598
Loan disbursed during the year - -
Repayment raceived during the year (2,677) {2,921
Balznce at end of the year - 2,677

SORTLL i
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2023 2022

Note ————————-- —Rupeas ('000)---—-mmemeemem
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS - SHARE IN
JOINT QPERATIONS' INVENTORY
Store, spares and loose tools 5,296,066 4 828,464
trmpairment for slow moving and cbsolete stores, spares
andt loose tools 141 {495,707) (495 707)

4,800,359 4,132,757

Movement of provision for slow moving, obsolete
and in transit stores
Balance at beginning of the year 495,707 495,707

Impairment charge for the year ;
Balance at end of the year 495,707

495,707

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are distinguishable upon usage.

2023 2022
Note s ~Rupees ('030)-r~emrmermem
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Accrued interest receivable on bank deposits 15.1 137,567 160,038

This represents interest accrued on bank depesits carrying mark-up at the rate ranging between 14.50% and 18.50%
per annum (2022: 11.50% and 13.00% per annum).

2023 2022
Note ——-- --Rupees ("000)---—-------=--
TRADE DEBTS
Unsecured - considered good 191,708,859 141,458,170
Unsecured - considered doubtiul 196,700 539,704
191,905,559 141,997 874
Proviston for doubiful debts 16.3 {196,700} {532,704)
191,708,859 141,458 170

Trade debts include overdus amount of Rs. 166,972 million {2022: Rs. 117,764 million) on account of Inter-corporate
circular debt, excluding oil refineries, receivable from gas companies out of which Rs. 116 508 million {2022; Rs.80,718
million} and Rs. 50,467 million (2022: Rs, 37,048 million) is mainly overdue from related parties, Suf Southern Gas
Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited respectively, The management of Company considers this
amount to be fully recoverable because Govemment of Pakistan has been assuming the responsibility to settle the Inter-
Corporate circular debt in the energy sector. The Govermment of Pakistan (GoP} is committed, hence continuously
pursuing for satisfactory settlement of inter-corporate circular debt issue, however, the progress is slower than
expected resulting in accumulation of Company's trade debts. The Company recognizes interest / surcharge, if any, on
delayed payments from customers only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
income recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest / surcharge is subsegquently
resolved, which is when the interest/ surcharge on delayed payments is received by the Company. As disclosed in note
3.3 to these financial statements, SECP has deferred the applicability of ECL model till December 31, 2024 on financial
assets due directly /7 utimately from GaP in consequence of the circular debt.

Total amount due from related parties as on June 30, 2023 is Rs 182,673 million (2022: Rs 130,502 million} and
maximum amount due at the end of any manth during the year was Rs 182,673 million (2022 Rs 130,502 million). For
party wise details refer note 42,

“SIFHL .-
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2023 2022
------------- Rupeess ("N00)-ceroaaunm:
Movement in provision for doubtful debts
Balance at baginning of the year 539,704 -
Provision during the year - 539,704
Reversal of provision [343,004) -
Balance at end of the year 196,700 539,704
LOANS, ADVANCES ANMD OTHER RECEIVABLES
Securad
Advances against salary to staff 24,201 9,813
Unsecured and considerad good
Advances to suppliers 3,063 806
Receivable from ISGS 171 150,000 -
Payment of security services on behalf of subsidiaries 231 3971
Other receivables - 1,631
177,595 12 641

This represents the funds provided to ISGS by the Company under stop-gap arrangement.

SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Software maintenance fee 11,308 4,128
Insurance 8,742 7,159
20,090 11,287

DEPOSIT WITH THE GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN
FOR EQUITY STAKE IN REKC DIQ PROJECT

Deposit far equity stake in Reko Dig project 181 - 34,301,231

On March 17, 2022 the Government of Pakistan (GoP), through the Federal Cabinet, ratified the decision of the
Economic Coordination Committee (the Degision) which approved inter alia issuance of directions 1o the Company,
Pakistan Petroleum Limited {PFL} and Qil and Gas Development Company Limited {OGDCL) {collectively the SOEs) ta
participate in recanstitution of a joint mining preject at Reko Dig {the Project}). As part of the setilement arrangement,
Barrick Gold Corporation (Barrick} will be retaining 50% shareholding in Tethyan Copper Company Pakistan (Private)
Limitedt (TCCP) along with operatorship, whareas the other sharaholdar, Antofagasta PLC will exit TCCP upoen receipt
of USD 200 million and subject to other conditions precedent. TCCP will be renamed to Reko Dig Mining Company
{Private) Limited (RIOML) as a part of these developments.

Pursuant to the Decision, each SOE was also directed to pay USD 187.5 millian {collectively USED 562.5 million) into an
escrow account maintained by the Hongkeng Shanghai Banking Corporation, and jointly operated by the GoP and
Antotagasta as entry fee which would be utilized towards acquisition of 8.33% interest of each SOE in TCCP. The entry
fee attricutable to the Government of Balochistan (GoB) would be funded by the GoF amounting to USD 337 5 million,
On the basis of the Decision, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to enter inta & non-binding framework
agreement with the GoP, the GoB, PPL, OGDCL and Barrick, which sets out, inter alia, the ownership / transaction
structure, rights, obligations and common objectives of the parties towards facilitating the implementation of the Project
(Framework Agreement). In terms of the Framework Agreement, several conditions were required to be satisfied before
binding arrangements become effective including receipt of administrative and regulatory approvals, execution of
definitive agreements, deposit of USD 900 million in a designated escrow account, stabilization of the fiscal regime and
legislative and judicial validation amongst others. Furthar, interest at the rate of US Prime plus 2% was payable to
Antofagasta iIf the conditions were not satisfied by June 30, 2022.

WFF4L -



20

201

-36-

Subsequent to the Decision and based on written advice from the Finance Division dated March 28, 2022 and approval
of the board of directors, the Company deposited its corresponding share of the entry fee amounting to USD 187.5
millian (Rs 34 301 million} in an escrow account maintained by the Hongkeng Shanghai Banking Corporation, and
jointly operatad by the GoP and Antofagasta. Further, the Company agreed to fund its corresponding share of the
Interest amount as and when accrued and payable.

As the conditions set out in the Framework Agreement were not satisfied by June 30, 2022, the Company deaposited
additional amount of Rs. 1,598.8 million, on account of interest equivalent to US Prime plus 2% on the Company's
depnsit of USD 187 .5 million with the GoP, as mentionad above.

Cn December 9, 2022, the apex court declared the agreement signed with the Canadian company Barrick Geld
Corporation for the development of the Reko Dig ming in Balochistan as "legal'. Conseguently, the Economic
Coordination Committee {(ECG) of the Cabinat approved the opening of an escrow account for depasiting $300 million
for making the project operational. On December 12, 2022, the upper house of parliament approved the Foreign
Investment {Promotion and Protection) Bill, 2022 to promote and protect foreign investment in relation ta the Reko Dig
project,

Upon completion of all the pre-conditions as set out in the Framework Agreement, including but not limited to, the
signing of the definitive agreements and judicial validation by December 15, 2022, the transaction for reconstitution of
Reko Diq project was completed. Consequently the Company's deposit with GoP for aquity stake in Reko Dig Projact
amounting Rs. 35,901.17 million, comprising of Initial deposit and interest payment, was transferrad to Pakistan
Minerals (Private} Limited {PMPL) w.e.f December 15, 2022, under the share subscription agreement dated December
01, 2022 signed between SOEs and PMPL which has been further explained in note 11.

2023 2022
Mote - —Rupees ['000)-=wmasanmnrenn -
Movement during the year
Initial deposit with GeP {§ 187.5 million) 34,301,241 34,301,231
Interest payments 1,558,940 =
Total deposit with GoF for equity stake in Reko Dig Project 35,901,171 34 301,231
Equity stake in Reka Dig against deposit with GoP 11.3 {35,901,171) -
. 34,301,231

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investiment held at amortized cost
Term deposit receipts 201 28,000,000 24,000,000
Interest acerued 258,016 53,955

28,258,016 24,053,955

Investment in term deposit receipts placed with the commercial banks. The breakup is as under;

2023 2022
Credit rating Rating agency Rate seammm s --Rupees ("000)-—--—---v-m
Investments maturing within three months
A1+ VIS 20.25% 2,000,000 =
A1+ FACRA 20.25% 2,000,000 10,000,000
A1+ PAGCRA 21.15% 12,000,000 4,000,000
Interest accrued 258,016 25818
28,258,016 14,026 818
Investmeants maturing afier three months
A1+ VIS - 10,000,000
Interest accrued . 27137
- 10,027,137
Tetal investments 28,258,016 24,053,955

HRATLL.
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This include Rs 5,000 million {(2022: Rs nil} which is subject to restriction as the amount is reserved against funded
rining project reserve which is further explained in note 23.9,

2023 2022
Nota =  cescemmeseeeas Rupees ("000])-—-mmnnnmemen
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash:
- In hand 41 54
- Al banks - savings accounts 2%.1 7,332,145 7,180,548
7,232,186 7,180,603

These carry mark-up at the rate ranging between 12.25% and 20.00% per annum {2022: 6.25% and 13.00% per
annumyj,

2023 2022
Note ~ cemeeeemee—eee Rupess ("000)--—--m-mmnmmem
Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposit receipts (TORs} 201 28,258,016 14 (326,818
Cash and bank balances 21 7,332,186 7,180,603
Accrued interest with up-to 3 manths maturity 15 137,567 160,036
35,727,769 21,387,457
Less: TDRs reserved against Mining project reserve 20.2 ({5,000,000) c
30,727 759 21,367 457
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
----------- Number of shareg---—-----—- mrmemmmeemen e R e RS (000}
Crdinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid
in cash
4,500,000,000 4,500,000,000 45,000,006 45,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2023 2022

----------- Number of shares«e——-—
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid
2,322,121,233 2.132,756,107 incash 23,221,212 21,327 581

2,164,316,961 2,103,260.097 Weighted average shares

The movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital is zs follows:

2023 2022 2023 2022
---------- Number of shares Rupees {"H0jwmmeuenara
At duly 1 2,132,756,107 2.088,512,082 21,327,561 20,885,121
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each paid in
cash issued quring the year 189,365,126 44 244 015 1,823,651 442 440
At June 30 2,322 121,233 2,132 758,107 23,224,212 21,327 561
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Government of Pakistan {GoP) holds 100% shares. Of these shares, two nomineeg directors hold one gqualification share,
each. All ocrdinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. GoP as holder of these shares is
entitled to dividend as declared from time to time and are entilled to voie at general meestings of the Company.

Subsequent to enactment of "Sowvereign Wealth Fund Act, 2023" {the Act}, Pakistan sovereign wealth fund {the Fund} is to
be established by the Government of Pakistan {GoF). Subject to the creation of the Fund, the entire shareholding of the GaP
in the Company is expected o be transferred to the Fund subject to regulatory approvals and other procedural matters.

Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, in its decision on Case No ECC-145/25/2015 dated
December 15, 2018, in respect of the "Funding of Expanditure of Inter State Gas Systermns Private Limited”, approved that the
Company is to fund all project activities of 1ISGSL as a 100% subsidiary company and all Government investments (e.g. from
GIOC) in projects baing undertaken by ISGSL shail be routed through the Company. Pursuant to the foregoing, the Finahce
Division vide its Office Memorandum No. F. 4(2) CF-W2007 dated October 24, 2017 instructed 1SGSL to issue shares {o the
Company being its Parent Company and going ferward the Company is required issue the shares in the name of the
President of Pakistan through Secretary Mio Energy {Petroleum Division) in relation to the Government's investment in
15GSL's projects. Accordingly the increase in share capital of the Company represents Government's invastment in 1ISGEL
ceing routed through the Company.

2023 2022
Nate emmmrnan Rupess {'000)~—---memee
RESERVES
Revenue reserves
General resarve 23z - 2,284,628
Foreign currency translation resaerve 233 1,451,207 383073
Foraign currency translation reserve - associated company 23.4 14,020,097

15,471,304 2,668 598
Capital reserves

Committed cutlay reserve 235 - 20,945 247
Asset insurance reserve 236 - 3,000,000
Azsets acqulisition reserve 237 5,000,000 5,000,000
LNG project reserve 238 - 26,000,000
Mining project reserve 239 20,000,000 -

25,000,000 53,846,247
40,471,304 56,514,848

The Company has appropriated and created these reserves in accordance with the principles of prudence.

The general resarve was crealed to gater for contingencies related to relevant inferest carmied cost based on current
aexploration commitments and other unforesesn events. During the year, this reserve has been revered back to accumulated
profits.

This represents the translation reserve net of related tax of the retranslation of the invastment in the associated company
This represents accumulated balance of translation effect of a foreign operation in Rupeas of assaciated company.

The committed outlay reserve is created for future requirements based on expectad cash outlay ior capital commitments,
decommissioning obligations and liability against relevant interest carried cost, During the year this reserve has been
reverted back to accumulated profits,

The asset insurance reserve has been created for self insurance of investmants in assels like wells, plants, pipelines.
vehicles and furniture & fixture of those joint operations where insurance policy has not heen taken out by the Operator.
During the year, this reserve has been revered back to accumulated prafts.

In view of the Company's business expansion, it is intended o acquire sizable production reserves for which a separate
assel acquisition reserve has been established. The Company plans to continue to build up this reserve in future years
Accardingly, this reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

This reserve Is created to cater funding / financial support for LNG Projects being undertaken by incorporated subsidiary
Pakistan LNG Limitad (PLL) - During the year, this reserve has been reverted back to accurnulated profits.

This reserve is created in view of the future funding requirements for the Reko-Dig project. These reserves are to be funded
for which the Company plan to accurnulate the required furds over the next four years. This reserve is not available for
distributicn to sharehslders. Rafer note 20.2 for funds earmarked against the reserve.
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LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Chue to the joint operators 241
Current portion shown under current liabilities

2023 2022

6,175,225 5,036,503
{1,667,523)  {1,589,557)

4,507,802 3,436,846

This represants lang term kability on account of the Company's carried interest of 5% in the exploration expenditurs of
varipus jaint operations. This expenditure is incurred by the joint operation partners up to the date of comrearcial discovery,
and the amount will be adjusted in five egual annual instalimants, against the Company's share of commercial production in

each respaeciive joint speration.

Mote

Balance at beginning of the year
Unwinding of long term lizbiiity
Payments net off exchange loss
Additions f adjustimants during the year
Discounting of long term liability 35
Unraalized exchanga 1055 on ravaluation
242

Long térm liabilitias in US Dollars have been discounted at a raie of 5.85% (2022: 3.32%).

LOAN FROM NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN (NBP) - SECURED

2623 2022
---------- Rupees ('000)~-mnmnrex

5,036,503 4,331,438

137,133 9,529
{396,714) {109,003}
207,779 214,317
{519,532) (648,288)

1,710,156 1,235,213

6,175,325 5,036,503

2023 2022
Current Hon Total Current ony Tatal
Current Current

----------------- Rupees ('000)------ Rupees (000 j--—--mmm s
Snort term borrowing  25.1
Frincipal amaunt - - - 61,885,166 - 61,805 156
Accrued Interest - - - 2,071,809 - 2,071,809
Long term loan 252
Principat amaunt - 64.3298,131 54,89%.131 5 -
Accrued Interest 5,548 325 - 5,548,325 = = =

5,548,325 64,599,131 70,447,456 813,466,965 - 63,086,865

This represents the short tarm finance facility obtained by the Company frorm Naticnal Bank of Pakistan (MBP) on behalf of
Government of Pakistan (3oF} in order to fulfili the commitment of the GoP towards the Govemment of Balochistan {GoB} in
redation to Reko Dig project. The Company arranged 2 shart term finance facility secured against GoP guarantee drawn for a
pariod of mire morths, with interest calculated at 2-month Karachi Inlerbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) + 0.50% effective from
the date of disbursament i.e. March 31, 2022, and was repayatle directly by the GoP in a singls bultet instalimant. The facility
has been repaid by the Company during the yvear on behalf of GoF by obtaining lang term lcan from NBP.

Balance at beginning of the year

Oraw down during the year

[nterest acerued during the year

Repayment directly made by GaoP
Repaymenis by the Company during the year
Balance at end of the yvear

MR74L

2023 2022
----------- Rupess {'000)--------—-
63,966,965 =

2,861,322 61,895,156

4,168,550 . 2071809

{6,238,359) -
(84,776,478)

_ - 53965085
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This reprasents the lang term finance facllity obtained by the Company from National Bank of Pakistan {NBPF) in order o
settle the short tarm finance facility obtained by the company on behalf of the GoP in order to fulfili the commitment cf the
Govermment of Pakistan {GoP) towards the Government of Balochistan (GoB) in relation to Reko Dig project. The loan
carries interest calculated at 6-month Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) + 0.20% effective from the date of
disbursement. The loan was availed for a tenor of seven years {inclusive of a two-year grace period} with eftect from
December 31, 2022 and is repayable in equal semi annual installments of principal amount starting from June 30, 2025 The

loan is secured against a GoP guarantee and letter of comfort.

Balance at beginning of the year
Draw down during the yvear
Imerest accrued during the year
Repayments during the year
Balanice at end of the year

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Deferred tax lability
Movement in the deferred tax liability:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Credited to the staterment of profit or loss
Debited to statement of other comprehensive income

Defarrad tax comprises of the following;:
Taxalde temporary difference arising in respect of:

Accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Development and production expenditura

Provision for decommissioning cost

Unwinding of long term liability (carried interest)

Effects of translation of investment In a foreign associate

Deductinle temporary difference anising in respect of;

impairment of stores, spares and loose tools
Unrealized exchange gain f {loss}

Work in progress

Expenditure of exploration and prospecting
Provisizn for windfall levy on oil / condensate
Remeasurement of employees' retiremeant benefits
Met impairment loss on financial assets

Share of loss from associate

JA7LY -
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2023 2022
e Rupees {'000)----mmnmumms
64,899,131 3
5,548,325
70,447 456
2023 2022
et Rupges (000 ~rmmmaes
315,380 2,575,896
2,579,898 5,870,868
(2,639,448) (3,363,449
375,430 724981
315,580 2,679,888
2023 2022
---------- Rupees {'000}-----mmummme
7,330,655 B.301.,873
5,275,558 4,508,753
658,643 131,817
525,794 204 443
483,736 90,068
14,274,336 11,326,960
{247.854) {218,111}
{1,956,638) {1.083,672)
{198,285) =
{2,070,487) {1,688 404)
{8,642.719) {5,017.560)
{41,507) {23,270)
{98,350} (2374709
(702,6686) {(d77.575)
{13,958,506}  {8.747,082)
315,880 2,579,828
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Defarred tax has been calcUlated at the current effective tax rate of 50% {2022 44%).The increass in tax rate from 44% to
B0% was substantively enacted on June 26, 2023 as a result of imposition of revised super tax rates and is effective from
July 1, 2023 As a result, the relevant deferred tax balances have been remeasured. The impact of the change in tax rate has
been recognized in tax expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items previously recognized outside
prafit or logs. For the Company, such items include in particular remeasurements of post-employment henefit liatilities and

the translation gain on foreign associate.

PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COST
Provision for decommissioning cost
Provision for decommissioning cost

Balance at the beginning of the year

Provision [ (reversal) made during the year

Revisions due to change in estimates

Revaluation exchange loss / {gain)

Unwinding of discount on provision for decommissioning cost

Provision made during the year is distributed as under

Share in Joint operations” fixed assets
Share in Jaint operations' fixed assets - CWIP
Development and production assets

Adjustment made during the vear is distributed as under

Share in joint aperations’ fixed assets

Share in joint operations’ fixed assets - CWIP
Exploration and evaluation assels
Development and production assets
Operating sxpenses

Significant financial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate per annum
Inflation rate per annum

WHYL.

Note
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27.2
273

35

6.2
8.3

6.2
6.3

34

2023 2022
----------- YT ) E—
14,408,445 8,240,916
8,240,916 7,343,545
2,487,657 562 831
{714,814)  (1926,151)
3,461,250 1,868,326
523,436 394,365
14,408,445 8,240,916
752,594 95,424
34,958 23,669
1,660,105 443,728
2,497,657 562,831
{47,592) {543,078
{1,649) {18,805)
5 {21,571)
{273,315 (997 475)
{351,758) (347,222)
(714,844) __ {1,928 151)
7.5% ~it4% G0%~5.6%
5.81% 5.00%
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2023 2022
Note  ccmmuamemcniens Runces {"000}-———----

DEFERRED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Accumitiating compensated absences 28.1 45537 £4,797
Accumutating compensated absences
Fresent value of defined benefit obligation at
beginning of the year 64,797 39,183
Curren: service ¢ost 5,480 4,828
Interest cosi 5,250 3,176
Paymznis made during the year (51,794} {16,285}
Remeasurement of accumtlating leave ahsences 21,804 33,994
Present value of defined benefit ohligation at end of the year 45,537 84 747
The mgvement in liability recegnized in the statement of financia!
position is as follows:
Lizbility at beginning of the year : 64,737 39,183
Expense for the year 52,554 41,999
Payments to the fund during the year {51,794} {16,385)
Liability at end of the year 45537 64,797

The remeasurament loss arising from:

Experience Adjustments 21,804 33,924
Financial Assumpiions :

21,804 33,594

Principie actuarial assumations: e —FPerCentagee—-e——— e

Valuation discount rate (%) 15.75% 13.50%
Salary increase rate (%) 14.75% 12.50%
Sensitivity analysis Rupees ('000)-—-—-—mum -

Defined Benefit Obligation = 45,537 64,?_9_2’__
1% increase in discount rate e AR BT : 58,368
% decrease in discount rate 49338 72,202
1% increase in salary rate Al 49,268 72,347
1% decrease in salary rate 42,164 _ _ 58,310

For the yaar
June 30, 3024

txpected employse benefit cost to be recognized in statement of profit or loss Rupees (000}

Currant service cost 7450

Interrst expanse T 1 7
14,622

Description of risks to the Company
The compensated abﬁences _ptans axpcse the Company to the following risks:

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount ratz is based on corporaie / government
bonds, any dearzase in bond yields will increase plan liabilities,

Salary increase / inflation risk - The rigk that ihe actual salary increase are higher than the expesied salary
increase, where hanefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an
impact on liability.
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- Martality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected ie. the actual life

S0RTLL

expeciancy is [onger than assumed.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the calculation.

2023 2022
Note - Rupees ("000)----—--—--—mn--
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors due to joint operations 3,905,427 3.634,748
Accrued liabilities 202,386 37,039
Current account with subsidiary - I1SGSL 291 476,867 192 198
Current account with subsidiary - PILL 29.2 2,536,997 1,307,074
Payable to gratuity fund 29.3 66,060 68,539
Fayable to provident fund 4,200 3o
Sales tax payable 822,487 BO7938
Other payables 5,066 5,066
Levies payable 13,713 11,358
Rovyalty payable 888,657 1,317,878
Provision far windfall levy on oil f condensate 3114 17,285,437 11,403,545
26,207,297 18,788,383

This amount includes Rs. 478,018 thousand being net of the advance tax paid by the Company on behalf of
ISGSL and the amount recoverable from the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) on behaif of ISGSL under group

taxation.

This amount is net of the advance tax paid by the Company an behalf of PLL and the amount recoverable from

the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) on behalf of PLL under group taxation.

2023 2022

—————————aeea- Rupees {("000)-emeuemaneneas
Gratuity fund
The amount recognized in the statement of financial position is as follows:
Fresent value of defined benefit obligation 292,733 224 062
Fair value of plan assets {226,673) {155,523)
Net liability at end of the year 66,060 68,539
The movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 224,062 163,253
Current service cost 32,696 29,443
Interest cost 28,380 16,581
Benefits paid {13,479) (23,886)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 21,074 38,666
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year 292,733 224 082
The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 155,523 121,872
Contributions 58,785 41,286
Payment by employer on behalf of plan 12,754 2,891
Expected return on plan assets 23,851 14,465
Benefits paid {13,479) (23 886)
Remeasurement of plan assets {7,761) {1,308)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 226,673 155,523
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The movement in asset / {liability) recognized in the statement
of financial position is as follows:

Liability at beginning of the year

Expense for the year

Remezasurement loss recognized in other comprehensive income
during the year

Payments to the fund during the year

Liahility at end of the year

Detail of plan assets

Cash at bank
Term deposits

2023 2022

------------- Rupees ("000)----—eusrsssnune=
68,539 41,285

37,226 31,559

28,835 39,971
{68,538) (44,277}

BE&,06D 88,538

140,370 16,721

86,303 138,802

226,673 165,623

Funds covered were invested within limits specified by regulations governing investrment of approved retirement
funds in Pakistan. The gratuity plan is a defined benefit final salary plan invested through approved trust fund.
The fund is governad under Trusts Act, 1882, Trust Desd and Rules of Fund, Companies Act, 2017, The
Ingome Tax Crdinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002, The trustees of the fund are responsible to plan
administration and investment. The Company appoints the trustees. All trustees are employees of the

Caompany.

Amounts reccgnized in statement of profit and loss:

Current service cost
Met interest cost

Amounts recognized in statement of other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement [oss recognized on defined benefit obligation
Remeasuremeant |0ss recognized on plan assats

The remeasurement loss arising from:

Experience Adjustrments
Financial Assumptions

Principle actuarial assumptions:

Valuation discount rate {%)

2023 2022

-------------- Ripees {'000}----mmmmeemmmum-
32,699 29,443

4,529 2,316

37,225 31,559

21,074 38,666

B 7,761 1,305
28,835 39,971

28,835 39,971

ZB,SE_L 39,971
15.75% 13.50%
14.75% 12.50%

Salary increase rate (%)
Mortality Rates

SA3FL0.

Adjustied SLIC 2001-2005
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------------- Rupees {('000)---=-=-mcacacarm-
Sensitivity Analysis
Defined Benefit Obligation 292,733 224 062
1% increase in discount rate 248,894 201,872
1% decrease in discount rate 304,812 250 262
1% increase in salary rate 305,028 250,452
1% decrease in salary rate 248,195 201,265
For the year
ending
June 30, 2024
Expected defined benefit cost to be recognized In statement of profit or loss Rupess ('000)
Current service cost 43111
Interest expense 42 710
Interest income on plan assets {38,552}
46,269
Expected contributions to gratuity fund 66,060

Description of risks to the Company
The gratuity plans expose the Company to the following risks:

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate / government
bonds, any decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Salary increase / inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary
increase, where benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an
impact on liabiity,

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected ie. the actual iife
expectancy is longer than assumed.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the calculation.

Investment risk - The risk of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

2023 2022
PROVISION FOR TAXATION Note  seeeemeecemaeand Rupees {"000}—~-ma-memmmememmt
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,571,974 422 041
Income tax paid during the year (33,023,266) {18,504,129)
Recoverable from FBR on behalf of PLL
under group taxation (1,621,189} (1,507,315}
Recoverable from FBR on behalf of I1ISGSL
under group taxation (284,794} (191,224}
Provision for current taxation for the year 40 39,193 482 25,352 601
Balance at the end of the year 8,836,207 4 571 874
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The tax authorities had amended the assessments of the Company for the tax years 2003 to 2020 raising &n
aggregate demand of Rs. 24,650 million, which primarily relates to depletion allowance, development arnd
production expenditure, decommissioning cost, super tax, unrealized exchange losses, rebate on donation and
tax credits under sections 61, 65 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 The Company had paid the said
amounts under protest to avoid penalties under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001.

An amount of Rs 14 633 million cut of the said aggregate demand relates to depletion allowance. The aforesaid
matter has been decided in favor of the Company by Islamabad High Court for tax years 2004, 2005, 2008,
2009 and 2010, however the mattar has been faken up by tax authorities in the Honorable Supreme Court of
FPakistan wharein it is at pre admission stage and leave to appeal is not yet granted to the tax authorities.

The above-mentioned amount includes depletion allowance of Rs 3,686 million for which the Commissioner
Appeals {CIR - A} has decided the matter in favor of the Company, however, the matier has heen taken up by
the tax authorities in the Appellate Tribunal which is pending for adjucation.

The Company, bassd on the advice of its legal counsel, is confident that it has sound grounds to defend the
case an the aforesaid issue. However, considering the fact that maiter has not yet attained finality due to its
pending status before Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company as a matter of abundant caufion,
has continued o provide for tax liabilities primarily in respect of depletion allowance, super {ax, development
and production expenditure and tax credits under sections 65 in the books of accounts. In case the matter
refating to the said issues are decided in faver of the Company, the amount provided for as well as paid under
protest in the past will be credited to the Profit or Loss for that year,

2023 2022
Note  -—rocemeemens Rupees {'BO0)-—~~mmenmomees
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Relating to carried cdst liability 31.11 2,907,151t 1,765 033
Sales tax contingenay 311.2 18,177,837 18,177 837
20,684,557 18,842 870

This represents contingencies in respect of 5% carried cost of the discovered fields where Declaration of
Commercialities (DOCs) have not yet been submilted at the year end and for trose Development and
Production leases where the Company's gstimates varies with those of the operator.

The Federal Board of Revenue {FBR} issued a show calse notice to the Company in respect of non-
applicakility of zaro percent sales tax on crude/condensate supplies from 2008-10 to 2013-14 as per SRO No.
545(1)/2003, which ingludes the condition of "impert and supplies thereof.” The Company disputed the nolice
an the grounds that it does not impart crude f condensate and has filed writ petition with Islamabad Migh Court
which is pending for adjudication. The estimated tax contingency has been calculated hased on the =ales tax
amount involved, penalty, and default surcharge.

The income tax assessment for tax year 2022 and 2021 was amended by the Additional Commissicner {nland
Revenue (ADCIR) by making certain disallowances and add backs including depletion allowance, development
and production expenditure, actuarial loss, provision for windfall levy etc. and created an additional tax demand
of Re 4,917 .94 million and Rs 4 046.82 million for tax year 2022 and 2021 respectively. The Company filed
appeal against the order of ADCIR before CIR (A) which s pending for agjudication.

Comtingency with respect to imposition of Windfall Levy on c¢il / condensate

The Company is a working interest owner ini Tal, Mirpur Khas, Khipro, Mehar, Mubarak, Tando Allah Yar,
Gurgalot, Sinjhore, Bitrism, Khewarl and Nim Blocks whose Petroleum Concession Agreemants (PCAs) wera
executed under the framewark of Patroleum Folicies 1594 and 1897



Ll Ll Wl

3115

31.18

47-

Subsequently, in pursuance to the option available under Petroleum Palicy 2012, the Company along with otnher
working interest owners signed Supplemental Agreements (GAs) with the Goavernment of Pakistan (GoP) for
conversion of eligible existing and future discoveries under afaresaid PCAs to the Petroleum Policy (PF), 2012,
Under the said arrangament, price regimes prevailing in PP 2007, PP 2009 and PP 2012 in terms of PP 2012
shall be applicable, correlated with the spud dates of the wells in the respective policies starting from November
27, 2007, The conversion package as dzfined in the SAs included windfall levy on natural gas only.

On December 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy (Peiroleum Division) notified amendments in Petroleum Policy
2012 after approval from the Council of Common Interests (CClY dated November 24, 2017 which included
imposition of Windfall Levy on Qi f Condensate (WLQ). The sald notification required the Suppicmental
Agreements already executed for conversion from Petroleum policies of 1994 and 1997 to be amended within
90 days, failing which the working interest owners will not remain eligitle for gas price incentive. Directorate
General Petrcleum Concessions (DGPC), on January 3, 2018, required all exploration and production
companies to submit suppiemental agreements to incorporate the aforementioned amendments in Petraleum
Concession Agreements (PCAs) signed under 1984 and 1997 policies, for execution within the stipulated time
as specified above or to forgo the incentives available for gas pricing.

Based on legal advice, the Company is of the view that terms of the existing PCAs as amended to-date through
the supplemental agreements already executed cannot unilaterally be amended by the GoP through
introduction of amendment nor can the GoP lawfully require and direct that such amendments be made to
include imposition of WLO retrospectively and nor the GoP unilaterally hold and direct that the gas price
incentive to which the Company is presenily entitled to and receiving under the conversion package as
gnshrined under the supplemental agreement stands withdrawn or the Company ceasz2s to be eligible for such
incentive in cage of fallure to adopt the unilateral amendments in the existing PCAs. Accordingly, the
aforementioned amendments as well as the subsequent letters requiring implementation of the amendmenis
are not enforceable or binding upen the Company,

The Company along with cother joint operation Partners has challenged the applicability of WLO against the
backdrop of supplemental agreements already executed pursuant to PP 2012 in the Honorable [slamabad High
Court which has granted stay order against the CCI decision dated November 24, 2017 on imposition of WO,
it i3 pertinent te note that all writ pelitions on subject matter have been consolidaled by the Honorable High
Court. The Petitions are pending with date in office.

The cumulative impact of Windfall Levy on oil (WLO) since application of incremental gas prices up till June 30,
2023 amount to approximately Rs 27,602 million {2022; Rs 21,718 million). As mentioned above, the Company
based on the advice of legal counsels, is confident that it has valid grounds to defend the aforesaid issue in the
Court and that the issue will be decided in its favor. However, without prejudice to the Company's legal
contention and as a matter of prudence, the Company has booked provision of Rs. 17,285 million to
prospectively account for the impact of WLO from the date of the SRO i.e Decembar 27, 2017 till June 30,
2023, The provision has been adequately disclosed in note 29.

Unitizaticn of Salamat f Adam West Field Reserves

A reservoir communication study by an indepandent third party, is currently in progress to defermine reserve
volume estimates and level of communication between Salamat field (operated by UEPL: GHPL Working
Interast (W) 26%) and Adarm Waest field (operated by PPL; GHPL W Nil). If reserveir communication between
the fizlds is proved then subject to final results of the sludy, agreement of concerned parties and Director
general petroleum concession's (DGPC) approval, financial exposure may arnise equivalent to revenue from
additional production from the reservor to be offset by royalty 7 OPEX / tax and cother related expenses
incurred.

Other cantingencies

As part of the investment in Pakistan International Qil Limited (PIOL), each associate of the consartivm
compantes including GHPL have provided, joint and several, parent company guaraniees to Abu Dhabl
National Qil Company (ADNOC) and Supreme Council for Financial and Economic Affairs Abu Dhabi, UAE to
quarantee the obligations of the associata, PIOL. The exposure against the said guarantee as at year end
amounts to US$ 195 million (2022: US$ 225 million).
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On December 17, 2018, Atiock Refinery Limited (ARL} filed a writ pelition against the Company before
Istamabad High Court and has disputed and withbeld amounts invoiced to it prior to the signing of sates
agresment i e March 13, 2018 on account of adjustment of premium or discount ag announced by Saudi
Arameo for deliveries to Asian cuslomers ¢ destinations under the sales zgreement. The amouni withheld and
disputed by ARL amounts to Rs 411 million (2022: Rs 411 miliion). The Company believes that the debit noles /
invoices have been raised in accordance with the sales agreements signed with the GoP and ne provision is
required in this respect.

cCommitments

312.1 3,224,789

Minimem work commitment 3,636,842

This represents the Company's share in the minimum work commitmeants relating to non-cperated jéint
nperations and the Company's own capital budget.

As part of the Shareholders Agreement wiih the consortium partners in PIOL, associate, the Company has
commiited to invest up to US$ 100 million in PIOL during the next five vears from 31 August 2021, out of which
USE 38 milion has been invested till 30 June 2023 (2023: US$ 25 million). The remaining amount of US3 85
million {2022: US% 75 million} will e invested in subsequent years

As per the Joint Venture Agreement, for recanstitution of the Reko Dig proiect referred in note 11.3, the
Company has entared into a JV agreement with stakeholder urder which it has committed.USS 388 million,
adjustabie for inflation, to fund its conlributing interest of ali cost and expenses of 1m.c projeét. Thae Company
has also provided a cornorate guarantes in this respect. -

2023 2022

FKEVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET = crermssacucim rugees {"0D0) e -runevuacen —
Gross gales:
Local

- Natural gas 59,380,609 51,198,837

-Crude oil 48,803,085 41,102,932

- Liqquefied petroleurn gas 13,238,942 11,401,864
Export

- C_rude il 7,686,164 7,641,030

Govarnmant levies:

13¢ 168 Y60

111,344 634

-1

- Sales tax {12,218,065) (11,332,627}
- Excise duty, {573,050 (701,942}
- Petrofeum development levy {341,950) {349,419)
{13,133,087) {12 383 988)
126,035,663 93,960,646

Contract liakilities

The Company has racognized the following contract liabilities related to sontracts with customers of liquefied

pelrclzum gas (LPG)

Z023 2022
“merme s FLipees (000} --rwm e
Movement in contract liabiliies
Balance at b2ginning of the year 87,253 §z,097
Advzinces received during ihe year 5,230,203 4,388,540
Transfarred to revenue during the year {5,205 854) {4,401.384)
Balance at end of the year 1,703 67,35

WxIgS
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2023 2022
Note ~  ——eomemeeeees Rupees {'000----wmmmmmime
ROYALTY AND OTHER LEVIES
Royalty 33.1 13,864,396 10,505,840
Windfali levy 332 1,368,382 763,551
15,262,778 11,369,391
Royalty and other levies charged by the Government of Pakistan.
This pertains to preduction from Gambat South, Dhok Sulian and Shah Bandar,
OPERATING EXPENSES
Joint operation's operaling expenses 341 10,973,959 8,818,052
Depreciation 6.4 2,611,052 2,581,680
Amortization of development and production assets 9 4,732,174 3.805 248
Irmpairment 342 442,428 1,232,021
Decommissioning cost actualized during the year 65,970 07
Feversal due to change in decommissioning cost estimates 271 ~ (3914,758) (347,222}
18,410,825 16,161,786

It represents the Company's share in operating expenses of joint operation mainly comprising of parsennel cost, field /
contract services, repair and maintenance, workovers, travelling ete.

2023 2022
Note — ceeememrancennd fupess ("000)--— - —-
Impairment
Impairment an property, plant and equipment 8.5 104,076 459,808
Impairment on development and production assets G 300,352 772,213
412,428 1,232,021

During the currant year, the Company carmried out imnairmant testing of its joint operations assats, as required under IAS
36 - ‘lmpairment of Assets’ to assess whether there is any provision reguired cn these assets. Based on the
assesament, management has made a provision of impairment on property plant and squipment, development and
production assets as specified in above note.

The Company considers the relationship betwaen international oil prices, production prefies, petroleum reserves and
carrying valiie of its joint operation investments, amongst other factors, whan reviewing for indicaters of impairment. As
at June 340, 2023, the estimates of future production profiles of producing / discovered fislds within the Jeoint operations
have revized based on latest technical information, indicating a potential impairmenit,

For the purpase of carrying out impairment testing, each joint operation has been considered a separate cash generating
unit and the recoverable value of the each joint operation invesiment has been separately determined and cumpared
with the respective camying value of the assets of that joint oparation.

As a result of change in estimates of fulure production profiles of the Mehar concession ( the CGU 3. the CGU has been
written down to its recoverable amount of Rs 2,719 million , which is based on ‘'valus-in-use’ computations. In assessing
the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to theair prasent value, using a post-tax discount rate that is
based en the existing policy rale prevailing within the country. The discount rate applied lo cash flow projections is
15.16% (2022: 11.88%) per annum. As a result, impaiment loss of 412 miliion is recognized which has been
respectively allacated to the property plant and equipment {PPE) and development and production {D&F) assets af the
CGU as disclosed in note 34 2

i1
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2023 2022
Note e Rupees {'D000}—wrwmmrrm-mmme
FINANCE INCOME f (COSTS)
Finance Incomse
Finance income from financial assets
Return on bank deposits 2,863,833 1,136,271
Return an term deposit receipts 3,958,113 3,431,349
Interest on long term receivable from GoP 12 5,548,325 g
Interest on loan to subsidiaries 267,861 354,088
12,628,132 4922618
Finance income from non financial assets
Gain on long term liability due to change in estimate 241 519,532 646,289
Finance Income 13,157,664 5,568 907
Finance Cost
Unwinding of discount an provision for decommissioning
cost 271 (923,436) {394,365}
Unwinding of discount on long term liability (137,133) (9,829}
Interest on long term loan 25 {5,548,325) =
Bank charges {1,377) {1,438)
Finance cost (6,610,271} {405,630}
MNet Finance income 6,547,393 5,163,277
EXPLORATION AND PROSPECTING EXPENDITURE
Cost of dry and abandoned wells 8 7,160 388,609
Prospecting expenditure 440,743 207,326
447,903 685,935
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 371 946,049 508,075
Travelling and conveyance 10,274 4,060
Repairs and maintenance 7,438 5,866
Rent 15,427 15,501
Communications 1,650 1,580
LHilities 14,484 11,510
Training and seminars 23,612 1,524
Printing and stationery 2,552 2,487
Advertisemeant 8,484 1,970
Entertainment 4,209 2124
Legzal and profassional charges 14,502 5708
Auditars’ remuneration and tax services 37.5 6,450 5,439
Fesg and subscription §,244 3,688
Software maintenance fee 41,867 37 944
Insurance 10,945 13,860
Business development 272,475 83 865
Corporate social responsibility 70,250 -
Intemship program of Ministry of energy - 2,368
Amortization of intangible assets 7 6,655 18,212
Depreciation 6.4 22,291 23,620
Security services 4,250 4,115
Others 5007 4214
1,494,115 763,140

SN
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371 It includes Rs. 94.004 million (2022: Rs. 90.927 million) in respect of post employment benefits.

37.2 The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for the remuneration of the Chief Executive
Officer and Executives are as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Executives
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupees ("000)

Short term emplovee benefits
Managerial remuneration 60,704 42,633 471,980 308624
Bonus - Note 37.2.1 23,903 - 196,128 =

Post employment benefits
Company's contribution to

Provident fund 2,582 1,733 19,480 12,282

Gratuity benefit 7473 8,096 58,108 58,606

Other long term employment

benefit 3,495 4,676 27174 33,848

Reimbursable expenses 220 207 2,380 1,382
98,377 57,344 775,250 414,752

Number of persons 1 1 53 38

Executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds
twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year

37.21 Bonus includes acecruals of expected bonus payment for financial years ended June 22 and June 23.

37.3 Key management personnel

Key management personnel comprises chief executive, chief financial officer, company secretary and senior
general managers of the Company.

2023 2022
------------- Rupees {"000}---—-—---——----

Managerial remuneration 134,104 113,473
Bonus - Note 37.2.1 53,268 o
Post employment benefit 22,187 26,038
Cther long term employment benefit 7,721 12,445
Reimbursable expenses 220 222

217,490 152,178

374 Fee paid to non-execuiive directors for attending the Board of Directors meetings amounted to Rs. 37.7
million {2022: Rs. 25 million).

2023 2022
-------------- ~Rupees {'000)-rearammmnn
37.5 Auditors' remuneration and tax services

Statutory audit fee 4,278 3,599
Report on consolidated financial staterments 414 345
Report on compliance of Public Sector Gompanies (Corporate

Governance) Rules 2013 138 116
Decommissioning certification 966 812
Out of pocket expenses 504 342
Tax services 150 1,225

02740 6,450 5,430
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OTHER EXPENSES Note

Exchange loss
Windfall levy on oil f condensate

OTHER INCOME
Other income from non financial assets

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Signature bonus
Others

Fair Value Adjustment Reserve- Subsidiary

TAXATICN
Current

Charge for the current year
Charge for prior year

Defarred

Credit for the current year 28

Reconciliation of tax charge for the year:

Accounting profit
Tax rate

Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 50% (2022 44%)

Tax effact of:

Unwinding of discount on provision of decommissioning cost
Exchange loss / (gain} an provision of decommissioning cost
Change in estimates related to provision of decommissioning cost
Depletion allowance

Income chargeable to tax at reduced comporate rate

Prior years charge

Difference in tax and accounting depreciation

Effect of change in tax rate

Interest on loans from subsidiaries

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year Rupees
Weighted average ordinary shares Number

2023 2022
-------------- Rupees ('000)-----—---—-mumn
5,274,568 2,074,799
5,881,892 4,895,336
11,158,460 7,070,135
328,571 1,003
- 31,500
21 394
328,592 32,897
- 116,298
328,592 149,185
39,193,482 25,352,601
84,953 -
39,278,435 25,352 601
{2,639,448) (3,363,449)
36,638,987 21,988,152
85,799,421 85,179,475
50% 44%
42,899,711 28,678,969
461,718 173,521
1,730,598 822,063
268,152 {658,812)
(8,304,690) (7,396,793)
{511,924) 74,107
{57,118) -
- (303,789)
257,006 655,414
{104,466} {155,528)
(6,260,724) (6,689,817)
36,638,987 21,889,152

49,160,434,000
2,164,316,961

43,190,323,089

2,103,260,087

| S

Earnings per share - basic

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Gompany.

RIS -

Rupees

22.71

2033
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following detail shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities. it does not incluge fair value information as the carrying amount is a reascnable
approximation of fair value as the cumrent financial assets and fiabilities are shart term and some financial assets are also interest bearing. Further, the financial assets due
directly / ultimately from GoP carries contractual right and entitlerment to receive interest on late payment and is exempt from ECL accounting / disclosure as disclesed in note
3.3. The non current financial assets are also interest bearing.

Carrying amount

2023 2022

s T e S vl mae B o N ooos R e Y

e R v [ i

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets classified as amortized cost:

Receivable from GoP 70,447 456 63 966,965
Short term investment 28,258,016 24,053,955
Loans f advances to staff 122,888 40,596
Loan to subsidiaries 4,329 587 5,603,733
Trade debts- net 191,708 859 141,458 170
Cther receivables 150,231 2022
Accrued interest receivable 137,567 160,036
Cash and bank balances 7.332.186 7,180,603
302,486,790 242 466,381
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities classified as amortized cost:
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBF} - secured 70,447 456 63,566 965
Long term liabilities 6,175,325 5,035 503
Trade and other payables 3,019,600 6,497 013
84,642 380 75,500 480
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Credit guality of financiz! assets

The ciedit quality of the compaey's financiai acsets have been assessed below by referonce to external credit ralings of counterparties determined by The Pakistan Gregit Rating
Agency Limited (PACRA] and JOR - VIS Cradit Rating Company Limited {(JCR-VIS). The counterpariies for which exterral credit ratings were not avaiable have been assessed
by reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical infarmation for any defauits in meeting obligations.

Trada Debts
Counter parties without external crect rating
Bue from associated companias
Oiners

Leans, atvances, deposits and other receivahles
Counter parties without external credit rating
Due from associaten companies
Others

Receivabie from Government of Pakistan {GoP}
Counter parties without external credit rating

Bank Balances
- Counter partias with external credit raiing

Short term Investments
Counter parties wilh exdernal credit rating

Accrued Interest receivabls
Ceunier parties with external credlit rating

SILUATEL -

Rating 2023 2022
ammmmm e ~—~Rupges ('008)----nmmmmmeeenee -
182,859,263 130,502 465
8,849,594 10,955,705
191,708,859 141,458,170
4,479,818 5,803,733
122,388 22,180
4,602,706 5,625 893
70,447,455 53,965,965
AT+ 1,332,145 7,180,548
A+ 28,258,116 24 053,955
AT+ 137,567 160,035
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Interest rates vsed for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the govemment yield curve at the
reporting dats plus an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assets are lang term financial instruments
with floating rate, there is no significant difference in market rate and the rate of instrument, fair value significantly
approximates to carrying value,

Determination of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement andfor disclosure purposes
based on the following methods.

Non - derivative financial assets

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes.

Non - derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and
interast cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Financial risk factors
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's obiectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital, Further guantitative
disclosures are included throughout thaese financial statements.

The Beard of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to refiect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company. through its training
and management standards and procedures, gims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which al|
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board's audit and risk management committee oversees how management manitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policias and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in refation to the
risks faced by the Company. The audit and risk management committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audil
Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported io the audit and risk managermeant committes.

WAFAL-
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will not mest its obligation under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading 1o a financial loss. Company's credit risk is primarily altributable to its trade debts, loan to subsidiaries,
short term investments and its balances at banks.

Trade debts

Trade debis are essentially due from cii refining companies, gas distribution companies and power generation companies
and the Company does not expect these companies to fail to meet their obligations. Majority of sales to the Company's
customers are made on the basis of agreements approved by the GoP.

Sale of crude oil and gas is at prices specified in relevant agreements and / or as notified by the Government authorities
hased on agreements with customers or relevant applicable petroleum palicy or Patroleum Concession Agreements. Prices
of iquefied petrofeum gas are delermined by the Company subject to maximum price notified by OGRA.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect ol trade
debts that are due directly / uliimately from the GoP till June 30, 2023 as per policy disclosed in note 3.3 to the financial
statements.

Others

The credit risk relatad to balances with banks, in term deposits and saving accounts, are managed by investing in liquig
securities and maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A While hank
balances and investments in term deposits are alsc subject to the requirements of IFRS g, the identified impairmiznt foss
was immatearial as the counter parties have reasonably high credit ratings.

The credit risk on advances to suppliers and loan to subsidiaries is minimal as the Compzny has long established
relationship with the entitiss. Subsidiaries are mainly state owned enterprises, and management dces not expect non-
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. The GCompany estabhishes an allowance for
impairment that represents iis estimate of incurred losses in respect of loan to subsidiaries.

2023 2022
Short
Short Term Long Term Term Long Term Credit rafing Agency

Mational Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA A1+ AAA PACRA
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA A1+ AAA PACRA
Bank Alfzlah Limited A1+ Al A-1+ Al PACRA
Hatib Banls Limited A+ AAA A1+ AAA VIS

MCB Bank At AAA A1+ AAA PACRA
United Bank Limited AT+ AAA A1+ AAA VIS

Bank of Punjab A-1+ AA+ A1+ Ab+ PACRA

N
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The Compzny's maximum exposure to cedit sk for the components of statement of fnancial positon af Juna 39, 2023 and 2022 is equat tr the camying amounts of firancial assels as given below:
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Receivabiz from Government of Pakistan (Gol) T0,447, 356 53,565 845
Loan to staff &4,587 31052
Trade dekts - net 131,708,859 141 458 472
Lean to subsidiaries 4,329 587 RBOE 723
Advances to staff and other receivables 74,532 11,835
Ageruad inlerest receivable 137.567 164,028
Short leom investments 28,258,018 24,055,955
Cash and bank balances 7,332,186 7,180 607
202,496,750 242 466,250
Fre Coinpany has maintained saving accounts wath different banks having eradit rafing a5 mentioned below,
Credit rating Rating agency
A1+ PACRA 5,934,501 5,019,026
A-1+ JCR-WIS 1,397,164 2,161,523
7332145 7 180,548
Credit ratings for short term investments disclesed in note 20.1 to the financial statements.
42.2.2 Impairmant losses
The aging of trade debts at the reperting date iz as follows:
202" 2022
Groas Dabts impaired Gross Debls Impaired
----------- Rupees {040} Rupees {000)--——---—-—--—--
Net past due 20,998,596 20,714,101 -
Past due up {o three months 17,239,828 12,772,673 -
Past due three to six months 18,202,562 - 11,895,705 =
Past due mare than six months 135,361,572 126,700 95 615,383 h35,704
181,865,559 126,700 141,997 874 530,704
Farly wige gging of frade debts other than related parties at reporting dals is as under:
I__ =4 2023 i }
Past Dus S i ‘1
Party nama Mot past due Up to throe ” Three tosix || Kore than sixj Impaired balance Total i
Less Sraye months it months L._ months ___!
——-n RUpeas ['(HID] o e comms s
Attock Refinery Limited 5,736,594 885,113 - 207,662 Fren G732 462
National Refinery Limited 117,774 T,6¥8 {14,359) 163,593 {13,564] 2E8 133
Pakistan Refinery Limhed 533,337 F93,9150 348,080 (402} - 1,879,155
Othars 187,953 {113,560) 1,911 182378 _{88,701) 149,797
6,599,568 1,383,472 330612 83 0E1 {196,172 8,848 531

— o
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2022
Party name ot past due Rastibue T Impaired baiance Total
: Up 1o three munths” Three to six months Im?m ihan six months
---------- Rupees 030 —
Attock Refinery Lirnided T 254 200 1122206 (245) 210 519 (57 5449} 8,530,130
Mzatianzl Refinery Lirnited 03,554 975 L 152,708 {152 235} 138,004
Pakistan Refinery Limited 6511078 - (26837 733 - 549172
United Energy Pakistan Limiled 1,497,913 - = = - 14978913
DHhers 97,3243 {78.941) 7613 163,171 (98,701} 20,485
LEET U85 1,045 240 4,731 527,132 {308 485} 10,955 704
Fary wise aging of trade debts of related panies al reporting date is a3 under:
& 2023 g
Past Dug
Party name Nat past due Up to three Three io six Mare than six impaired baiance Total
mignths manths months
Rupees {'00)
Sui Morthern Gas Pipelines Limitad 3,307 653 4,257,583 4,793,414 41,415,754 - 53,774,404
Sui Sguihern Gas Company Limited 8,534,440 10,203 ,6%% 53,087,237 $3,214,623 - 129,041,938
Fak Arab Refinery Company Limited 4,944,201 1.06% (5,865) 6,506 (5} 1,845,705
Enar Petroleum Refining Facility 76,165 - (3.384) 3,355 - 76,136
Qil & Sas Development Company 549,490 4,194,498 - 191,652 {522) 1,825,113
Pakistan Patrelaum Limited 23,979 79,058 93,548 {1,179} - 195,306
14,407 928 15,656,407 17,064 950 134,830,514 {528) 182,859,268
2022
FParly name Mot past due Pasioue Impaired balance Total
i P Up i three months” Three to six months ”Mare than six months b
Fupees {'(00)
Sui Morthern Gas Fipelines Limited 2483 518 2679578 3,285,956 31,080,717 - 39,529 770
Bui Squthern Gas Company Limited 6,393,137 8,799,352 8 606,423 63,312 585 - 87,111,497
Pak Arab Relinery Company Limited 1,497 423 201,316 {1,904} 33111 (1,180} 1,728,768
Enar Petrolaum Refining Facility 118,181 - - {29} - 119,152
Oil & Gas Davelopment Company 498 044 - - 1,663,058 (230,038} 1,429 981
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 35,812 47184 4449 (1179 - 83317
11,027 6B 11,727,432 11,290 974 56,088 261 {231,219} 130502 465

As explained in nole 16.1 ta the firancial staternents, the Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect 31 trads debts past due from Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited and Sui
Southern Gas Company Limited and loan te subsidiariss. Trade debts are essentally due from ofl refining companies, natural gas and liguetied petroleum gas transmission and distribution companies, the
Company is actively pursding for recovery of debts srd the Company does nnt axpect these companizs ta fail i mest their abligations. Mmract of CCL on financial assets not covered under exemption as
explained in note 3 3 hat Seen recordzd nonole 153 02 the fingrsial statements. Losa 10 subsidiaries are receivablz from wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, GoP iz climate cwner of these
subsidiaries thersfore ECL has not bean ass2ssed in respect of thess ioans.
Expected credit [23s on loans, advances, deposils and other receivsbles is calculated using genaral npproach (as disciosad in note 5.10.1). As al the repoiting dales, Company envisages thal defauit risk
on aceount of losns, advances, dzposits and othe: recaivables is immateiial based an hisloric frands adjusted to reflect fanward Iogking infomation.

Bank balances and investmenis in term deposits are also subject 0 the requirementz of (FRS 5 the dentified impainment isss was immatenal as the caunter paties have reasonably high credit ratings.
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Tha movement in the allowance far impairment in respecl of frade debts during the year was as follows:

2023 2022
———————— Rupees ["00()——-—-——
Balance at beginning of the year 539,704 =
{Reversal) / provisicn during the year {343,004} 538,704
Balance at end of the year 156,700 539,704

423  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able ta meet ils fnancial obligations a5 they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities to
cose oul market positions due to dynamic nature of the business. The Company’s approach lo managiag liquicity is to ensure, as far as possible, thal it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabifities when due, under bath normal and stressed conditions, without incuming unacesptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Since the Company has sufficient assets against its
liabilities, and being a subsidiary of the GoP it does not have any significant figuidgity risk.

The maturity profilz of the Company's financial assets and liabilities based an Juna 30, 20232, is surmmarized below:

2023 Effoctive yiold Markup/ Interest Non markupf

Interest Rata bearing Interest baaring e
Yo Rupses ('003)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturity up to one year
Loan to staff - - 25,904 25,904
Trade debis - nat = - 191,708,859 191,708 859
Receivable from Governmenl of Pakistan (GoP} KIBOR+0.2 5,548,325 - 5,545,325
Staff advances and olher receivables - - 171,459 171,469
Loan e subsidianes - 1ISGSL KIBQR+D.1 190,852 - 190,352
Laan to subsidiaries - PLL KIBOR+2 1,504,462 - 1,504,462
Accrued interest receivable 145 -18.5 137,567 - 137,567
Short-term invesiments 20.25 - 21114 28,258,016 - 28,258,016
Bank balances 6.25 - 20.0 7,332,145 2 7,332,145
42,971,367 181,806,232 234,877,599
Raturity after one year:
Loan to staff - - 72,683 72,683
Receivable from Government of Pakisian (GoP) KIBOR+(0.2 64,899 131 - 64,895,111
Loan to subsidiaries - PLL KIBDR+2 2,624,271 - 2,634,273
67,523,404 72,683 7,606,087
10,504,771 191,978,915 302,483,686
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to one year
Trade and other payables e o 5,907,99& 5,807,996
toan from Najianal Bank of Pakistan {NBP} - secured KIBOR+5.2 5,548,325 - 5,548,325
Current portion of long term liabililies S - 1,667,522 1,567,522
5,548,325 7,575,519 13,123,844
Maturity after one yoar:
Lean from Mational Bank of Pakistan {NBP) - secured KIBOR+0.2 64,899,131 - €4,8%8,131
Long term liabilities = - 4,507,802 4,507 802

m 64,899,131 4,507,802 66,408,933
70,447,456 12,082,321 82,530.777
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FiANCIAEL ASSETS
Maturity o Lo phie year

L io staiy

Trade debts - nat

Loarn, advsnces ang other receivables
Leoan {2 subgidiaries - 1BGSL

Loan in subsidiasias - PLL

Accrued interast recevshle
Shori-term investmenta

Zank balznces

Waturity after cne yaar:

Lozn o atafi
Loan lo subsidianes - PLL

FINARCIAL LISRILIMES

Haturiiy up to ene year

Tradte and aiher payatles

Loan trom Mational Sank of Pakistan [NBP) - secired
Current perion of long f2rm lizbiities

Azturity after onie yaor:

Lorey ierm lisbitfies

UFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Capital expendites ennemiments

R -

Effective wish:f

Warkup! linterest

Man markusf

[nierest Rate haaninng Imerest baaring HEE:
B e Rupees {000 — - ——em s
L = 10,715 10,7158
- - 141 458 970 141 4538170
- . 11,338 11,835
HIBORH0 S285.140 - 2551146
KiBOR+2 1,544,752 1,564,763
17.5-13 120 028 .40
62755 24,053 855 24 053,955
5557 e 7180548 . 7,160,548
33,294 A04 141,480 720 174 615 087
5 . 20,363 20,365
KIBOR+Z 3,703,870 - 3.703,E70
3,703,870 20,368 3724238
. 36298073 141,501,086 178.339.325 _
. : 5,6B88,57 5,885.575
KIBOR + .5 . 63,856 854 - 03,868,805
- - 1,698 657 1,599 557
€3.6RE D55 7485132 1452 0%7
2 - 3,436,945 3.436,545
5 3,436,948 3,436,549
L E3566,96a 10222 075 74,889,047 _
023 2022
T Rupees ("00)—— e
3,224,789 3,635 B4l
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market prices comprise three type of risks; interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include trade debts, balances hald in banks in saving and term
deposits, 1ong term liability in respect of carried interest and payable to joint operation partners.

Intersst rate risk

Inierest / mark-up rate risk management is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in interest rate. The Company does have interest bearing financial liabikty i-e leng term loan. The Company
does not hedges any of its interest bearing liabilities. Morecver, the Gompany has invested in fixed interest bearing
securities in the form of short term deposit receipts as mentioned in Note 20.1. Further the Compaiy has bank
balances in deposit accounts that camy variable interest rates, as mentionad in Note 21.1.

Foreign currency risk

Currenczy risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the

changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and
payables that exist due o transactions in foreign currengies.

Fakistani rupes {Rs.) is the functional currency of the Company and as a result currency exposure arise from
transactions and batances in currencies other than Pakistani rupee. The Company's potential currency exposure
comprise;

- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary itemns.
- Transactional exposure in respact of non functional cumency expenditure and revenues.

The potential currency exposures are discussed below,
Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Manetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the Company are periodically restated to Pakistani rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the

statemsant of profit or loss. The foreign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of tha risk
management strategy.

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Certain operating and capital expenditure is incurred by the Company in currencies other than the functional currency.
Certain sales revenue s eamed in currencies ather than the functiona! currency of the Company. These currency risks

are managed as a part of overali risk management strategy. The Company does not enter into forward exchange
contracts,

Exposure to forelgn currency risk

The Company's exposure to the risk in changes in foreign exchange rales relates primarily to the trade debis, long term
liability in respect of carried interest ang payable to joint operation opsrators., At the date of statement of financizl
position, the net forgign currency exposure aggregates to USD 1.97 miilion (2022: USD 11.86 rillion).

LY
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2023 2022
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FINAHCIAL ASEETS

Short term exposure

Trade <ebts 37,171 54,281

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short term exposure

Cue to jeint operation gperators {13,637) {17,784}

Long term liabilities {carried interest) {5,823) {7,826)
{19,460) (25810

Long term exposure

Long lerm liakilities {carried intarest) {15,740} {16,316}
{35,204) {42.424)

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 1,871 11,865 _

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate
2023 2022

Reporting date rate
2023 2022
{Pak Rupeus) . --
177.45 286.39 204 32

248.04

Foreign currency sensitivity

A 10% sirengthening of the functional currency against USD at June 30, 2023 would have reduced profit before
taxation by Rs. 56.46 million (2022: reduced profit by Rs. 242 5 million). A 10% weakening of the functional currency
against 3D at June 30, 2023 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts This analysis assumes

ihat all vther variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis 15 performed on the same basis for
June 30, 2022,

Capital managemaent

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to remain as a going concsrn
and conlinue to provide raturn for GoP. The aperations of the Company are soiely financed from its equity. Long term
loan from NBP is obtained by the Company on behalf of GoP in relafion to Reko Dig project for which corresponding
receivacle i3 also booked.

The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by monitaring retum on net assats
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capiial
stnicture, the Comipany may adjust the amount of dividend paid te GoP and / or issue new shares.

Reconciliation of movement of iiabilities to cashflows arising from financing activities

The reconciiation of movement of liahilities to cashffows arising from financing activities is as follovis

Long term Shart term .
Lengitsmmiloans liabilities borrowings o
Rs ('000}

Az at Juby 1, 2021 - {4,331,436} - {4.331,436)
Cash flows - 109,003 {63,986 96k {83,857 362;
Cthier non cash movemernts - {814,070} - (814,070)
As at June 30, 2022 a5 (5,036,503) {63,966 965) {56, 003,468)
As at.July 1, 2822 - {5,035,503) (63,966,965) (69,803 468)
Cashfiows : (66,848,287) 395,714 66,048,287 388,714
Other non cash movemsnt (3,599,169) (1,535,537) {2,881,322} (8,046,028}
A5 at June 30, 2023 (70,447 ,456) (6,175,326} (76,622,782}

WXX7GL
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TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company is wholly owned by Government of Pakistan. Thereforg, all entitfes owned and controlled by the Government of
Pakistan are related parties of the Company. Other related parlies comprise subsidiaries, directors, major sharsholders,
rompanies with comman directorship, key management personnel and gratuity fund. The Company in normal course of
bustness pays for eiectricity, gas, aiffare and telephone charges to antilies controllad by Governmant of Pakistan whicn zre nat
material, hence not disclosed in these financial statements. Amount due from and due to these undertakings are shown under
raceivehies 2nd pgyahles, Significant transactions of the Company with related parties and balances outstanding al the periad

end are a5 fol ows:

Suhsidizry companies

Shares held in subsidiary companies
Advance against investment in Shares
Long Term Loan to Subsidiary
Mon- Gurrent Portion
Carrent Portion
Inferest income on ican to subsidiaries
Fair value adjustrnent on loan to subsidiary during the year

FPakistan LLNG Limitad (PLL) - wholly owned subsldiary and common directorship

Loan as at June 30

Loan repatd during the year

Loan adjusied during the year against group tax benefit
Payment of security services on hehalf PLL

Benefit payable o PLL undar group taxation

Interest receivable

interast ncome

interast received

Fair value adjustmen! on loan to subsidiary during the year

Interstate Gas Systems (Private) Limited (I8GSL) - whelly owned subsidiany
and commaon directarship

Advance against issue of shares

Advance received by I3GSL from Goverrment of Pakistan against
issue of shares tc the Company

Lozn as atJune 30

Loan disbursed during the year

Loan repaid during the year

Loan adjusted during the year against group tax benefit
intarest racevable

Recaivable from 1SGSL under stop gap arrangement
Benefit payable to PLL under group taxation

Interast incomes

Interast received

Pakistan intermational Qil Limited (PIOL)- Associated Company - 25% share
holding of the company and coammon directorship

Cost of Investrmzt
Share of 85 in associate

Palistan Minerals {Private) Limited (PMPL)- Associated Company - 33.3% share

holding of the company and commaon directorship

Cost of Investment
Share of [ose in associate

374 -

2023 2022
----------- Rupees (0004w
5,324,012 2437 2681
525,069 2 328 885
2.834,274 3,703.870
1,655,313 1.8499 863
287,861 354,908
- 116,208
2,595,747 3,706.638
1,0:40,291 1,240,291
70,601 -
231 391
Z,536,997 1,307,074
1,542 888 1,541,585
253,34 341,063
257,333 300,600
= 116,283
525,089 2329885
84,825 433,244
107,966 270302
77,283
84,253 -
52,886 84 808
155,060 -
476,867 192,198
5,519 13935
11,444 =
6,431,700 4,205.500
{297,910 (RIS 5
36,589,203
{3546,045) -
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Major shareholders
Government of Pakistan (100% share holding)

Dividend paid

Deposit against Reko Dig project

Lang term receivabie from GaP

Interest accrued on long term receivable from GoP

Related parties by virtue of GoP heldings and / or common directorship

Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited

Sale of ¢rude oil - net
Trade debits as at June 30

Sul Northern Gas Pipelines Limited

Sale of natural gas - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Sui Scuthern Gas Company Limitad

Sale of natural gas - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Enar Petroleum Refining Facility

Sale of crude ail - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Qil and Gas Development Company Limited

Receivable as at June 30

Payable as at June 30

Expenditure charged by joint operation partner

Cash calls paid against joirt operation partner expenses

Pakistan Petroleum Limlted

Receivable as at June 30

Payable as at June 30

Expenditure charged by joint aparation partner

Cash calls paid against joint operation panner expenses

National Bank of Pakistan

Balance of bank accounts

Intetest earned duning the year

Long term loan

Interest accrued on long term lean during the year
Short term borrawing

Other related parties

Contribution to gratuity fund {refer note 29.3)

-64-

Remuneration to key management personngl {refer note 37.3)

NUMBER QF EMLPOYEES

Number of employees as at year end
Average number of amployees employed during the year

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

2023 2022
----------- Rupees ('000)sarevmncem
£,000,000 5,000,000
- 34,301,231
70,447,456 63,966,965
5,548,325 -
9,980,008 8,819 236
1,945,705 1,725,768
17,173,128 12,918,367
53,774,404 39,629,770
40,684,094 30,288,718
125,041,999 87,111,497
657,609 404,009
76,136 118,152
1,825,118 1,929,981
2,04%,207 1,938,970
5,098,029 4,702,205
5,218,579 3,573,822
195,906 83,316
702,955 820,551
1,554,740 1.761.889
1,562,877 1,793,632
925,777 2,253,351
289,432 250,581
70,447,456 =
5,548,325 -
2 33,966 965
55,785 41,286
217,490 152,178
2023 2022
73 64
68 B4

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provision of section 218 of the Companies Act,

2017 and rules farmulated for this purpose.
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46 GENERAL

d46.1 Capacity and production

Froduction for the year

Product Uniit 2023 2022
Gas MIMSCF 71,458 80,005
il Barrels 2,824,611 2,657 337
ILPG Metric ton 73,4594 75,097

Ot'e to the nature of operations of the Company, installed capacity of above products is not relevant.
462 Figures have heen rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless ctherwise stated.

48.3 Corresporniding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate presemation
ot events and fransactions for the purpose of better presentation in accordance with the acenunting and
reporting stasidards as applicable in Pakistan.

47 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

These {inancial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors nf the Compaﬁy'in it

mseting held on L8 ={L72 022 The directars have the power to amand and reissue the financial
staiements.

INFITLL -

Lrinf Exasutive Officer

Director
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the members of Government Holdings {Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Government Holdings
(Private) Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2023 and of its consoiidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinicn

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our cther ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 356.1.2 to the financial statements, which describes the matier of non-
accrual of any penalty under the terms of Gas Sale Purchase Agreement with National Iranian
Cil Company — an Iran state owned enterprise. Cur opinion is not madified in respect of these
matters.

Infermation Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but dees not include the consclidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
ge gg EOt express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

A. F. FERGUSON & (0., Chortered Accountants, a member firm of the PuwC nefwork
74-East, and Floor, Blue Area, Jinnah Avenue, P.0.Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-60/2604934-37; Fax: +02 (51) 2277924, 2206472; < W, proc.com,/pl

KARACHI "LAHORE "ISLAMABAD
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible fer the preparation and fair presentation of the consoiidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017{XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

The Board of Direciors are respeonsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to cobtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinicn. Reasocnable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated finrancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain nrofessional skepticism threughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

. statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respensive
to those risks, and obtain audi evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinicn. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may involve callusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
precedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repart to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely respensible for cur audit opinion.

We communicale with the Board of Directors regarding, among cther matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
JehanZeb Amin.

I Fex

Chartered Agtountants
Islamabad

Date: December 26, 2023
UDIN: AR202310083VCJ3gmuTi
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

Naote
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 25
Capital reserves 26
Ravenue reserves 26
tnappropriated profit
Advance against issue of shares 25,3

EQUITY ATTRIEUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE HCLDING COMPANY

MNON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
TOTAL EQUITY

NQN CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lang term liabilities 27
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP} - secured 31
Provigion for decommissioning cost 29
Leasa liahility 71
Deferred employee benefits 30

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 32
Current pertion of long lerm hiabilites 27
Contract liabilities 38.2
Loan from Mational Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - secured 31
Short term borrowing - secured 31
Lease liability - current portion 7.1
Payable to Government under ITFC Agreement 33
Provision for taxation 34

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL ECGLHTY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 35

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an intearal part of these consolidated financial statements.

XWAFEL,
U amesfin Ok

Chief Executive Officer

2023 2022
......... -Rupoes {'000)- -
w2121z 21327561
25,000,000 | 53,946,247

16,183,456 3,033,404
175,087,882 || 137,913 444

525,069 2,329,896
240,017,620 218,550,552
240,017,620 218 550,552
4,507,802 3,435,946
64,899,131 -
14,408,445 8,240,917
169,165,917 || 137,665,792
118,013 124,681
253,099,308 149,469,336
42,312,083 || 52,454,002
1,667,523 1,599,557
1,708 57,353
5,548,325 -

- 63,966,965
16,252,001 || 11,528,681
113,898,102 | 120,565,163
4,586,480 :
184,268,222 250,181,721
437,367,530 399,651,057
677,385,150 _ 518,201,608

ASBSETS
NCN CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right of use asset

Intangible assets

Exploration and evaluation assets
Development and production assets
Long term foan

Long term investment in associaies
Investment in joint venture

Deposit with the Government of Pakistan
for equity stzke in Reko Dig project
Receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP)
Deferred tax asseat

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and [oose tools - share in joint
cperations’ inventory

Cument pertion of long term lean

Stock in trade

Trade debts - nat

Recoverable from tax authorities

Loans, advances and other receivables
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP)
Accrued interest receivable

Advance tax

Short termn investments

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

2023 2022
Note —--------—-- Rupees {'000]----—----

<] 30,800,143 28 968 B46
7 101,663,596 112,365,027
=} 3,799 8577
9 4,435,429 5,775,066
10 16,387,623 13,769,289
14 72,683 20,368
11 55,759,241 2,165 988
12 1,592,996 1,209,463
15 - 34,301,231

13 64,899,131 =
28 23,912,934 9,530,548
299,510,575 209,104 404
16 4,800,35% 4,132,756
14 25,904 33307
17 5,483,425 15,720,587
19 | 292,987,128 272175706
20 9,587,829 9,337,737
21 1,097,851 320174
22 23,024 19,146
13 5,548,325 63,966 965
18 296,255 216,721
34 - 51,888
23 31,427,558 25517.885
24 23,581,917 17,604,323
377,874,575 408,007 205
677,385,150 518,201,609

Diractor
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Reoyalty and other levies
Operating expenses
GROSS PROFIT

Exploration and prospecting expenditure

General and administrative expenses

Capital work in progress written off during the year
Net impairment loss on financial assets

Other income

Cther expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Finance income
Finance cost
Finance cost — net

Share of loss of associate accounted for
under equity methed

Share of loss of joint venture accounted for
under equity method

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation
PROFIT FCR THE YEAR

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Owners of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share- basic and diluted (Rupees)

40
41
6.5
19.3
43
42

38
39

1"

12

44

45

2023

237,543,745

{15,262,778)

(117,227,860)

2022

497,539,810

{11,359 391)

{391,366,832)

105,053,107 94,813,587
(447,903) (685,935)
(2,698,865) (1,694,708)
(278,668) -

343,004 {539,704)
506,041 34,582
{66,635,881) {51,833 581)
35,840,835 40,094,241
14,331,039 5,652,653
(14,007,989) (6,288,361
323,050 (635,708)
(683,150) (2,513,552)
(35,433) (50,211)
35,445,302 36,894,770

(24,480,735)

{15,636,138)

10,964,567 21,258,632
10,964,567 21,258,632
10,964,567 21,258 632

5.07 10.11

The annexed notes from 1 te 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SRAF4Y.
Healh .,

Chief Executive Officer

b s

Director
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS {PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Note
PROQFIT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

ftems that will not be subsequently reclassified to
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Remeasurement loss cn employees’ retirement benefits 32.2
Taxation

ftems that will be subsequently reclassified to
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate - 11
net of tax

Share of effect of translation of investment in a foreign

associated company of the associate

Effects of translation of investment in a fareign joint 12
venture - net of tax

Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2023

2022

10,964,567 21,258,632
(39,240} (63,724)
18,237 28,039
{21,003) (35,685)
1,067,234 383,973
14,020,097
347,347 230,437
15,434,678 614,410
15,413,675 578,725
26,378,242 21,837,357

The annexed notes from 1 te 51 form an integrai part of these consolidated financial statements.

STV

Home= A3t

Chief Executive Officer
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Director



GOVERNWMENT HOLDINGS [FRIVATE] LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATCEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2023

Ealance as at July 1, 2021
Total comprehensivs incoma for the year

Profit for the year
Oiher comprehensive koss for the year
Tolal comprehensive income for tha year

Transactlions with awners of the Holding Company
Contributions

Advance received against issue of shares
Issue of sharas

Distributians
Inlerim dividend 2022 Rs. 2.34 per chare

Total contribuiions and distribuiians- net
Balance as at June 39, 2022
Balance as at July 01, 2022

Tetal comprebensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income [ {loss) for the yaar

Total comprehensive Ingome lor the year

Transactions with owners of the Holding Company
Contributions
Agvance received against issue of shares
lsgue of sharas
Transfer of reserves to unappropriated profits
Transfer of profits to Mining project reserve

Distributigns
Intarim dividend 2023: Rs. 215 per shame
Total contributions and distrigutions- net

Balance as at June 30, 2023

Attributakle to owners of the Holding Campany

Share Capital Revernue Reserve GCapital Reserve
Forelgn . Unappropriatad "
lsgusd, Adval
. S0 Genaral Eurrency Committed LNG projact L Assm M"?mg prafits L=
subgeribed  pgainst issne r insurance acquisition project
p reserva irenslation outlay reserve resare
and paid-up of shares resene rasang reserve
resame
Rupees {'Bi0)
20,3351 2,336,082 2284 B26 154,386 20,945, 247 25,000,000 3,000,000 5000000 - 121,680 487 201,276,951
B - B - - B e - - 21,268,832 21,258,632
i = . 14,410 = = = - - 135,685} 578725
- - - €14 410 - - - - - 29,232 047 21,837,457
- 436,244 - - B - - - - - 436 244
442 440 (442 4400 - - - - - - - - -
442 440 (6, 146) - - B - - - - - 436,244
- - B . e - - - (5,000,000} 15,000,004
442 440 {6, 195) - - - - - - - (5,000,000} [4,583,758)
2F.327 561 2,329 208 2,284 526 X 20,546,247 25 004 400 3,000,000 £,000.000 137,913,444 218,550,552
21,327 561 2,339 B9€ 284,625 743,775 20,946,247 26,000,300 3,000,000 E,000 000 - 137,913 444 218,550,552
. - - - - - - - - 10,964 567 10,844,567
- - - 15,434 €75 - - b - - {21,003) 15,413,675
- - - 15434 €76 - - - - - 10,943 5&E 26,378,242
- 8E 825 - - - - - - . - B8E,325
1,893,651 (1,892,651} - - - - - - - - -
- - (2.284,626) - 120,946, 247) 125,000,000| {3,000 D0ty - E £1,230,874 -
- - - - - - - - 20,000,000 {20.000,0001 .
1,893,651 (1.804,825)  (2.284,626) - |20,94€ 247} |25,000.000) 3,000,000 - 20,000,000 M,230,874 88,8525
R B - & & . - - (5,000,083 |5,000,000)
1,893,651 (1,804,826} (2,2%4,62€) 2 120,346,247} (25,000,000) 13,000,000 - 20,000,000 26,230,874 14,811,175
Ziza1.82 535,069 - 16,183 4556 - - - 5,000 000 20,000,007 175,087 £42 240 017,620

The annexed notes from 1 fo 51 ferm an integral pard of these consolidated finangial slalements.

JWATHL-

W@t A

Chief Exaculive Officer

Diractor
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Page 1 of 2
GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
2023 2022
Note  ——————- Rupees ("000)-wemmcmcmoua
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 35,445,302 36,864 770
Adjustments for:
Amuortisation of development and production assets 10 4,739,174 3,805,248
Depreciation on joint aperations’ fixed assets 6.2 2,611,052 2,581,680
Depreciation on right of use assets 7 10,701,431 10,701,431
{Gain} / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 43 337,989 (2,4581)
Loss on assets written off 6.5.1 278,668 -
Impairment on property, plant and equipment 38.2 104,076 459,808
'mpairment on development and production assets 3gz2 303,352 772,213
Depreciation on owned fixed assets 6.1 37,981 a7 397
Amortisation of intangible assets 8 7,324 18,788
Share of loss of associate 11 683,150 2,513,552
Dry hole wells 40 7,160 388,609
Provision for employee benefits 30&322 153,827 131,814
Unwinding of discount on provision for
decommissioning cost 29.1 023,436 394,365
Unwinding of discount on iong term liability 271 137,133 9,825
Discount of long term liability 27 1 {519,532) (846,268)
Unrealised exchange {gain) / loss 55,129,662 37,611,701
Share of loss from joint venture - net of taxation 121 35,433 50,211
Provision for windfall levy on ofl / condensate 42 5,881,892 4,995 336
Reversal due to change in decommissioning
cost estimates 29.3 {391,758) {347.222)
Net impairment loss on financial assets 18.3 {343,004) 538,704
Interest on delayed payment 38 47,510 178,767
Interest expense on lease liability 38 7,337,880 5,683,227
Interest income 38 {13,811,507) {5,006,366)
109,842,631 101,767,090
Changes in working capital:
Increase in stores, spare and Ioose topls - share in
joint operations’ inventory (667,603) {33,546)
{Increase) / decrease in stock in trade 7,237,162 {12,845 681)
Increase in trade debts (20,137,883) (80,225,672)
Increase in recoverable from tax authorities {250,092) {5,338,281)
Decrease / (increase) in loans, advances and other receivables {777,676) 16,819
Increase in trade deposits and short-term prepayments {8,879) (438)
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables {16,000,958) 15,178,258
Increase in contract liabilities {65,645) 67,353
{30,671,614) {83,181,188)
Cash generated from operations 79,171,018 18,585 902
Long term loan to staff 14 {44,912} (29,396)
Income tax paid 34 (24,671,804) (27,991,3683)
Employee henefits paid 30 &322 (198,221) {90, 744)
Interest paid on delayed payments 38 {47,510) (178,767}
Net cash (used) / generated from operating activities 44,208,571 {9,705,367)
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure

Deposit with the Government of Pakistan in

connection with Riko Dig project

Froceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest receivad

Investment in associate

Investment in joint venture

Sale / (purchase) of short term investments

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advance received against issue of shares 25.3
Repayment of short term barrowing

Proceads from long term loan

Repayments against long term liabilities

Dividend paid

Lease rentals paid

Government lcan proceeds

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH FQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RESERVED AGAINST
MINING PROJECT RESERVE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MARKED WITH LIEN FOR
BANK GUARANTEE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 242

SHR740-

el -

Chief Executive Qfficer

Page 2 of 2
2022 2021
Trrmmsasanravamaa Rupees {("000)--m--m-mmemmeee
(8,603,225) {7,111,719)
- (34,301,231
338,110 1,511
13,838,644 5,567 878
(4,484,172) {4,205 500)
10,000,000 2,000,000
11,079,357 (38,048,062)
88,825 436,244
{63,966,965)
63,966,965
{396,714) {109,003
({5,000,000) {5,000, 000}
(21,319,049) {15,312 568)
(6,667,061) 61,251,088
{33,293,999) 41,265,771
21,993,928 {6,488,658)
33,311,802 39,800,460
{5,000,000) -
(3,169,542) -
47,136,188 33,311,802

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of thase consolidated financial statements.

ot

Director
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS {(PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINARGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1.
1.4

1.2

1.3

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
Constitution and ownership

These consclidated financial statements comprise of Government Heldings {Private) Limited {“the Holding
Company"] and its subsidiaries, Inter State Gas Systems (Private} Limited (I1SGSL) and Pakistan LNG Limited
(PLL), (collectively referred to as "the Group™).

Government Holdings {Private) Limited

Government Holdings (Private} Limited (the "Holding Company") was incorporated in Pakistan as a private
limited company on January 15, 2000, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act,
2017). The Holding Company's registered office is situated at 7th Floor, Petroleum House, Ataturk Avenue, G-
5/2, Islamabad. The main objectives of the Holding Company are to;

a) Acquire shares of the companigs or interest of Government of Pakistan {GoP) in the existing and new
oil and gas concessions, either by payment or by issuance of shares, credited as fully paid, or other
securities, as the Holding Company may think fit and to hold and enjoy all interests, rights, contracts
and privileges vested in, or cannected with, the title of such shares; and

b} Take over, acquire, renew, unitize, and hold any exploration, prospecting, development and production
concessions of whatever nature or otherwise acquire any estate or interest, develop resources of work,
dispose off or ctherwise turn to account land or sea beds in any part of the world containing or thought
to contain petroleum or any other oil in any form, and to search for or participate in the exploration for
petroleum or any other oil in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances or natural gas, or any
substance used or which may be capable of use, and to organize, equip and employ expeditions,
experts and other agents to carry out drilling and other exploratory operations, and to establish and
operate oil and gas wells and other undertakings for the extraction of any of the aforesaid substances.

As of the date of consolidated statement cf financial position, the Holding Company has the following
investments:

a)  Inter State Gas System (Private) Limited {ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary

The Helding Company has 100% shareholding in the Inter State Gas System {Private) Limited {ISGSL)
under share subscription agreement. The main objective of the ISGSL is to carty on the business of
importing, processing, purifying, buying, storing, supplying, transporting, transmitting, selling and
exporting natural gas and other natural gas products whether as such or in a liquid state, for fighting,
heating, motive power, power generation or for any other purpose whatsoever. TAPI Pipeline Company
Limited {TPCL), the associate of ISGSL is registered in the Isle of Man as a limited liability company
and its head office is situated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. TPCL ig principally engaged to carry out
the business of developing, engineering, funding the construction of, procuring the equipment
engineering and other services for construction and operation of, constructing owning, operating and
providing maintenance for the proportion of TAP{ Pipeline running from the borders of Turkmenistan
and Afghanistan to the border of Pakistan and India.

b}  Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL} - wholly owned subsidiary

The Holding Company has 100% shareholding in Pakistan LNG Limited {(PLL), a public company
incorporated on December 11, 2015 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Currently Companies Act,
2017). The principle activity of PLL is to import, transpert, market and distribute Liquefied Natural Gas
{LNG). PLL has achieved its commercial operation date on January 04, 2018. With effect from January
01, 2021 PLL merged with Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited {PLTL} pursuant to completion of all legal
requirements, with PLL being the surviving entity.

ORTLL
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Pakistan International Oil Limited (PIOL) - foreign operation - 25% shareholding

During the year, the Holding Company, along with other consartium members i.e. Mari Petroleum
Company Limited {MPCL), Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) and Oil and Gas Development Company
Limited (OGDCL) has been awarded Offshore Block § in Abu Dhabi's second competitive exploration
block bid round. The consortium companies have established an independent entity named Pakistan
International Qil Limited {PIOL). PIOL is engaged in the business of extraction of il and natural gas and
is registered as a limited fiability company in the Emirate of Abu Dhabki and incorporated in Abu Dhabi
Glebal Market on July 15, 2021, with each consortium company having a 25% equity stake in PIOL. The
exploration concession agreement betwean PIOL and Abu Dhabi Mational Oil Company {(ADNOC) was
signed on August 31, 2021.

Pakistan Minerals (Private) Limited - PMPL - 33.33% shareholding

The Holding Company has invested in the project company, i.e. Reka Dig Mining Company (Private)
Limited {(RDMGC}) through Pakistan Minerals (Private) Limited {PMPL), an entity incorporated in Pakistan
with initial subscribed share capital of 12,000 shares with par value of Rs 10 each in accordance with
the agreements for collective repregentation of the Company, Pakistan Petroleum Limited {(PPL}) and Gil
and Gas Develecpment Company Limited (OGDCL), together called the State Cwned Enterprizes
{SOEs). RDMC is engaged in the mineral exploration activities in Pakistan. PMPL holds an indirect
working interest of 25% (8.33% of each SOE) in the RDMC through offshore holding compantes namely
Reko Dig Holdings Limited and Reko Diq Investments Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Holdcos™).
RDMC is incorporated in Pakistan and Holdcos are incorporated in Bailiwick of Jersey. The Company's
equity interest in PMPL is 33.33% with an effective interest of 8.33% in RDMC.

The Group has interest in certain joint operations / concessions as non-operator. Geographical location of

concessions / blocks is as under:

Cperator Concession / Block Working Interest (%) Frovince

Al-Haj Baska North 415 Balochisian & KPK
Al-Haj Potwar South 25 Punjab

Hycarbex Yasin 5 Sindh & Balochistar
KPBY Makhad 25 KPK

Tallahasse Karak North 2.5 KPK

MOL Tal 5 {Exp} ~ 15 {Cev)* KPK

MPCL Bolan 7/ Zarghun South 7.5 Balochishtan
MPCL Wali West 2.5 KPK

MPCL Sharan 25 Balochishtan
MPCL Nareli 2.5 Balachightan
MPCL Mach 2.5 Balochishtan
MPCL Dhadhar 2.5 Balochishtan
QGDCL Bitrism 5{Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)* Sindh

QGDGCL Guddu 5 {Exp) ~22.5 (Dev)* Sindh & Punjab
QGDCL Gwadar 25 Balochistan
QOGDCL Jhakro 22.5 Sindh

QGDCL Khewari 5 {Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)* Sindh

QGDCL Khuzdar North 2.5 Balochistan
OGOCL Khuzdar South 2.5 Sindh & Balochistar
OGOCL Kotra 5 {Exp) ~ 20 (Dev)* Balochishtan
QOGOoOCL Nashpa 5{Exp) ~ 15 (Dev)* KPK

OGDCL Nim 5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dev)* Sindh

OGOCL Orakzai 4.66 KPK

OGDGL Palantak 2.5 Balachistan
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OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
GGDCL
0GDCL
0GDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
0GDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
CPPL
PEL
PEL
PEL
POL
POL
POL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
UEP
UEP
LEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
VEP
UEP
Paige

Concession f Block

Pasni West
Pezu
Rakhshan
Ranipur
Chanda
Sinjhoro
Tirah

Tando Allah Yar
Gurgalot

Zin

Lilia

Jhelum
Sujawal Sauth
Chah Bali
Khewari East
Suleiman
Zamzama
Block 22
Kandra
Mirpur Mathelo
Pariwali
Minwal

North Dhurnal
Bela West
Dhok Sultan
Gambat South
Hisal
Mazarani
Chachar
Nausherwani
Shah Bandar
Sirani

South Kharan
Musakhel
Punjab

Sui North
Kalat West
Badin lll

AL f

N |

Khipro

Kuhan

Mehar

Mehran

Mirpur Khas
Mubarak

Sawan

Murgha Fagqir Zai

* Exp- Exploratory phase
* Dev- Development phase

AR

YWorking Interest (%)

Province

2.5

2.64

2.5

25

5 (Exp) ~ 17.5 (Dev}*
5 {(Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5

5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
S (Exp)*

5 (Exp)y*

2.5

25

25

2.5

25

25

25

5{Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev}*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp)”

17.5

17.5

25

2.5

25

25

2.5

12,5

25

25

25

25

2.5

25

25

25

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) — 22.5 (Dev)*
& (Exp) ~ 25 {Dev)*
2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)”
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*

& {Exp) ~ 25 {Dev)*
5 {Exp} ~ 25 {Dev)*
225

5 (Exp)”

Balochistan
Punjah & KPK
Balochistan
Sindh

KPK

Sindh

KPK

Sindh
Punjab & KPK
Balochistan
Punjab
FPunjaby
Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Punjab
Punjab
Funjab
Balochistan
Punjab & KPK
Sindh
Punijab
Sindh
Sindh
Balochistan
Singh
Sindh
Balochistan
Balochistan
Punjab
Balochistan
Balochistan
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Balcchistan
Sindh & Balochistar
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Balochistan
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3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reperting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise

- International Financial Reporting Standards {{FRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Beard {IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017: and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2047

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for
certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic envirenment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Pakistan Rupee {PKR/ Rupees/ Rs) which is the Group's functional currency.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Standards, amendmenis and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
aarly adopted by the Group:
Effective date (annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after)

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

(Amendments) January 1, 2023
1AS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows {Amedments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments January 1, 2023
1AS 12 Income taxes {Amendments} January 1, 2023
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments) Januaiy 1, 2023
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024

The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and interpretations in future
penods wil have ne material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements other than in
presentation / disclosures.
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Further, the following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {IASB), which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts

The following interpretations issued by the JASB have been waived of by SECP:

IFRIC 12 Service Cancession Amangements

Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective

There are certain arrangements and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
applicable on the Group from July 1, 2022, however, these do not have significant impact on the Group's
financial reporting.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through $.R.0. 67(1%/2023 dated January 20,
2023, in partial modification of its previous S.R.0. 1177 (1)/2021 dated September 13, 2021, has natified that
in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in respect of
circular debt, the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model shall not be applicable till December 31, 2624, provided that such companies shall foilow relevant
requirements of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' in respect of above referred
financial assets dunng the exemption period. Earlier to the S.R.0. 985({1)2019 dated September 2, 2019,
SECP in a press release dated August 22, 2018 communicated that IFRS & needs to be looked into from
Pakistan perspeclive where phenomenon like circular debt need to be given due consideration. It was noted
that concerns expressed by companies regarding practical limitations in determining ECL on debts due from
GoP, due to uncertain cash recovery patterns of circular debt, carry weight. Public information regarging
expected settlement of circular debt by GoP in coming years may result in subsequent reversals of
impairment losses recognised in 2019, Financial assets due from GoP include those that are directly due fram
GoP and that are ultimately due from GoP in conseguence of the cifcular debt. In accordance with the
exemption granted by SECP, ECL has not been assessed / recognised in respect of financial assets due
directly / ultimately from GoP which includes trade debts amounting to Rs. 263,190 million {2022: Rs.
237,451 millien) on account of inter-corporate circular debts.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period affected.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the management has made the following
estimates, assumptions and judgments which are relevant to these cansclidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment - notes 5.1 and 6

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation on property, plant and eguipment, Further, where applicakle, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is made for possible impairment on an annuat basis. In
making these estimates, the Group uses the technical resources available with the Group. Any change in the
estimate in the future might affect the carrying amaunt of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment, with carresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

V)
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Exploration and evaluation expenditure - notes 5.3 and 9

The Group's accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure results in certain items of
expenditure being capitalised for an area of interest where it is considered likely to be recoverable by future
exploration or sale or where the activities have nct reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment
of the existence of reserves, This policy requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions as
to future events and circumstances, in particular whether an economically viabie extraction operation can be
established. Any such estimates and assumptions may change as new information becomes available. if,
after having capitalised the expenditure under the policy, a judgment is made that recavery of the expenditure
is unlikely, the relevant capitalised amount is written off to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Davelopment and production expenditure - notes 5.4 and 10

Joint operations where the Group has carried cost working interest, on announcement of commergial
discovery, the Group initially provides for the liability related to relevant carried cost of the joint cperations and
then recognise corresponding development and production expenditurg; on the basis of best estimates
available from the shared cost statement of the relevant joint operation. An adjustment is made based on the
finalised cost agreed with the operator.

Taxation - notes 5.17 and 44

In determining tax provision, the Group takes into account the current tax laws and decisions taken by
appellate authorities. The current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Instances where the Group's
view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and the Group
considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the possibility of any outflow is remote. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred tax balances in the year in which such determination is made.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance - notes 5.13.1 and 19.1

The measurement of the Expected Credit Loss ("ECL"} allowance for financial assets requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior {e.g. the
likelihood of counter parties defaulting and the resulting losses).

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

- Development of ECL models, ingiuding the various formulas and choice of inputs;

- Determining the criteria if there has been a significant increasa in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis;

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and their
effect on Prokability of Default {PDs), Exposure At Default (FADs} and Loss Given Default (LGDs); and

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models.
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Provision for decommissioning ¢cost - notes 5.15 and 29

Provision is recognised for the future decommissioning and restoration cost of oil and gas wells, production
facilities and pipelines at the end of their useful lives and involves estimates related to future expected cost,
discount rate and timing. Estimates of the amount of provision recognised are based on current jegal and
constructive requirements, technology and price levels. Provision is based on the best estimates, however,
the actual outflows can differ from estimated cash oufflows due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future. The estimated
timing of decommissioning may change due to certain factors, such as reserve life, a decision to terminate
operations or change in legislation. The camrying amount of provision is reviewed annually and adjusted to
take account of such changes.

During the year, the Group revised its estimates of decommissioning cost, reserve life, discount and inflation
rates. This has been treated as change in accounting estimates, applied prospectively, in accordance with
IFRIC Interpretation 1 "Changes in Existing Decommissicning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities".

Following line iterns would have been affected had there been no change in estimates:

Rupees 000
Provision for decommissioning cost would have been higher by 714,814
Property, plant and equipment would have been higher by 49,241
Development and production assets would have been higher by 273,815
Exploration & evaluation assets would have been higher by -
Operating expenses would have been higher by 391,758
Total comprehensive income would bave been lower by 347,222

Estimation of vil and natural gas reserves for amortisation of Development and Production Assets -
notes 5.4 and 10

Oil and gas reserves are an important element in calculation of amortisation charge and for impairment
testing of development and production assets of the Group. Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are
inherently imprecise, require the application of judgement and are subject to future revision. Reserves are
estimated by reference to available reservoir and well information, including production and pressure trends
for producing reserveirs and, in some cases, subject to definitional limits, {0 similar data from other producing
reservoirs. All reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based on new
information, such as from development, drilling and production activities or from changes in economic factors,
including product prices, contract terms or development plans.

Changes in estimates of reserves, affects the amount of amortisation recarded in the cansolidated financial
statements for development and production assets.

Impairment of non financial assets including exploration and evaluation assets, development and
production assets and related property, plant and equipment - notes 5.5, 6, 9 and 10

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoveradle
amaunt is estimated.
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Exploration and Evaluation (E&E} assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate
that carrying amount may exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at
which a determination is made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the pering for which the
Group has right to explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed,
substantive expenditura on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any
other event that may give rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.

Impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and eguipment is
performed whenever events ang circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate
that carrying amaunt of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of
hydrecarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
necessary to recaver the hydrecarbons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selling price of the hydrocarbons produced. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows largely independent of other assels or Cash
Generating Units (CGUs). The CGU applied for impairment test purpose is generally based on a number of
fields grouped as a single cash generating unit where the cash flows of each field are inter-dependent.

The carrying value is compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by
reference to the future net cash flows expected to be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recoegnised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. The impairment loss is allocated to the assets in CGU
oh g prorata basis.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
ne impairment loss had been recognised.

Employee benefits - notes 5.16, 30 and 32,2

Defined benefits plans are provided for employees of the Group. Provident fund contribution plan and gratuity
fund plan are structured as separate legal entities managed by trustees where as accumulating compensated
absences plan is managed by the Group. These calculations require assumptions to be made of future
outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increases in remuneration and pension benefit levels, the
expected long term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current
values. The assumptions used vary for the different plans as they are determined by independent actuaries
annually. The amount of the expected return on plan assets is calculated using the expected rate of return for
the year and the market related value at the beginning of the year. Service cost primarily represents the
increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for benefits earned on empioyees service during the year
and the interest on the obligation in respect of employee's service in previous years, net of the expected
return on plan assets. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions,

Provision against financial assets not subject to ECL model

As referred to note 3.3, the SECP has deferred applicability of ECL model in respect of financial assets due
directly / ultimately from Government of Pakistan (GoP) till December 31, 2024 in respect of circular debt.
Accordingly, the Group reviews the recoverability of its trade debts and investments that are due directly /
ultimately from GoP in respect of circular debt fo assess whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment as per requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' at each
reporting date.
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The Group has overdue receivables on account of inter-corporate circular debt. These overdue balances are
receivable from oil refineries and gas distribution companies. GoP is committed, hence continugusly pursuing
for satisfactory setllement of inter-corparate circular debt issue. However, the progress is slower than
expected resulting in accumulation of Group's debts. Inter-corporate circular debt in Pakistan arises due to
delayed payments in the energy sector supply chain, GoP either directly or through its direct / indirect
ownership of entities within energy sector supply chain is at the core of circular debt issue. The Central Power
FPurchase Agency (CPPA), a government owned entity, is sole power purchaser for the Country and the
circular debt is a shortfall of payments primarily by the CPPA, however, in case of gas distribution and
transmission companies the shortfall also occurs because of a delay in receipts of subsidies from the GoP for
supply of gas to certain domestic / industrial consumers.

Settlement of the Group's receivables is siower than the contractual terms primarily because circular debt is a
macro economic leve! issue in Pakistan and its level at any given time is dependent on policies and / or
priorities of the GoP, the level of subsidies offered by GoP to certain domestic and industrial consumers,
exchange rate fluctuations, glabal crude oil prices and certain other systemic issues within energy sector
{tariffs, losses, non / delayed recoveries).

The Group's assessment of ohjective evidence of impairment with respect to over due amounts on account of
inter-corporate circular debt takes into account commitment made by the GoP, contractual rights to receive
compensation for delayed payments and plans of the GoP to address the issue of inter-corporate circular
debt.

The Group has contractual right and is entitled to charge interest if payments from customers delayed beyond
credit terms, however, the Group recognises interest, if any, on delayed payments from custorners or
investments only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resolved, which is
when the interest on delayed payments is received by the Group.

Stores, spares & loose tools - share in Joint operations’ inventory - notes 5.10 and 18

The Group reviews the stores, spares and !oose tools for possible write downs / provisions on an annual
basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items
with a corresponding affect on the provision.

Accounting estimates related to capital wark in progress and lease are disclosed and explained in notes 5.8
and 5.9 respectively.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment

These are initially recognised at acquisition cost, including any costs directly attributable fo bringing the assets
to the lecation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group's
management. These assets are subsequently measured using the cost model, which is cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses (if any), except for freehold land and capital work in progress, which are
stated at cost less impairment loss (if any).

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equisment when that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met. Depreciation is charged using the straight line method when assets are available
for use over the useful life of the underlying asset. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, piant and
eguipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consclidated statement of
profit or loss.

940,
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future econemic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determinad as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in as other income in the
consalidated statement of prefit or loss.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Capital work in progress is transferred to the respective item of property, plant and equipment when available
for intended use.

Intangibie assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment ioss.
Costs associated with routine maintenance of intangible assets are recognised as an expense when incurred.
However, costs that are direcily attributable to identifizble intangible assets and which enhance or extend the
performance of intangible assets beyond the original specification and useful life is recognised as capital
improvement and added to the original cost of the intangible assets. The cost of intangible assets is
amortised over the estimated useful life on a straight line basis.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The effect of any adjustment to the
useful life is recognised prospectively as a change in accounting estimates.

Exploration and evaluation assets (E&E Assets)

The exploration cost of all the joint operations is accounted for under the “*Successful Efforts” method. Under
the successful efforts method of accounting, all property acquisitions, exploratory / evaluation drilling costs
are initizlly capitalised as intangible Exploration and Evaluation (E&E) assets in well, field or specific
exploration cost centers as appropriate. Costs directly associated with an exploratery well are capitalised as
an intangible asset until the drilling of the well is completed and results have been evaluated. Major costs
include employee benefits, material, chemical, fuel, well services and rig operational costs. All other
exploration costs including cost of technical studies, seismic acquisition and data processing, geclogical and
geophysical activities are charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as exploration and
prospecting expenditure. Pre license cost are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when
they are incurred.

Intangible E&E assets relating to each exploration license / field are carried forward, until the existence or
otherwise of commercial reserves have been determined subject to certain limitations including review for
indications of impairment. If commercial reserves have been discovered, the carrying value after any
impairment loss of the relevant E&E assets is then reclassified as development and production assets and if
commercial reserves are not found, the related costs are written off in consolidated statement of prefit or loss.
E&E assets are not amortised prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities.

Development and production assets (D&P Assets)

During exploratory phase under carried cost working interest holding, relevant working interest of the Group in
various concessions is carried by its relevant partners in the respective joint operations, in accordance with
the related Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCAs). Consequent to the declaration of commercial
discovery by the operator and approvai by the Director General Petroleum Concessions (DGPC), the Group
has right to increase its working interest up to 25% and the resulting consideration is payable to relevant joint
operation partners in these joint operations, according te the previsions of the related PCAs.
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The carried cost payable to joint operation partners comprise of the cost of the successful wells and
expenditure that are atirbutable to the commercial discovery. The cost is direclly recognised as
development and production assets to the extent to which the cost relates to wells. The remaining portion of
the cost is charged off to consolidated staterment of profit or loss as exploration and prospecting expenditure.

Development and production assets also include the cost of developing the discaovered commergial reserves
and bringing them into production, together with the capitalized E&E expenditures incurred in finding
commercial reserves transferred from E&E assets as cutlined in accounting policy 5.3 above and the cost of
recognising pravisions for future site restoration and decommissioning.

Expenditure carried within each field is amortised from the commencement of production ¢n a unit of
praduction basis, over the estimated useful life of the field determined by reference to proved reserves, on a
field by field basis. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field development costs are
dealt with prospectively. Amortisation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. Amortisation
expense for the year is computed on all development and production assets at year end including additions /
adjustments made during the year. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field
development costs are dealt with prospectively.

Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimated.

Exploration and Evaluation (E&E}assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate
that carrying amount may exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at
which a determination is made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the
Group has right to explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed,
substantive expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any
other event that may give rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.

Impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate
that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of
hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selliing price of the hydrocarbons produced.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows largely independent of other assets or Cash Generating Units (CGUs). The carrying value is
compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by reference to the future net
cash flows expected fo be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recagnised in consolidated
statement of prefit or loss.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
na impairment loss had been recognised.

If the change In estimate resuits in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the camying value of the asset, the Group considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the asset
as & whole, and if so, test for impairment in accordance with the 1AS-38 Impairment of Assets.
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Joint arrangements
Joint operations

Investments in jeint arrangements are classified as either joint cperations or joint veniures depending on the
contractual right and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined thern to be joint operations. The Group has recognised its share of
assets, tiabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred undar the joint operations on the basis of
latest available audited accounts of the joint operations and where applicable, the cost statements received
from operators of the joint arrangements for the intervening period up to the consolidated statement of
financial position date.

Joint venture

Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint ventures are those investments in distinct legal entities
over whose aclivities the Group has joint control, established by confracival agreement and requiring
unanimous consent for strateqic financial and operating decisions.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost,
which includes transaction costs. Investment in foreign joint venture is translated into presentation currency at
each reporting year end. The related exchange rate difference is charged / credited to foreign currency
translation reserve.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those ¢of the Group, from the date that joint
control commences, until the date that joint control ceases.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in a joint venture, the carrying amount of that interest
{(including any long term investments) is reduced fo nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the exient thal the Group has a constructive or legal obligation to contribute to such losses or has
made payments on behalf of the investes.

After application of equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
{including goodwill} is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets.

Investment in associated company

An associale is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in the joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The resulls, assets and liabilities of the associate have been incorporated in these consclidated financial
staterments using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
Initially recognised at cost adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the associate in consclidated profit or loss and the Group's share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the associate in consolidated other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from the associate is recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes arising from the foreign exchange
translation differences. The Group's share of those changes is recognised in the Group's consaolidated other
cemprehensive income. Losses of an associate in excess of Group's interest in that associate are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payment on behalf of
the associate. Where objective evidence of impairment of investment in associate is identified, then the
carrying amount of equity-accounted investment is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 5.5.
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Capital work in progress
Capital worls in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The: carrying amount of the capital work in progress is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indicaticn of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Lease liability and right-of-use asset

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or containg, a lease based on whether
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interast rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental horrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penaities for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives
receivable. The extension and termination options are incorparated in determination of lease term only when
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measurad at amortised cost using the effeclive interest rate method. It
i remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease
payments or an index or rate, change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. The cerresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset, or is recorded in profit and loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated an a straight
line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease lability,

IFRS 16 requires the Group to assess the lease term as the non-cancelable lease term in line with the lease
contract together with the period for which the Group has extension options which the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise and the periods for which the Group has termination options for which the Group is not
reasonably certain to exercise those termination options.

The reasonably certain period used to determine the lease term is based on facts and circumstances reiated
to the underlying leased asset and lease contracts and after consideration of business plan of the Group
which incorporates economic, potential demand of customers and economic changes,

-
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Stores, spares & loose tools - share in joint operations’ inventory

Storas, spares & loose tools are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value less impairment for slow
moving items. Cost is determined on the basis of cosling methods adopted by operators of respective joint
operations. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Stock in trade

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventaries are determined on
FIFQ basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Previously, the value of inventory was determined on
weighted average basis. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the
sales. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete stocks, where considered necessary. The change in
accounting policy has been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consclidated financial
staternents.

Recoverable from tax authorities

This represents receivable from the tax authorities for the amount unadjusted against the sales lax liabilities
respectively,

in sales tax returns, limitation of claiming input tax as lawer of ninety percent of output tax or actual input tax
gives rise to adjustable or refundable sales tax.

Financial instruments

Ali financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Group
losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the cbligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelied, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilites are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets
Classificatlon
The Group ¢lassifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) Amortised cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;
b) Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), and
c} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and Iosses will either be recorded in consoiidated statement of profit
or loss or consclidated statement of other comprehensive income (OCI). For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this depends on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCK). The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes,
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Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets cartied at FVTPL are expensed in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

{a) Amortised cost

Asgets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss and presented in other
income f expenses, together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

() Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

Assets that are held for coilection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTQC.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through QCI except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or toss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to consolidated statement of profit or
loss and recognised in other income / expenses. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Forgign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other income / expenses and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consclidated statement of profit or loss.

{c} Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL})

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Any gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and presented net within other income / expenses in the period in which it
arises.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is
derecognised when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

i} The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, but has transferred control of the asset.

SRFEL.
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When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred confrol of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing
invalvement in the asset.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are rmeasured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
he required to repay.

Impairment of financial agseats

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses {ECL) associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debis

= Trade deposits

= Long term loans to staff

- Loans and other receivables
- Cash and bank balances

- Short term investments

- Receivable from GoP

General approach for loans and other receivables, trade deposits, long term loans to staff, Receivable
from GoP, short term investments and cash and bank balances

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
The magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted
for factors that are specific to the counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, inciuding time value of money
where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross
carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward looking, based on 12 month expected
credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are
based on lifetime expected losses.

Expected credit losses are a prebability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probablity is determined by
the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating,
allowances are recognised when there is reduction in the net present value of expected cash flows. On a
significant increase in credit rigk, allowances are recognised without a change in the expected cash flows,
although typically expected cash flows do also change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12
month to lifetime expectations.

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Group recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of ECL
reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

- reascnable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date abaut past events,
current {onditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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As oullined in note 19, trade debts are separately assessed for ECL measurement except for inter corgorate
circular debts. The lifetime expected credit lossas are estimated using the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of maney where appropriate.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expectad to cause a significant change to the debtor's ability to meet its obligations:;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the cbligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower:

- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the Group for economic or contractual reasons relating fo the borrower's financial difficulty, have
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the Group would not otherwise consider;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; if
applicable.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that

the debtor is unlikely to pay its crediters, including the Group, in full {without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group). Irrespective of the above analysis, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 365 days past due in making a contractual payment unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more apprepriate.
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Recognition of loss allowance

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or logs for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account,

Write-off

The Group write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts
and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable
expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate
sufficient future cash flows to repay the amount. Financial assets written off may stil be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Classification, Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or less {(“FVTPL"); and
- at amorised cost.

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, also include direcily attributable
transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
follows:

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includa financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through grofit or loss. The Group has not
designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss,

Amortised cost

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through effective interest rate
amertisation process.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecegnised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modifiad, such an exchange or medification is
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, inciuding any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumead, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if the Group has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Group
intends to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

WAILY-
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consclidated statement of financial position comprise of term depository
receipts maturing within 3 manths, cash in hand, cash at banks and the related accrued interest income
maturing within 3 months. Cash equivalents are short term highly liquid investments, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Decommissioning cost

The activities of the Group normally give rise to obligations for site restoration. Restoration activities may
nclude abandonment and removal of wells, facility decommissioning and dismantling, removal ar treatment of
waste materials, land rehabilitation, and site restoration.

Liabilities for decommissicning cost are recognised when the Group has an obligation for site restoration, and
when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made The Group makes provision in full for the
decormmissioning cost on the declaration of commercial discovery of the reserves, to fulfil the obligation of
site restaration and rehabilitation. The obligations for ol and natural gas production or transportation facilities,
are reguired on construction or installation. An obligation for decommissioning may also crystallize during the
pericd of operation of a well / facility through a change in legislation or through a decision to terminate
operations.

The amount recognised is the estimated cost of decommissioning, discounted to its net present value at a
current pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the decormmissioning liability and the expected
outflow of economic resources to settle this obligation is up to next thirty years,

Decommissioning cost, as appropriate, relating to producing or developing fields is capitalised to the cost of
development and production assets and groperty, plant and equipment as the case may be. The recognised
amaunt of decommissioning cast is subsequently amortised / depreciated as part of the capital cost of the
develcpment and production assets on a unit of production method and property, plant and equipment over
the assets useful life respectively. At the time of decommissioning of the field, any differences arising from
settlement of the provision are recegnised in conselidated statement of profit or loss.

While the provision is based on the hest estimate of future costs and the economic life of the fields, there is
uncertainty regarding both the amount and timing of incurring these costs. The Group reviews the
decommissioning provision at the reporting date. Any change in the present value of the estimated
expenditure is dealt with prospectively and reflected as an adjustment to the provision and a corresponding
adjustment to property, plant and equipment and development and production assets. If a decrease in a
provigsicn is greater than the carrying value of asset, the excess is recognised in consclidated statement of
profit or loss. The unwinding of the discount on the decommissioning provision is recagnised as finance cost
in the consolidated staternent of profit or loss.

If the change in estimate resul{s in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the carrying value of the asset, the Group considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the asset
as a whole, and if 5o, test for impairment in accardance with the IAS-36 Impairment of Assets.

Employee benefits
Employees gratulty fund

The Group operates approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The investments of
gratuity funds are made through approved trust funds. Contributions are made in accordance with actuarial
recommendations. Actuarial valuations are conducted by an independent actuary, annually using projected
unit credit method related details of which are given in note 32.2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
obligation at the date of consolidated statement of financial position is measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows.
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Actuarial gains and losses {remeasurement gains / losses) on employees’ gratuity fund are recognised
immediately in consclidated other comprehensive income and past service cost is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or |0ss when they cccur.

Cost primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the cbligaticn for the employees' gratuity
fund earned on employees service during the year and the interest on the net liakility / (asset) in respect of
employea’s service in previous years. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underiying assumptions.

Calculation of gratuity obligations require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes
increase in remuneration, expected 'ong-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert
future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underiying assumptions. The
assumptions used vary for the different plans and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

Employee compensated absences

The Group provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the applicable
rules,

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contribution is
made both by the Group and the employee to the fund at the rate of 8.33% and 10% of basic salary for the
Holding Company and Subsidiary companies respectively. The Group's contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises of curent and deferred tax.
Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the applicable rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any, adjusted for payments to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) for
payments oh account of rayalty and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Income tax
expense is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Group recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax
provision in the period ih which such determination is made.

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Group’s views differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and where
the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are
shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the consolidated statement of financial position liability method in
respect of all temporary differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, un-used tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is
calculated at the rates that are substantially expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on the tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax is charged or credited to income except in the
case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.
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Deferred taxation is recognised taking into account avaitability of taxable profits. The management uses
assumptions about future best estimates of the availability of future taxable prefits based on available
information. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
ne longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferrad tax is not recognised for the temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in associates and interest in joint arrangements to the
extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in a foreseeable future and the investor / joint operator is
able to contral the Ltiming of the reversal of the temporary difference. In addition, deferred tax is not
recagnised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Offsetting deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation autharity. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
ta settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liahility simultaneously.

Group tax

The Group is taxed as a one fiscal unit along with Holding Company and its other wholly owned subsidiaries
under section 59AA to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised
by each entity within the Group in their respactive consclidated statement of comprehensive income,
regardiess of who has the legal rights or obligation for the recovery or payment of tax from or to the tax
authorities. Tax liability / receivable is shown by the Holding Company, on submission of annual tax return,
who has the legal obligation o pay or right of recovery of tax from the taxation authorities.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a present,
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
penefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of such
cbligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specific to the liabitity.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the accurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events
not whelly within the control of the Group; or the Group has a present iegal or constructive obligation that
arisas from past events, but it is not probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to setlle the cbligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when or as the Group satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a customer. Revenue associated with the sale of crude oil, gas
and liguefied petroleurn gas is recognised at transaction price that is aliocated to that performance obligation.
Revenue from contracts with custormers is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good ta a customer. A good is transferred when the customer obtains cantrol of that
geod or service. The transfer of controf of crude oil, gas and liquefisd petroleum gas coincides with title
passing to the customer and the customer taking physical possession. The Group principally satisfies its
performance obligations at a point in time and recognises revenue relating to the performance.
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Revenue is measured at the transaction price, net of government levies, Transaction prices of crude ofl and
gas are specified in relevant agreements and / or as nofified by the government authorities based on
agreements with customers, relevant applicable petroleum policy, decision of Economic Coordination
Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet or Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCAs). Prices of liquefied petroleumn
gas are approved by the appropriate authority of operator keeping in view the ceiling price notified by Gil &
Gas Regulatory Authonty {OGRA). Effect of adjustments, if any, arising from revision in sale prices is
reflected as and when the prices are finalized with the customers and / or approved by the Government of
Pakistan {GoP).

Revenue associated with the sale of Regasified Liquified Natural Gas {RLNG) is recognised at transaction
price that is allocated to that performance obligation. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when or as the Group satisfies a perfermance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a
customer. A good or service is transferred when the customer obtains contral of that good or sarvice. The
transfer of contrel of RLNG ceincides with injection of RLNG into customer's pipeline infrastructure at the tie in
point through Custody Transfer Station (CTS). The Group principally satisfies its performance obligations at a
point in time and recognises revenue relating to the performance.,

Revenue related to RLNG s measured at the transaction price, net of government levies. Transaction prices
of RLNG are notified by the government authorities on monthly basis on agreements with customers, relevant
applicable petroleum policy, decision of ECC of the Cabinet. Effect of adjustments, if any, arising from
revision in sale prices is reflected as and when the prices are finalised with the customers and / or approved
by the GoP.

Billings are generally raised by the end of each month which are payable within 30 to 45 days except for
RLNG where billings are generally raised by the end of each week which are payable within 5 days in
accordance with the confractual arrangement with customers. Amounts billed or received prior to being
earned, are deferred and recognised as advances from customers. The Group based on its assessment has
not identified & significant financing component in its current contracts with customers because payment
terms of allowed days are explicitly specified and delay in setilement of invoices does not result in & significant
financing component.

Finance income and cost

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gain on long term liabilities due to change
in estimate. Interest income of financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in consalidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit impaired. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is appiied
to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the
payment is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis,

The Group has confractual right and is entitled to charge interest if payments from customers are delayed
beyond credit terms, however, the Group recognises interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income recognised will
not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resclved, which is when the
interest on delayed payments is receivad by the Group.

Finance cost comprises interest expense on lease liabilities (if any), interest expense on borrowings (if any),
unwinding of discount on provisions or liability, interest on delayed payment and bank charges. Mark up,

interest and other charges on borrowings are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

SAFL.
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Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transactior.
All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at
the rate of exchange ruling on the consclidated statement of financial position date and exchange differences,
if any, are credited / charged to consclidated statement of profit ar loss for the year.

Foreign operations

The transactions of foreign operation are translated at rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
All menetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rate prevailing at the date of consolidated statement of financial position and the resulting currency
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate
reserve in equity until the disposal of foreign aperation, upon which these are reclassified from equity to
consolidated statement of profit or loss when gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

Dividends

Dividend distribution and apprepriation of reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the period in which these ara approved.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liability unless payment is not due
within twelve (12) manths after the reporting pericd. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Reserves

The Group has a policy to set aside out of the profits of the Group such amount as the Group think proper as
a reserve or reserves, which shall, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, be applicable for meeting
contingencies, or for any other purpose to which the profits of the Group may be properly applied, and
pending such application may, in the like discretion, either ba employed in the business of the Group or be
invested in such investments, as the Board of Directors may from time to time think fit. Reserves are reviewed
periodically and adjusted as necessary by the Board of Directors.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Owned fized assets

Shara in joint operations’ fixed assets

Share in joint operations' capital work in progress

Capital work in progress

6.1 QOwned fixed assets

As at July 1, 2022

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Met book value
Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book value
Additions
Disposals

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Write off
Cost
Accumuiated depreciation

Depreciaticn charge
Closing net book value
As at July 1, 2023

Cost
Accumulaled depreciatian

Met back value
Year ended June 30, 2023

Openlng net hook valua
Additions
Disposals

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Write off
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge
Closing net book value
As at June 30, 2023

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Met book valua

Annual rate of
depreciation (%)

WEFLY.
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2023 2022

[T R — Rupees ('000)-—---m
6.1 98,389 69 510
6.2 24,593,240 24,021 823
6.3 3,875,864 3,366,196
6.5 2,232,650 2,511,318
30,800,143 25,968,846

Office Fumiture and Computer
equipment fixtures equipment RO et
Rupees ("000)---
57,496 56,197 93,493 36,258 243 444
{35.,500) {32,255) {88,213) (30,348) {165,718)
20,596 23,042 27,280 5910 77,728
20,5886 23,942 27,280 5910 77,728
3,835 3,053 20,330 2 652 29,830
4,749 243 3,187 1,268 9,457
{4,629) {218) (2.581) {1,268) {8,706}
120 25 506 - 751
{8,009 (7.023) (17,502) {3,863} £37,397)
16,362 19,547 29,502 4,699 54,510
56,642 59,007 110,826 37,642 263,917
{41,280) {39,060 (81,124) {32,043) {194,407}
15,362 19,947 29 502 4,689 58,510
15,362 19,947 28,502 4,699 69,610
10,691 9,275 14,552 32,516 67,034
1,515 652 22,666 6,676 31,409
(1,494) (652) {22,514) {6,578) (31,236)
21 . 152 - 173
(8,996) {7,824) {16,685) {4,477} (37,981}
17,036 21,398 2n217 32,739 98,350
65,819 67,629 102,511 63,582 299,541
(48,783) (46,232) {75,294) {30,843) (201,153}
17,038 21,387 27,217 32,739 98,389
15-20 15 20-33 15-20
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Share in joint operations' fixed assets

As at July 1, 2021

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accurnulated Impaimient
Net baok value

Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book valua

Additions f (adjustments)
Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers from CWIF

Depreciation charge

Impairment charge

Closing net book value

As at July 1, 2022

Cost
Accumulated depraciation
Accurmulated Impairment

MNet book value
Year ended Juns 30, 2023

Opening net book value
Additions / (adjustments)
Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers From CWIP
Disposals
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated Impairment

Dapraciation charge
Impairment charge
Closing net baok value

As at June 30, 2023

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated Impairment
Nat book value

Annual rate of

o RSP 4

-5
Leasehold Plant and Pinelines Office Furniture Vehicles Decommission Total
land equipment Ps equipment  and fixtures ing cost 2
Rupees {"000}
54,895 46,102,772 7,914 804 344,746 77,869 179,800 1,155,903 55,824,882
{41,950) {22.026,532) (4,279,544) {202,928) {72,575} {166,860) {444 502} {27,325,291)
(6,458) {2.8681,158) (564%9,320) (25,969) (3,815) (2,130 (59,032} (3,608,882)
6,488 21,215,081 2,985,540 25,849 1,478 8,910 £56,370 24,900,717
6,488 21,215,081 2,985,540 25,849 1,478 9,910 656,370 24 900,717
- 1,762,650 357,238 6077 {180} 4,399 95,424 2,225 607
- {251,847) = - - : {291,231} {543,078)
- 301,389 178,676 - - - - 480,065
- (2,145,065) (318,277 (4,568) {207) {5,259) £107,304) (2,581 6580}
{6,488) (310,143} {121,677} (4,302) - (66) (17,132) {459,808}
- 20,572 065 3,080,500 23,066 1,091 8,984 336,127 24,021,823
54,895 47,914 964 8,450,718 350,823 77,689 184 299 954,096 57,997 483
{41,950} {24 171 398} {4,559 221} {297,426} (72,782} (172,115} {551,B08) (29,808,971}
{12,945) (3,171,201} {770,997} (30,271} {3,816} {3,196} {76,163} [4,068,689)
- 20,572 065 3,080 500 23,056 1,081 8.934 336,127 24,021,823
- 20,572,065 3,080,500 23,056 1,091 3984 336,127 24,021,823
- (359.895) 30,993 28,221 1,195 40 752,594 453,353
- {48,304) {1,283) - - - - {47.592}
- 2,456,697 420,303 - - - - 2,877,000
- 33z712 . - - - - 33z, 712
{274,782) {274,782)
= {57,930) . . 3 - L {67,930)
. (1,984,102) {509,826) {8,497) (378} {2,326) {105,923) {2,611,052)
- {85,002) {12,517) {2,624) {149} - - {100,252)
- 20,553,653 3,008,170 40,156 1,759 6,698 982,798 24 593,240
64,895 49,632,950 8,900,731 379,044 78,884 184,339 1,716,690 60,947,533
{41,950} (25,880,918} (5,109,047) (305,903} {73,160} {174,445) {657,729 (32,243,242}
{12,945) (3,198,373} (783,514) {32,895) {3,965} {3,198 {76,163) 4,111,051}
- 20,553,669 3,008,170 40,156 1,759 6,698 982,798 24,593,240
334 334 33-4 20 15 20 33-4
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Share In Joint operations' capital work in progress

Balance af the beginning of the year

Cost incurred during the year

Transferred 1o development and produclion assets
Transferred 1o share in joint operations’ fixed assets

Accumulated impairment
Balance at the end of the year

2023 2022
------- =Rupees ["000)---mmmenmean
1,687,696 3311,421
3,393,976 756,340
(3,523) -

{2.877.,000) {480,065)
4,101,149 3,587,596
{225,285) {221,501)
3,875,864 3,366,195

Total capitalised cost includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 235,200 thousand as at June 30,

2023 {2022: Rs. 151,892 thousand)

Movement in acoumulated impairment

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Balance at the end of the yaar

Allocation of depreciation

Operating expensas
General and administrative expenses

Capital work in progress

Iran Pakistan Gas Fipsline Project

Iran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project

Cansultancy services

Travelling and transportalion expenses

Field security expenses

Tandering expenses

Rent, rales and utilities

Personnel costs and benefits

Training and capacity building

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional services

Depreciation

Amoriisation

Mark up on loan

Others

Impairment loss- Iran-Pakistan Gas Pipeline Projec
Impairment loss- Gwadar-Nawabshah LNG project

Consultancy services
Engineering and Project Management (E&PM) consultancy
Slaga |

Bankable Feasibility Study

Development of Front End Engineering Design (FEED)
Detailed Route Survey

Social and Environmenial Impact Assessment (SEIA)
Project Management

Other costs

AT,

MNote

38
41

6.5.1

6.5.1.2
65513

2023 2022
B Rupees {"000}-ravuveu-
221,501 221,50
3,784 -
225,285 221,501
2,611,052 2,581 880
37,981 37,397
2,649,033 2619077
2,232,650 2,511,318
2,546,571 2,546 571
43,901 §39M
25,345 25,345
19,227 19,227
28,288 28,288
246,580 246,580
5,080 5,060
2,919 2919
27,782 27,782
11,176 11,176
39,409 38,409
8,893 8,893
28,922 28,922
11,161 11,161
(278,668) -
(553,916) {553.918)
2,232,650 2,511,218
409,866 409,866
527,429 527 429
308,451 308,451
146 485 146,485
233,473 233473
130,840 130,840
1,756,544 1,756,544
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2023 2022
----------- Rupees {'000)-—---uuavm---
Stage 1l
Project Management 382,351 362,351
Procurement Services of Laong Lead ltems (LLI's) and
- Engineering, Procurement Construction {EPC) Contract 365,960 86,950
Engineering Suppor LLI's/EFC Tender 215,371 216,371
Other cost 104,563 104,562
770,245 770,245
Other consultancy services 19,782 19,782
2,546,571 2,546 571

The Governments of Fakisian {GoP) and Iran signed an Inter-Govermnmental Framework Declaration (IGFD) for the
Iran Pakistan Gas Fipeline Project (IP-Project} on May 24, 2009. The Group has entered via Subsidiary Company,
ISGSL, into an Iran Pakistan Gas Sale Purchase Agreement {|P-GSPA) with National Iranian Qil Company (NIOC)
on June 5, 2009 which became effective on Jung 13, 2010 upon completion of all conditions precedent to |P-
GSPA. The commitments under IP-GSPA are backed by a savereign guarantee issued by the GoF on May 28,
2010, whereas, the financial requirements were envisaged to be met through Gas Infrastruciure Development Cess
(GIDC) and Private Sector Entity {PSE) equity injection as approved by Economic Coardination Commitlee (ECC)
of the Federal Cabinet.

To commence work on the IP-Project, ISGSL hired an Engingering and Project Management Consultant {E&PM)
which is a joint venture between a German based firm ILF Beratende Ingenieure GMBH and National Engineering
Services Pakistan (Private} Limited (NESPAK), ILF - NESPAK submitted reports on Stage | and Stage Il which
have been accepted by ISGSL. Complete design of the pipeline system (Front End Engineering & Design),
feasibility study, installation of concrete markers and tender documents for the supply of equipment and
construction of the pipeline system have also been completed in a timely manner.

In accordance with the guidelines issued by the sub-commitiee / steering committee of the ECC, the initial capital
requiremeni of the IP-Project is being funded through equily injection by the Holding Company.

Govemment to Government Co-gperation Agreement as initizled on December 1, 2012 was endorsed by the
Federal Cabinet on January 30, 2013. The Presideni of Pakistan and the President of lran inaugurated the
sonstruction phase of iP-Project in a Ground Breaking Ceremeny held on March 11, 2013,

The IP Projecl faced constraints, as a consequence of the international sanctions imposed on lran by United
Nations, Linited States of America and the European Unicn. Iran's assaciation with the Project and risk of violaling
sanctions was considered fo affect potential financiers, reputable international suppliers of crucial equipment and
contractors. 15GSL believes that this has created a Force Majeure and Excusing Events situation and accordingly
the matter has been taken up with Government of Iran as per the provisions of the signed IP-GSPA. In lerms of the
letter dated April 14, 2014, NICC rejected 1SGSL's Force Majeure notice on the premise that substantively, the
situations alluded by 1SGSL do not constitute any ground for the occurrence of Farce Majeure ar Excusing Events
under the IP-GSPA.

On February 27, 2018 NIOC issued a formal natice of malerial breach of buyer's warranties under the IP-GSPA.
After negotiation with Iran, on Septerber 5, 2019 Pakistan and Iran has signed an addendum to the IP-GSPA for
extension of limitation pericd of any claims for furlher five years from the date of signing of the addendum. In light of
the aforesaid addendum, Iran wilhdrew the aforementioned notice and accordingly, the Group did not accrue any
penalty under the terms of IP-GSPA agreement with NIQG.

Also, GoP has provided sovereign guarantee to NIOC on behalf of ISGSL regarding the performance of obligations
of ISGSL under the Gas Sale and Purchase Agreement signed between NIOC and ISGSL.

WITHI.
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Consideting the indicators for impairment, the management performed impairment assessment dunng the year
ended June 30, 2023 using discount rate of 10.07% per annum and growth rate of 4% per annum using the value-in-
use model. The project's VIU based on management cash flow forecasts is determined to USD 3561.54 miliicn,
Therefore, despite the implementation delays, the managemeni believes ihat, having considered the dynamics of
energy market in the country, prevailing gas pricing mechanism and continued operational and financial support of
GoP, the project 15 slill financially viable and costs capitalised as at the reparting date are not impaired and are fully
recoverable. The existence of future profits is based on business plan which involves making judgements regarding
key assumptions underlying the eslimation of future profits of the subsidiary cormpany. These assumptions, if not
met have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of CWIP,

5.5.1.2 The management conducted an impairment assessment of the capital work in progress at year ended June 30,
2023. Consequently, they have written off an amount of Rs. 278.7 million, atiributing it to the uncerainty
surrounding the recoverability of these costs in the future

6.5.1.3 ECC inits meefing held on October 2, 2014 approved the Gwadar-Nawabshah LNG Terminal & Pipeline project
{GNP). It was envisaged that GNF shall not only serve to meet ever growing energy needs of Pakislan but can alsa
be utilised to link up to lranian border in future and therefore Pakistan would substantially be complying with its
contractual abligations under the GSPA. As essential technical work of pipeline raute has already been dane for IP
project, it bas been envisaged that the same shall be ulllised for the GNP,

During the visit of President of China to Pakistan on April 20, 2015, National Energy Administration of China and
Minisiry of Energy (MoE) of Pakistan signed framework agreement at Islamabad in relation te GNP, In this respect,
Chinese nominated entity i.e. China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau (CPP} submittad the lechnical and financial bid to
I5G3L for Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Financing (EPCF) under Government 1o Government
framewark agreement, which was being negotiated. However, the Cabinet Commitiee on Energy {CCE) through its
decision taken in its meeting dated June 6, 2017 directed MoE to drop the GNP forthwith. As per the said direction,
ISGEL during 2017 discontinuad the GNP and recognised an impairment loss against aggregate cost incurred on

GNP,
2023 2022
Mote ~ semecunn Rupees ('000)------mm-mmm--
6.6 Allocation of impairment
Operating expsnses 38 104,076 458,803
8.7 As the Hoiding Company is a non-operator, pragerty, plant and equipment other than owned fixed assets are notin
the possession of the Helding Company and are operated by joint operations in which the Holding Company has
- working inlerest,
= 2023 2022
--------- Rupees {"000)-----mn-mmmmm
— 7 RIGHT COF USE ASSET
Cost
As al beginning of the year 144 469,320 144,459,320
5 Addition { {deletion} during the year

As at end of the vear

Accumulated depreciation

144 469,320 144 469 320

As at beginning of the year 32,104,283 21402862
Depreciation charge 10,701,431 10,701,431
= As at end of the year 42,805,724 32,104,293
. Net carrying amount at end of the year 101,663,596 112,385,027
= Usefil life 15 years 15 years
=
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2023 2022

------------- Rupees ("000)------mnammm-
Lease lability
As al beginning of ihe year 149,195,473 123,359,788
Interest charge during the year 7,337,880 5,683,227
Lease payments during the year (21,319,049) {15,312 ,568)
Exchange loss / {gain) during the year 50,2035614 35,465,026
As at end of the year 185,417,918 148,195 473
Current portion (16.252.001} {11,528 681)
Non-current partion 169,165,917 137,666,792
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Mot later than one year 23,741 862 17,579,359
Laier than one year and not later than five years 120,460,757 87 993,321
Later than five years 81,020,724 79227703

225223,343 184 800,423
Lease arrangement

The Group recognises the lease for Floating Storage and Regasification Unit {(FSRU), Jetty and connecting
pipelines assels Iocated al LNG terminal. Initially lease arrangement was entered by Pakistan LNG Terminal
Limited (PLTL}) through Operation Services Agreement (QSA) with PGP Consortium Limited {PGPCL) as main
lease arrangement, additionally Terminal Use and Regasification Agreement (TURA) was entered into by the Group
with PLTL as sub lease arrangement. Subsequent to merger of PLTL with Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) , this lease
arrangement effectively remained with PGPCL as lessor and the Group as lasses.

Under the fease contract the Group has to pay fixed lease rentals, interest rate implicit in the lease was not
available therefore lease fiability initially measured at the present value of the laase paymenis using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. The Group used the discount rate of LIBOR+2% ie 4.2% on the date of
commencement of lease to reflect the rate at which external financiers would lend to the Group for the type of asset
leased.

2023 2022

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - SOFTWARES NMote ~ e Rupees {'000)—-—------
Cost 136,320 133,774
Accumuiated amordisation {132,521} {125.187)
Net book value 3,799 8,577
Opening net book value 8,577 25,119
Additions 2,546 2244
Disposals

Cast 4,215 -

Accumulated amortisation {4,215} -
Amorlisation charge {7.324) {18,758)
Closing net book value 3,799 B 577
Annual rafe of amortisation (%) 20-33 20-33
EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
Balance at beginning of the year g1 5,775,066 5,752,966
Expenditure incurred during the year 442,770 410,709

6,217 836 6,163,675
Cost of dry and abandoned wells during the vear 40 {7,160) {388,609
Transfer to development and production assets during the year {1,772,247) -
{1,779,407) (388,609)

Balance at end of the year 4,438,429 5 775 066

This includes asset decommissioning cost amounting te Rs. 7,293 thousand which has been transferred to
development and production assets during the vear.

WR7LS.
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2073 Cosr Avortization mpairrant Carrylrg umount
Adjusiment of
Az oy - e LIN ] Az at Charga A a1 As al Charge Azt Az at
L kg Rk el daly 1, 2021 e i D“m;:lmmg Ml -JuRE 30, 2021 July 1, 108 'ﬂrﬂlemmr June 30, 2023 duby A, p0Z8 tor Ih!“!"il June 30, 162 Jung 39, 2021
Ry 0. Rupeas ['000} Fiupess |'008) Rupsas {'100)
Producing fields-loint sgaratisna
Eadiam 2500% 308,742 - - - 306,792 e, 12 - I0ETHZ - -
Bioqk-22 (1l dakls) 23 5t 258,905 . - - - 258,908 TR . 204,718 a5 1ar LA -
AhmadalParkeai AT.50% TrIATR 2212 . - 781707 §ITA12 41475 EThS4T - - . LLERFL ]
Mirial THE% 11 - 5 . EETH L [:¥] [ 1T - - . 1945
Mazarans 1259% 136,602 5 . - 136,602 118,213 . 15273 2,02 - IR 1
Sovran 22 50% 4208 280 . e TA2Z057 1,527,018 AT 2.E51,370 0,083 - B0, 053 18T 818
Zamzama 25.00% A TTAATE 15,880 [FAE2T) {21,433} 4, T6E, A58 LT85T 1E.304 3,718,883 1,076,730 1,076,734 17,688
tubBrak 23 06 AL T 4.6 {22,1840) - 1445128 For ol 58T irran 1,089,675 1,089 875 ¥1,505
Him 50 120044 143,130 {102,139 - 567,844 TIT AN 11,525 0,008 - - - 284 LA
Hahuan 5.00% B8,2M - . e & B9.203 193 . 19 .27 - &T.iT0 .
Shanda 17,50 1,576,438 = - 1,698 £36 1,166,480 A, K18 1,275,080 E o - 1,338
Ghmban 23 0% A0z 7253 - - - S, 556 2T 7203 49 573 159,662 - 195582 1
Tal (o fhalde) 1500% B,253675 190,558 9,341 (42,263 2553 BETE M S2T2 A4 3 A8 5461400 - - 1012754
Khipre (il k) 25,010 L2459%F AEA BEE (5.248) - 14 B6T 3859458 2413144 3360 2I62704 100,784
Mirpurithos {all ity I500% RIBLE2E 1,093, 34€ 10,156 - 143,304 FAL P 5,926,458 £30, 238 S7ERAEY g . 1,511,060
Chachar 25.00% 5 EE - - {813 - FLLY 155,080 113 159411 91855 - 91,8455 ns
Hanhpa 15.00% 5,029,483 g It1] b - B2 A0 2,754,807 43727 LREFRE L] . - - 1,857,301
Sinjhara 21 E0% BI0,390 74,051 g 12437} 153,010 1,069,212 4TI 802 137,34 510,550 . - . 458,763
Mahar 25,054 437 LA0% 15,845 {38,851 . . 4 HI AT 1,745,730 Sl g 2156170 1213 Rl BT [ 1L 1214798
Jhtkg 2 50% 10,107 . - - 18,107 0,079 - 16,679 2 - -] -
Gt 22 5 154,94 -] - [1.691] pEERor 10858 5148 IR tE84 . FLRF]
Bolan 17.50% 255815 - [2.437) . . BE3ATE A7 29,530 B2EA1 - - 717
Gyt South 25400°% 1.7M9% - - (51 ABT) 5,907 20155350 THLEIT 194,699 "IN = - 1,119,724
Birgim 22 50% 312,807 1271 2,203 . - 108 14232 22788 1dd.0z4 . - 167 205
Tanda ARah Yer ()l Gnids) 22.50% EL N4E] (K1 . 708} 28341 284,677 15074 20,787 34 - - - 104,428
Shwh Bondee 2.50% AT - - - = 84,877 57,030 1985 54,018 - - - 1
Khwaan 22 50% ELtR ] - 33 - 207,282 6,700 38,784 45,554 - 5 - 60,528
Qihok Sultan 2500 - - - - 1IN 1,764,954 - 1,00E o 1,00, T - - = TS BEd
Decommissioning cersd 06T T 1,580,108 [133.053) 728 A, B o 1,561,508 563,172 2,504,500 221,90 11443 244,354 1,821,520
Eub totm| producmy fmbds B IET.TIZ FEF-R ] [205,444] [161.845) FXTEET ] 52,382,144 ,032459 & T19174 A5 767,569 ASAET 158767 LT 12372828

*Thes cludes rmial af 4 @COMMiEERINING S0AL amaunting R, 122,702 thoutand ditecily mads eainat ralised Gokd assek undgr prowtmors of IFRIC 1 - Chainges in 450 dasamnittsnng, reshorabon png rmiar labdities
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i Cont Amartiyalion I pm T Carmying smount
Az e - N"""“"."T"T' T Frae: A3t Chavge Asal e Chargs As at Asal
Farticulars Wordng Intereat July 1, 2022 et ] b LLi e June 3, 2021 July 1, 2022 far the yrar dune 30,3623 dubgd, MI22  farthmyear  Juss 30,3033 Junm 303033
Rupess (000} Rugrees (004} Rupovs [900] Ripees (005)

D vaboping fisids-bodnt ppermilons

kehar 25,004 - [FEXTH - - - B2E.01 - - - = 108,543 108,544 [ATETT]
AhmadalPameal 17.50% - . = & o o) ) - o - 5 - .
Tande Allsh Yar (ol fislds) 22.50% 531 184,137 - . {25.311) 14,138 - - 3 5 5 - ELTREH]
Kendra 25. % 1577 - - 3 4 1,57T o o d 3577 a 15T .
haty 2H% 12,607) - 2 g - (2.80T} 0 = o o - - 12,507}
e 2D:00% (L X 6,829 - - - T . . : A3 - £nA3d 43,547
biubarpl 2500 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Tol 15.00% 255,366 1,704 (17} - {255,345} 1104 . . . B 5 B 1,104
Blirprkhas (al flelde) 25,0%: 134,701 JLERD L = [T} 23,500 o 5 B = o = 23,600
Khipra (AR fskis) 25 00% 154,207 5E1¥ - - {148,887} 12,634 : E : - B = 13,008
Somwan 5% . - - o o o c - c - a o a
Hathaa 15 Bt £71,.5M L o - = 1,515,564 . . . - . . 1515568
Mazargni 12.50% . - - - - - . . . - = & 5
B I 25.00% - 3 & = 4 & n . d - - s -
Gambor Souh 2500 BYD BE% - - - 1315.507) M, 7T - - - - - - M 7T
Black-22 250% 15,804 - - - - 1551 . . - 1550 B 1550 -
T sk T5.00% - - - - - - - - K - E - N
Singhera 2250% 163,08 21581 - - {184,310) 214 644 . o o 5 = - P
Chanda 1T.50% - 451381 - - . 452,381 - - - - - - 452 H1
Bitrern 22 50% 5 & 3 ? D : . 0 g - a o q
HFinrksi 280% 108,700 - {18248 - - b1, 444 - - - - - - 241
Becammssianing sesi 124,485 - - (11.3H) - 112,524 - . - 7IM . 7™ 105,230
SHib tolal divilapinyg Mlkds L0 AL 1,656,871 (16277 EATel] {1,064,224) #,100, 561 - . - i 108544 185371 3., M
Taosl 48,808 174 6475 A0 (225725) [FIEFIET 1,775,763 56 504,019 11,022 418 4,719,174 15,781,489 FREEL] 308,352 4434757 18,367 §#23

101 Qeveloping Srkds comprsa af cost of wells and alsbed arpandiita which arm undin developmand! under drliing and_ hance, no pmosizatan tharecn has ee ehanged



102 DEVELQPMENT AND PROCQUCTION ASSETS

2022 Cosl AmOriERian Impairmend Camying mourt
o e ok . Aaat Charge/ As at Asal
Particulars Wharking .JuIyA1s , Sogr  Addiions  Adisments. Desommissioning  Transler Jumaai:‘,“;azz July'qf P00t o e JuneA::J?tztlzz dudy 1, 2021 :Reve?sal] June 30,2022 June 30, 2022
Intgres) Cost iox this wear
Rupees (00— e e —————Rupwsas (06} Rupeas (‘4] Fupees (000)
Preducing fields-Jeint oparations
Badin (1l 25.0% 306,792 - - - - 306,752 306,702 . 306,72 - - - -
BHock-22 [all fialds} 22.50% 268,275 - (B, ZF0) - - 259905 213,085 {8370} 204,718 55187 - 55 1B7 -
AnrnadaliPariwali 17, 50%, 7aTa T3 - - - 773472 555,517 41 565 B37.512 . - - 141 980
Mirnwal 17.50% 3647 184 - - S 383 1,686 = 1.782 - - - 2045
Wazarani 12.50% 135,841 - (33) - - 136 602 115,312 {38} 115273 21,528 - 21,228 1
Sawan 23 50% 3411, 766 8 BES - - o 342031 2,596,330 25 BBS 2823018 504 083 - 604 DE] 193,240
2amzama 25 00% 4,554, 36% 1,883 {587) - 218 7@l 4774 426 36834826 27 Ti5 4711562 B7D 28T 148 443 1,018 730 48,134
Maubarak, 25.00% 1,351,278 53,482 - - - 1,404 70Q 215,260 55551 272,211 1,025 477 B4 298 1,068 A7S 42,514
Him 22 % 291,283 18,438 = - 151065 S0 Bad 115,902 121,580 237 483 - - - 263 351
Meshean 25.00% 59,2035 - - - - 68 202 1,933 - 1,843 BY 270 - E7 270 -
Chianda 17.50% 161254 511 11,1231 {721 - 1616436 &9, 805 1B5.BE75 1,168 480 - - - 449 955
Gambat 25.00% 441 435 954 - - . 442 43 241,756 ==t 242 120 190 682 - 19§ 662 4
Tal (all fialds} 15.00% B 274 350 26,251 - {118 826} - B 253 675 4 839, 51% 432 BOS 5272414 - - - a3 255
Khipro (@il falds} 26.00% 2,870,245 411 781 (20 4B8) (15.B47} - 3,245,841 2,230,132 183,212 2413344 - - - 832 647
MipurkKhes (all hakds) 25.00% 5570871 TogE14 (41 171} (37 BBE) - &,200 828 4 BOE 06 530,142 5,136 448 - - - 1,064 180
Chachar 25.00% 257 A9 - . 15,0AD) & 261,851 158,955 104 159,080 61,855 - 51,855 45
Nashpa 15.00% 5,007,511 4 441 (15,288} I7.572) 41,3591 5025453 2,048,007 535 B35 2,734 802 - - - 2254 581
Sinjtwra 22 .50% 501,138 3418 - (5,186) - B30, 290 A70. 584 102,009 472 802 - - = 357788
Mahar 25 00% 3318 982 1,058,157 {5,734} - - 4372405 1,194,311 551,419 1,745,720 - BF1.2i8 BF1.218 1955 457
Jhakea £2.50% 1G0T - - - - 10407 10,020 49 10,4748 - 28 28 -
Guddu 22.50% 154,510 29 - . = 154 825 111,424 8431 119,855 - . . 35,084
Bolan 17.50% 583, TS 2,950 (524) . - 566,815 72,328 140,783 473,114 . - - 82704
Gambal South 25 0% 1809757 - (3,503) {70, %24) - 1,734,930 539,533 162,938 To2 827 - - = 1,032 403
Butrizim 42.50% 285,080 26,827 - - - 33807 Fo220 50012 120,232 - - - 192 875
Tando &llah ‘var (all fislds) 22.50% 267,750 &7 B {10,118) - 258,514 179.012 36,362 215374 - . - 43,145
Shah Bancar 2.50% 59,851 4 - {9381 - 55,017 11 .M2 45,584 57030 . . - 14987
Khgrwari 22.50% 176,725 5,595 - - 27,440 205,783 - 87T 570 g . . 202,993
Decammissicning cogt 5,284 548 443 577 - {681,178} - 3062 347 1,337, 833 523613 1,861 535 195,352 36,558 31,9 268,850
Sub tatal producing fislds 43 B55038 3,242,847 (38,625 {552 263; 438677 45,267 712 27217250 3,B06.248 a1,022 499 A, 130,501 BBESE 4048157 11,718 057

“This includes reversal of decomimissianing cost Bmourtng Rs. 271 UHES thousand diredlly mada sgainst related field assets unger provisions of IFRIC 1 - Changaes In axisting decommissiaming, restaralian and stmilar liabdivas,
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Developing figlds-taint operations

2072 Cost Amartizalian Imprairme it Carrying amourt
Adjustment of
As al : . As at Az al Charge LHE] Az at Charge &% al A at
Pasticulars Inerany duly 3, 2ogy  Adatens - Adustments mmmg:"t ohing  THNSEE e 30,2022 Juiyl, 2021 fortheyear Juns 30,2022 July 12021  far the year Jume 36,2022 June 30, 2022
mnmmarmmmmnmnnmneee Ry s OO0 Rupees ['000) Rupess (00—  Rupess (000}

Developing flelds-Joint aperations

Mahar 25.00% - - - . . - - - - - - - -
AnmadaliPariwali 17.50% - - - . - = 5 = F P . - -
Tande Allah var (all fisdds) 22.50% . 25 . - - 75311 - - - . - 25311
Kamndra 25.00% 3577 . . - . 3577 - - - 3577 - 3577 -
Him 22.50% 146,258 . - I! {151,088 (2.BD7) E - . . - . wll e L]
Kotra 20.00% 59,343 - (1,401} - B7.B42 - - - S0.624 - 50,824 718
Mubiarak 2E.0D% - B - - - - - - - - - . -
Tal 15.00% 5 255,365 - - - 233,366 - - - - - . 255,356
Mirpurkhas (2l fields) 25.00%0 - 139,761 - - . 134,784 - - - - - - 199,791
Khipro {all fields) 260084 7420 148,887 - - . 156 287 - - - - - - 156,287
Sawan 22.50% - - - - - - - - - - = - -
Nashpa 15.00% 48614 555,368 - - [41,301) 72581 - - - - - - vz, 541
Magarani 12.50% - - - - - - - - - = = - -
Baddin il 25.00% - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Gambat South 25.00% 70,684 - - - - 70,684 - - . - - - 70684
Block-22 22.50% 15,524 - - - - 15,524 - - - §5.534 - 15534 -
Zemzema 25.00% 218,781 o - - (218,781} - - - - 148 443 {148 442} - -
Smijhoro 22.50% - 183010 o - - 163,010 - - - B - - 163,014
Charda 17.50% - - B - - - - - - - - - -
Burigm 2150% . . = - - - - . . - - - .
Khewan 22.50% 154,186 42,523 (o0, 575%) - {27 440} 108,704 - - - - - . 108,700
Decommizsioning cost 155,546 161 - 452128 - 124,455 - - - 7,284 - 7204 117,201
Sub total devaloping fields 1825953 1.340,377 81,580 (45,312} (439,677 2620,481 - - - 223672 (145, 443) 77229 2543232
Tatal 45.489.980 4,584,084 [150,808) {997,475} - 48 508,173 27217250 3,805,248 31,022,454 139,173 772,213 4,126,385 13,75%.289

103 Developing fields compriss of o of walls and nalaled expenditue which are under gevelppmany onder driling @nd, ReNce, No AMoRzation Iesaan has Deen chamged
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LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN ASSCOCIATES

Unqguoted Company

Pakistan International Qil Limited (FIOL) - Foreign Operation

Cost of investrment (3,500,000 (2022: 2,500,000) fully
paid crdinary shares of USD 10 each) 11.1

Post acquisition loss brought forward
Share of loss for the year 113
Effect of translation of investment

Fost acquisition loss carry forward
Closing Balance

Pakistan Minerals (Private) Limited - PMPL
Cost of investment
Issued Share Capital (4,000 (2022: Nil) fully
paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each)
Advance against equity
11.3
Share of loss for the pericd - net of tax
(Nov 24, 2022 to Jun 30, 2023) 11.4
Share of effect of translation of investment
in foreign assaciate - net of tax
Post acquisition profit carry forward
Closing Balance

2023

2022

6,431,700 4,205,500
{2,039,511) .
2o7,110)] [ (2.512.552)
1,460,802 474,041
1,163,792 (2,039,511
(875,719) (2,039,511
5,555,981 2,165,959
40 -
36,569,163 .
36,569,203 -
{386,040}
14,020,097
13,634,057 "
50,203,260 -
55,759 241 2,165,988

Pakistan International Qil Limited (PIOL} is a company engaged in the business of extraction of oil and
natural gas and is registered as a limited liability company in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi and incorporated in
Abu Dhabi Global Market. Each consortium company (investors) which includes the Helding Company,
Mari Petroleum Company limited (MPCL), Pakistan Petroleum Company Limited {PPL} and Oil & Gas
Development Company Limited (OGDCL) have a 25% equity stake in PIOL. During the period, the Holding
Company subscribed to a further 1 milion ordinary shares of PIOL, by paying further USD 10 million (Rs

2,228 million).

The share of lass for the year mainly relates to explaration and evaluation expenses incurred by PIOL.

NATLL
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11.3 The Holding Company made a deposil of Rs 35,801 million (2022: Rs 34,301 million) for investment in Reko Dig Project,

1.5

subject 1o conditions precedent as set ouwt in Framework Agreement signed on March 20, 2022. The Framework
Agreement sets out the conditions for the recanstitution and development of Reko Dig Mining Project. All the conditions
precadent, including but not limited to, the signing of the definitive agreements and judicial validation were completed as
on December 15, 2022. The Helding Company has invested in the project company. i.e. Reko Dig Mining Company
{Private) Limited (RDMC) through Pakistan Minerals (Private) Limited {PMPL}, an entity incorporated in Pakistan under
COmpanies Act, 2017, with initial subscribed share capital of 12,000 shares with par value of Rs 10 each in accordance
with the agreernents for collective represeniation of the Holding Company, Pakislan Petroleum Limited {FPL) and Qil and
Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL}, together called the State Owned Enterprises (SOEs). RDMC is engaged in
the mineral exploration activities in Pakistan. PMPL holds an indirect working interest of 25% (8.33% of each SOE) in the
RDMC through offshore holding companies namely Reke Dig Holdings Limited and Reko Dig Investments Limited
{herainafter referred to as "Holdcos"y. ROMCG is incorporated in Pakistan and Holdcos are incorporated in Bailiwick of
Jersey. The Holding Company's equity interest in PMPL is 33.33% with an effective interest of 8.33% in ROMGC. The SOEs
have representation on the Boards of Holdcos and RDMC through PMPL.

The investment in PMPL by the Holding Cormpany has been accounted for as an associate with the carrving amount of
investment amounting to Rs 35,901 million, based on the total purchase consideration paid by the Holding Company in the
form of initial entry fee Rs 34,301 millien and the interest payments Rs 1,600 million thereon tili December 15, 2022, Inilial
accounting in respect of acquisition under the applicable financial reporting framework involves identifying and determining
the fair values to be assigned to the investee's identifiable assets and liabilities, for determination of geodwill or bargain
purchase gain, if any. The Holding Company has conducted its assessment for identification and valuation of assets and
liabilities of the investee, and as a result of this assessment has not idenlified any goodwill or bargain purchase gain in the
afaresaid acquisition.

During the year, the Holding Company made addilianal investrent in PMPL amounting to Rs 668 million which increased
the tetal equity investment of the Holding Company in the asscciate lo Rs 36,569 million as at June 30, 2023. In addition to
the initial subscribed share capital, PMPL is in the process of issuing shares to the Holding Company against further equity
contribulions.

Furhermore, discussions are currently in progress in respect of the interest expressed by a potential investor in the equity
stake of PMPL in the Reko Dig project. However, as of the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
nothing has been materialized.

The loss for the period mainly relates to PMPL's share of less in its associated Company, Reko Dig Holdings Limiled
{RDHL} while the other comprehensive income relates Lo gain on retranslation of PMPL's share of investment in foreign
operation [-e RDHL.

Summarised financial information for associates

The share of loss of PMPL and the below summarized financial information is based on the audited financial statements of
the associate for the period from inception to June 30, 2023 whereas share of loss of PIOL and the below surimarized
financial information is based on the audited financial statements of the associate for the period from incaption 1o
December 31, 2022, adjusted for fransactions and events up to June 30, 2023 based on management accounts, in USD,
converted inlo PKR at closing exchange rate.

PMPL PIOL
2023 2022 2023 2022
----------- Rupees ("000) — Rupees ('000}----mnmmnmmv

Summarised statement of financial position

Current assels 120,521 - 14,080,066 2,988,078
Non-current assets 167,171,543 - 8,845,652 6,310,510
Current {8,590) - {70,696) (614,634)
Non Current liabilities {(16,710,030) - C
Net assels 150,573,444 - 22,223,922 8,653,954

HAFLY.
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PMPL PIDL
2023 2022 2023 2022
------------- Rupees ("000) Rupees ("000)------------

Recoenciliation to carrying amounts:

Opening net assets - §,663,954 -
Issued share capital 120 8,904,800 16,822,000
Advance againsl issue of shares 109,671,153 B
Profit f (loss) for the period {1,158,120) {1,188,439) {10,054,208)
Other comprehensive income f {loss) 42,060,291 -
Retranslation of investment - 5,843,607 1,896,162
150,573,444 22,223,922 5,663,954
Company's percentage shareholding in 33.33% 25% 25%
Company's share in carrying value of 50,191,148 5,555,981 2,165,983
Others - exchange rate difference on equity contribxution: 12,112 - o
50,203,260 5,555,981 2,165,988
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the {1,158,120) {1,188,439) (10,054 208)
Share of comprehensive loss {386,040) {297,110) {2,513,552)
2023 2022
Note  -ememeeee- Rupees {'900}---------- =
INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
TAPI Pipeling Company Limited (TPCL) 124 1,592,996 1,209,453
Opening cost of investment
(825,000 shares (2022: 825,000 shares) of USD 10 each) 1,077,561 1,077 551
Investment during the year S S
Closing cost of investment
(825,000 shares {2022: 825,000 shares) of USD 10 each) 1,077,561 1,077,561
Posi acguisition gains / {losses) brought forward 131,902 {102,377}
Share of loss for the period - net of laxation (35,433} {80211}
Foreign exchange transiation gain 418,966 284 490
Posl acquisition gain carry forwarg 515,435 131,902
Balance at the end of the year 1,592,996 1,209 463

TPCL, the joint venture is registered in the tsle of Man, with registered address as Forte Anne, Douglas, Isle of Man, 1M1,
5FD. as a limited liability company and its head office is situated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. TPCL is principally
engaged to carry out the husiness of developing, engineering, funding the construction of, procuring the equipment
engineering and other services for construclion and operation of, constructing owning, operating and providing
maintenance for the proportion of TAPI pipeline rinning from the borders of Turkmenistan and Afghanistan to the border of
Pakistan and India. The capacity of the TAPI pipeline is expected to be 35 billion cubic meters per annum. The Group
through ISGSL holds 5% equity interest in TRCL, however it has joint control due to its rights in decision making of TPCL.
Linder the terms of Shareholders Agreement, decisions about significant relevant activities shall be approved unanimously
by all the founding shareholders.

The investment in joint venture has been made in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017,

URF 4L
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The following table summarizas the financial information of the TPCL as included in the latest available unaudited
management accounts for the 12-month pericds ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. The table also reconciles the
summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the Company's interest in TPCL.

2023 2022
—————— Rupees {'000}-—------m-.
Summarized statement of financial position
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,114,684 5020637
Other current assets 209,987 44,841
Non-current assets 26,539,381 19,221,764
Current liabilitiss {17,035) {109,146)
Non-current liabiiities 12,372 9,167
Net assels 31,859,308 24 189,263
Reconciliation to carrying amounts:
Opening net assets 24,144,483 21245872
Total comprehensive loss for the period {654,831) (361,785
Shareholder account - -
Foreign exchange translation gain 8,370,257 3,305,180
Closing net assets 31,859,909 24,189,263
Company's percentage shareholding in ihe joint venture 5% 5%
Companry's share in carrying value of net assets 1,542,996 1,209,463
Summarized statemeni of comprehensive income
Loss Tor the period {654,831) {361,789)
Depreciation for the year {33,189) (40,091}
RECEIVABLE FROM GOVERNMENT QF PAKISTAN (GoP)
2023 2022
I Current s CTe Total Current Mon - Current Total
Current

----------------- Rupees (000} Rupees {'000)---~----m--x-s---
Receivahle from GoP 131
Principal ameunt - 64,899,131 64,899,131  61,885/156 - 61,885,156
Accrued interest 5,548,325 - 5,548,325 2,071,809 - 2,071,809

5,548,326 64,899131 70,447,456 53,966,865 - 53,966,965

This represents receivable from GoP against amount paid by the Holding Company in connection with the Reko Diq
Project on behalf of the Government of Balochistan (GoB} upon instructions of the Faderal Government. The principal
amount is inclusive of all related expenses i.e. transaction cost, out of pocket expense incurred by the company. During the
year ended June 30, 2022, the In order to fulfill the commitment of the Government of Pakistan (GoP) towards the
Government of Balochistan (GoB), the Holding Company arranged a short term finance facility for nine months. The
Helding Company settled the short term finance during the year. The settlement of short term finance facility was financed
by the Holding Company through long term loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) for tencr upto seven year which
resulted in the apportionment of the principat amount of the berrowing from NBP and ralated receivable from GoP as wall
as related finance cost / incoma into cument and nen-current assets and liabilities.

NiVe i
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2023 2022
---------- -Rupeeas ['000)--------—

Movement in principal amount and interest accrued is as follows

Principal Amount:

Balance at beginning of the year 61,805,156 .
Additions during the year 3,003,975 671,895,156
Principal amouni received during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 64,899,131 61,895,156

Accrued Interest;

Balance at beginning of the year 2,071,809 o
Interest accrued during the year 9,714,875 2,071,809
Interest on loan from NBP directly repaid by GoP {6,238,359) -
Balance at end of the year 5,548,325 2,071,809

LONG TERM LOAN

2023 2022
Note o ent Mo Total Current Nan - Current Total
Current
------------- Rupees ('000) Rupees (000)-——-—-————-
Loan to staff 25,504 72,683 98,587 33,307 20,368 53,675
25,904 72,683 98,587 33,307 20 368 538675

Thig includes loan te managing director /chief executive officer amounting to Rs. 2.667 million (2022: Rs. 5.598 milliorn),
The loan was granted in accordance with the Group's service rules and is deductible against salary and carries ne interest,
The loan was fully repaid during the yaar

2023 2022

----------- Rupees {"00Q)-----=-=--.
Balance at beginning of the year 2677 5,598
Loan disbursed during the year E -
Repayment recaived during the year {2,677) {(2,921)
Balance at end of the year - 2677
DEPOSIT WITH THE GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN
FOR EQUITY STAKE IN REKO DIQ PROJECT
Deposits for equity stzke in Reko Dig project 151 - 34,301 231

On March 17, 2022 the Government of Pakistan {GoP), through the Federal Cabinet, ratified the decision of the Economic
Coordination Committee (the Decision) which approved inler alia issuance of directions to the Holding Company, Pakistan
Petroleum Limited {PPL) and Qil and Gas Development Company Limited {OGDCL) (callectively the SOEs) to participate
in reconstitution of a joint mining project at Reko Dig (the Project). As part of the setflement arrangement, Barrick Geld
Corporation {Barrick) will be retaining 50% sharsholding in Tethyan Copper Company Pakistan {Pvt) Limited (TCCP)
along with operatorship, whereas the other sharehclder, Antofagasta PLC will exit TCCP upon receipt of USD 900 million
and subject to other conditions precedent. TCCP will be renamed to Reko Dig Mining Company {Private) Limited {RDML)
as a part of these developmenis.
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Pursuant to the Decision, each SOE was also directed to pay USD 187.%5 millicn {collectively USD 5G2.5
miflion) into an escrow account maintained by the Hongkong Shanghai Banking Corporation, and jointly
operated by the GoP and Antofagasta as entry fee which would be utilized towards acquisition of 8.33%
interest of each SOE in TCCP. The entry fee atiributable to the Government of Balochistan {GoB) would be
funded by the GoP amounting to USD 337.5 million. On the basis of the decision, the Board of Directors of
the Holding Company resolved to enter into a non-binding framework agreement with the GoP, the GoB,
PPL, OGDCL and Barrick, which sets out, inter alia, the ownership / transaction structure, rights,
obligations and common objectives of the parties towards facilitating the implementation of the Project
{Framework Agreement). In terms of the Framework Agreement, several conditions are required to be
satisfied before binding arrangements are effective including receipt of administrative and regulatory
approvals, execution of definitive agreements, deposit of USD 900 million in a designated escrow account,
stabilization of the fiscal regime and legislative and judicial validation amongst others. Further, an interest
at the rate of US Prime plus 2% {Interest Amount) was payable to Antofagasta, if the conditions were not
satisfied by June 30, 2022.

Subsequent to the Decision and based on written advice from the Finance Division dated March 28, 2022
and approval of the Board of Directors, the Holding Company deposited its corresponding share of the
entry fee amounting to USD 187.5 millien (Rs 34,301 million) in an escrow account maintained by the
Hengkong Shanghai Banking Corporation, and jointly operated by the GoP and Antofagasta. Further, the
Holding Company agreed to fund its correspending share of the Interest Amount as and when accrued and
payable.

As the conditions set out in the Framework Agreement were not satisfied by June 30, 2022, the Holding
Company deposited additional amount of Rs. 1,599.9 million, on account of interest equivalent to US
Prime plus 2% on the Holding Company’s deposit of USD 187.5 million with the GoP, as mentioned above.

On December 9, 2022, the apex court declared the agreement signed with the Canadian Company Barrick
Gold Corporation for the development of the Reko Dig mine in Balochistan "legal”. Consequently, the
Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet approved the opening of an escrow account for
depositing $900 million for making the project aperational. On December 12, 2022, the upper house of
parliament approved the Foreign Investment {Promotion and Protection) Bill, 2022 to promote and protect
forgign investment in relation to the Reko Dig project.

Upon completion of all the pre-conditions as set out in the Framework Agreement, including but not limited
to, the signing of the definitive agreements and judicial validation by December 15, 2022, the transaction
for reconstitution of Reko Diq project was completed. Consequently the Holding Company's deposit with
GoP for equity stake in Reko Dig Project amounting Rs. 35,201.17 million, comprising of [nitial depasit and
interest payment, was transferred to Pakistan Minerals {(Private) Limited (PMPL) with effect from
December 15, 2022, under the share subscription agreement dated December 1, 2022 signed between
S0OEs and PMPL which has been further explained in note 11.

2023 2022
Note vrmmeeees -Rupees {'000)—------m-memm-
Movement during the year
Initial deposit with GoP ($ 187.5 million) 34,301,231 34,301,231
Interest payments 1,599,940 =
Total deposit with GoP for equity stake in Reko Dig Project 35,901,171 34,301,231
Equity stake in Reka Diq against deposit with GoP 11.3 (35,901,171) -

m,aa,ﬂ - 34,301,231
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2021 2022
Note ———-—oo- Rupees {'0}0)s=msrencnnnsnna
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS - SHARE IN
JOINT OPERATIONS' INVENTORY
Store, spares and loose tools 5,296,066 4,628,463
Impairment for slow maving and cbsalete stores, spares
and loose tools 161 {495,707} {495,707)
4500359 4,132,756
Movement of provision for slow moving, obsolete
and in transit stores
Balance at beginning of the year 495707 495,707
Impairment {raversal) / charge for the year - 5
Balance at end of the year 495,707 495,707

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not yet distinguishable,

2023 2022
Note  reemmecsmmams Rupees {"000)---—-mmm-mmmem
STOCK-IN-TRADE
LNG held with third pariy 17.1 8,382,078 15,619,240
RLNG held in pipeiine 17.2 101,347 101,347
8,483,425 15,720,587

This represents closing stock of LNG 86,091.66 m? (2022: 135,823.76 m? inventory held with PGP Consgortium
Limited {PGPCL) at the Floating Storage ang Regasification Unit {FSRU) as at June 30, 2023. Furthermare, the
inventory includes a stock of 38,310.03 m? on account of borrawing and tending mechanism with SNGPL, in relation
to LNG cargoes received PLL at FSRU. As per the mechanism, the LNG inventory in MMBTU terms is recouped by
FLL from subsequent month cargo received by SNGFL. The borrowing and lending mechanism is a malecule to
malecule adjustment, with no financial fransaction taking place between SNGPL and PLL.

This represents RLNG held in 14 km pipeline between Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU) and
Custody Transfer Systern (CTS).

2023 2022
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Accrued interest receivable on bank deposits 18.1 206,255 218 721

This represents interest accrued on bank deposits carrying mark-up at the rate ranging between 18.50% and
20.00% per annum {2022: 11.50% and 13.00% per annum),

F]
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2023 2022

TRADE DEBTS Note  wueeumuecmae —~Rupees {'000)--—-—--—-
Unsecured - considered good 292,997,128 272175706
Unsecured - considered doubtful 196,700 539,704
293,193,828 272,715,410

Provigion for doubtful debts 19.3 (196,700) {539,704)
292 997 128 272,175,706

Trade debts include overdue amount of Rs. 263,190 million {2022 Rs. 237,461 million) on account of inter-corporate
circular debt, receivable from cil refineries and gas eompanies out of which Rs. 116,505 million {2022: Rs. 80,718
milion) and Rs. 146,684 rmillion (2022: Rs. 156,743 million) is mainly overdue from related parties, Sui Southern Gas
Company Limited and Sui Nerthem Gas Pipeline Limited respectively. The management of the Group considers this
amount to be fully recoverable because Government of Pakistan (GoP) has been assuming the responsibility to
setle the inter-corporate circular debt in the energy sector. The Government of Pakistan {GoP) is committed, hence
continuously pursuing for satisfactory seitlement of inter-corporate circutar debt issue, however, the progress is
slower than expected resulting in accumulation of the Group's trade debts. The Group recognises interest f
surcharge, if any, on delayed payments from customers only 1o the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of income recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest /
surcharge is subsequently resolved, which is when the interest / surcharge on delayed payments is received by the
Group. As disclosed in note 3.3 to these consolidated financial statements, Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) has defarred the applicability of ECL model till December 31, 2024 on financial assets due directly
{ ultimately from GoP in consequence of the circular debt,

Total amount due from related parties as on June 30, 2023 is Rs. 284,147 miliion {(2022: Rs. 261,220 million) and
maximum amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 284,147 million (2022: Rs. 261,220 million}.
For party wise details refer note 46.2.2.

2023 2023

------------- -Rupass {'000)--—-------mnmmn
Movernent in provision for doubtful debis
Balance at heginning of the year 539,704 o
Frovision during the year - 539,704
Reversal of provision {343,004) -
Balance at end of the year 196,700 535,704
RECOVERABLE FROM TAX AUTHORITIES
General sales tax recoverable 201 9. 587,829 9,337,737

This mainly pertains to import of LNG cargos and management is confident that it is adjustable against future sales
of the Group. General sales tax recoverable has been recognised taking inte account the availability of future sales
as per business plan of the Group. The existence of future sales is based on business plan which involves making
judgements regarding key assumptions underlying the estimation of the future sales of the Group. These
assumptions, if not met have significant risk of causing a material adjustment te the carrying amount of general
sales tax recoverable. The management believes that it is probable that the Group will be able to achieve the sales
projected in the business plan.

2023 2023
LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABELES @ ccrvreessvess Rupees ('000)-—-—---—nummm-
Secured
Advances against salary io staff 211 67,772 10,013
Unsecured and considered good
Advances to suppliers 4,136 11,221
Advance against arbitration 78,026 84,931
Other receivable 21.2 947 917 203,809
1,097 851 320,174

The advances are granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the Group's service rules, These advances
are for short term period against salaries and carry no interest.

S
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It includes Rs. 20045 milien (2022: Rs. 200.45 million) related to cost incurred and paid by the Subsidiary
Company, PLL, oh commissioning carge due to associated costs such as extended lay time, additional crew and
activities refated to commissioning of Floating Sterage and Regasification Unit {(FSRU). It will be recovered from Sul
MNorthern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) after the actualisation of provisional price by Qi and Gas Regulatry
Authority (OGRA).

2023 2022
Note  eeecemeameans -Rupees ("000}-—---—-mm-m-
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits 1,031 330
Short term prepayments
Software maintenance fee 11,308 4 128
Insurance 3,782 7,159
Others 6,903 7.529
26,993 18,816
28.024 19,146
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment held at amortised cost
Term deposit receipts 231 31,065,431 25,446 864
interest accrued 362,127 71,031
31,427 558 25 917 895

The break up of Investment in term deposit receipts placed with the commercial banks is as undar:
Credit rating Rating agency Rate

Investmants maturing within three months

A1+ PACRA 20.25% 8,000,000 -
A-1+ PACRA 20.25% 8,000,000 10,000,000
A-1+ PACRA 21.15% 12,000,008 4,000,000
A-1+ Vis 14.80% 3,065,411 1,371,864
A-l+ WIS - 75000
Interest accrued 362,127 43,894
31,427 558 15,490,758

Investments maturing after three months

A-l+ VIS - 10,000,000
interest acerued o 27137

- 10,027,137
Total investments 31,427,558 25,517,895

This include Rs 5,000 million (2022: Rs nil) which is subject to restriction as the amount is reserved against funded
mining project reserve which is further explained in note 28.9.

Term deposit recaipts (TDRs), including interest accrued thereon, of Rs 3,169.542 million have been placed as a
guarantee on account of Sindh Infrastructure Cess, as referred to in parz i of note 35.1.3.2. After conclusion of
Coun proceedings and the related judgement by the Court, the amount will be released accordingly.
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2023 2022
Mote ccemeeeeend] Rupees (000} r--=rrraun -
24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash:
- In hand 1,864 1,991
- At banks 241
Saving accounts 23,579,940 17,571,511
Current accounls 113 30,721
23,581,917 17,804,323

241  These carry mark-up at the rate ranging batween 6.83% and 20.00% per annum (2022: 3.01% and 13.00% per annum).

2023 2,022
Note  -—eemees Rupees {'00{)----—-eemmm-
24.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in term deposit receipts 231 31,427 558 15,490,758
Cash and bank balances 24 23,581,017 17,604,323
Accrued interest on savings accounts 18 296,255 216,721
55,305,730 33,311,802
Less:
TDRs reserved against mining project reserve 232 (5,000,000} -
TDRs marked with lien for bank guarantee 23.3 (3,169,542} -
(8,169,542) =
47,136,188 33.311,802
25 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
-------------- Number of shares—-----veei— mmmmemeeee-RUpges ((000)——cm-ememme
4,500,000,000 4,500,000, gpp rONarY shares of Rs. 10 each 45,000,000 45,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
------------ Number of shareg..eceeeeeen reememsmmmnns RUPEES ("DO()-mmmmmmmmemam
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in
2!322!121!233 2,132, 756,107 cash 23,221,212 21,327 561
2,164,316,981 2103,260,087 weighted average shares
251 The movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital is as follows:
2023 2022 2023 2022
wsir—— Mumber of shares Rupees ("000}--——— —
At July 1 2,132,756,107  2,088,512,002 21,327,561 20,885,121
Crdinary shares of Rs 10 each paid in
cash issued during the year 189,365,126 44,244 015 1,893,651 442,440
At June 30 2,322,121,233 2,132 756,107 23221 212 21,327 561

25.2 Governmeni of Pakistan (GoP) holds 100% shares. Of these shares. two nominee directors hold cne gualification share,
each. All erdinary shares rank equally with regard to the Group’s residual assets. GoF as holder of these shares is antitled
to dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at general meetings of the Group.

Subsequent to enactment of "Sovereign Wealth Fund Act, 2023" (the Act), Pakistan sovereign wealth fund (the Fund) is to
be established by the Government of Pakistan (GoP). Subject to the creation of the Fund, the entire shareholding of the
GoP in the Group is expected to be transferred 1o the Fund subject to reguiatory approvals and other precedural matters,

0FFEL. .
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2023 2022
Advance against issue of shares 00000 e Rupees {{000)emmmmmmancunan.
Balance at beginning of the yaar 2,329,895 2,335,087
Advance received against issue of shares 88,825 436,244
Issue of shares {1,893,651) (442 440)
Balance at end of the year 525,069 2,329 895

Ecenomic Coordination Committee {ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, in its decision on Case No ECC-145/25/2015
dated December 15, 2016, in respect of the “Funding of Expenditure of Inter State Gas Systems Private
Limited", approved that the Holding Company is to fund all project activities of ISGSL as a 100% subsidiary
company and all Government investments {e.g. from GIDC) in projects being undertaken by ISGSL shall be
routed through the Holding Company. Pursuant to the foregoing, the Finance Division vide its Office
Memorandum No. F. 4(2) CF-V/2007 dated Octeber 24, 2017 instructed ISGSL to issue shares to the Holding
Company and going ferward the Holding Company is required to issue the shares in the name of the President
of Pakistan through Secretary Mo Energy {Petroleum Division) in relation to the Government's investrment in
ISG5L's projects. Accordingly, the increase in share capital of the Holding Company represents Government's
investment in ISGSL being routed through the Holding Company.

2023 2022
Note - Rupees {'000)=smeesomaeen -

RESERVES
Revenue reserves
General reserve 262 - 2,284,626
Foreign currency translation reserve 26.3 2,163,359 748,778
Foreign currency translation reserve - 26.4 14,020,097 -
associated company

16,183,456 3,033,404
Capital reserves
Committed outlay reserve 26.5 - 20,948 247
Asset insurance resarve 286 - 3,000,000
Assets acquisition reserve 26.7 5,000,000 5,000,000
LNG project reserve 28.8 - 25,000,000
Mining project reserve 269 20,000,000 0

25,000,000 53,946,247

41,183,456 56,979,631

The Group has appropriated and created these reserves in accordance with the principles of prudence.

The general reserve was created to cater for contingencies related to relevant interest carried cost based on
current exploration commitments and other unforeseen events. During the year, this reserve has been reverted
back to accumulated profits.

This represents the translation reserve net of related tax of the retranslation of the investment in the associated
company and joint venfure.

This represents accumulated balance of translation effect of a foreign operation in Rupees of associated
company.

The committed outlay reserve was created for future requirements based on expected cash outiay for capital
commitments, decommissioning obligations and liability against relevant interest carried cost, During the year,
this reserve has been reverted back to accumulated profits,

The asset insurance reserve was created for self insurance of investments in assets like wells, plants,
pipelines, vehicles and furniture & fixture of those joint operations where insurance policy has not been taken
out by the Operator. During the year, this reserve has been reverted back to accumulated profits.

DOKFL.
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In view of the Group's business expansion, it is intended to acquire sizable production reserves for which a separate
assel acquisition reserve has been established. The Group plans to continue to build up this reserve in future years.
Accordingly, this reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

This reserve was created to cater funding / financial support for LNG Projects being undertaken by incorporated
subsidiary company Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL) . During the year, this reserve has been reverted back to
accumuiated profits.

This reserve is created in view of the future funding requirements for the Reke-Diq project. This reserve is 1o be
funded for which the Group plans to accumulate the required funds over the next four years.This reserve is not
available for distribution to shareholders. Refer Note 23.2 for funds earmarked against this reserve.

2023 2022
Note  cemmeemmeeeeed] Rupees {'000}------nmmnmeen
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Dus to the joint operators 271 6,175,325 5,036,503
Current portion shown under cumrent liabilities (1,667,523} {1,599,557)
4,507,802 3,436,946

This represents long term liability on account of the Group's carried interest of 5% in the exploration expenditure of
various joint operations. This expenditure is incurred by the joint operation parinars up 1o the date of commercial
discovery, and the amount will be adjusted in five equal annual installments, against the Group's share of commercial
production in each respactive joint operation. The movermnent in amouni due to joint operators is as follows:

2023 2022

Note B e Rupees ("000)--reamoeev
Balanca at beginning of the year 5,036,503 4,331,436
Unwinding of long term liability 137,133 5,829
Payments net off exchange |oss (396,714) {109,003}
Additions / adjustments during the year 207,779 214,317
Discounting of long term liability 39 (519,532) {64€,289}
Unrealised exchange Less f (gain) on revaluation 1,710,156 1,236,213

27.2 5,175,325 5,036 503

Long term liabiiitles in US Dollars have been discounted at a rate of 5.85% per annum (2022: 3.32% per annum).

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

2023

2022

Mote weecoe—Rupees ('000)----—aneemeeen

Deferred tax asset 281 23,912,934 0,530,548
Movement in the deferred tax asset ! (liability):
Balance at beginning of the year %,530,548 (2,348 133)
Credited to the consolidated statement of prefit or loss 44 14,829,437 11,994,763
Credited ta the consalidaled statement of comprehensive income {447,051) (116,082)
23,912,934 8,530,548
Deferred tax comprises of followlng:
Taxable temparary difference arising in respect of;
Accelerated depreciation on property, plani and equipment (7.328,324) {6.301,880)
Development and production expenditure (5,275,558) (4,508,753)
Unwinding of long term liabilities (carried interest) {658,643) {131,817)
Provision for decommissioning cost {525,794) {294 443)
Effects of translation of investment in a foreign joint venture {125,674) {54,053)
Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate {483,736) {90,068)

AT

(14,397,729

(11,381,014)
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Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of:

impairment of stores, spares and loose tools

Unrealised exchange gain/ {loss)

Work in progress

Exploration and prospecting expenditure

Pravision far windfall levy on oil f condensate

Operating lease on Flealing Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRLU)
Remeasurement of employees’ retirement benefits

Net impairment less on financial assets

Share of loss from associate and foreign joint venlure

....... B

2023

2022

247,854 218,111
1,956,638 1,083,672
198,285
2,070,487 1,689,405
8,642,719 5017 560
24,288,753 12,154,047
67,005 33,722
98,350 237,470
740,572 477,575
38,310,663 20,611,562
23,912,934 9,530,548

Deferred tax has been calculated al the current effective tax rate of 50% (2022: 44%) in case of the Holding
Company and 28% (2022: 33%) in case of subsidiary companies. The change in tax rate was substantively enacted
on June 28, 2023 as a result of imposition of revised super tax rates and is effective from July 1, 2023, As a result, the
relevant deferred tax balances have been remeasured. The impact of the change in tax rate has been recagnized in
tax expense in prefit or loss, except o the exient that it relates to items previously recognized oulside profit or loss.

PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COST

Provision for decommissioning cost

Provision for decommissioning cost

Baiance at beginning of the year

Provision ! (reversal) made during 1he year

Revision due to change in estimates

Revaluation exchange loss f {gain)

Linwinding of discount on provision for decommissioning cosl

Frovision f {reversal) made during the year is distributed as under

Share in joint operations' fixed assets
Sharg in joint operations' capilal work in progress
Development and production assets

Revision due to change in estimates

Share in joint operations’ fixed assets

Share in joint operations' fixed assets - capital work in progress
Exploration and evaluation assets

Development and praduction assets

Cperating expenses

Significant financial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate per annum
Inflation rate per annum

OG-
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28.2
283

38

5.2
5.3
10

2023 2022
------------- Rupees {"000)-—----memmm-.
14,408,445 8,240,917
8,240,917 7,343,545
2,497,657 562,832
(714,814) (1,928,151
3,461,250 1,868,326
923,436 354 365
14,408 445 8,240,917
752,594 95,424
84,958 23670
1,660,105 443,738
2,497 657 562,832
[47,592) {543,078)
(1,649) (18,805)
- (21,571)
{273,815) {997,475)
{391,758) (347,222)
{714,814} {1,928,151)
7.5%~1M4% 9.0% to 9.6%
5.81% 5.00%
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Presant value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year

Charge for the year - net

Payments made during the year
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year

Principle actuarial assumptions:

Valuation discount rate (%)

Salary increasa rate (%)

Description of risks to the Group

decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Note

301

15.75% « 16.25%

14.75% to 16.25%

The compensated absences plans expose the Group to the following risks:

2023 2022

--------- —~Rupees ('000}---r—m-emx

118,013 124,681

124,680 85,586

60,369 64,020
{67,038) f24,925)

118,013 124 881
13.50%

banefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely 1o have an impact on liability.

longer than assumed.

H LOAN FROM NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN {NBP) - SECURED

Short term borrowing
Principal amount
Accried Interest

Lang term lpan
Principal amaount
Accrued Interest

WRFLL.

12.50% t0 13.50%

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corperate ! government bonds, any

Salary increase / inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary increase, where

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected i.e. the actusi life expectancy is

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experienca may different from that gssumed in the calculation.

2023 2022
Current NoD Total Current Non - Total
Current Current
---------------- Rupees ["000) -Rupees {'000}----—-—e--——
311
- - - 61,895 1566 - 51,805 166
- - - 2,071,809 e 2,071,808
31.2
- 64,899,131 64,899,131 - - E
5,548,325 - £,548 335 - - -
5,548,325 64,859,131 70,447 456 53,966 965 - 53,966,965
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This represents the short term finance facility obtainad by the Halding Company from Nationzl Bank of Pakistan {(NBP) on
bebaif of Govemnment of Pakistan {GoP] in order to fulfilf the commitment of the Government of Pakistan (GoP) towards the
Govemmant of Balochistan (GoB} in relation to Reko dig project. The Holding Company arranged & short term finance facility
secured against GoP guarantee drawn for a period of nine months, with interest calculated at @-month Karachi Interbank
Cffered Rate {KIBOR) + 0.50% effective from the dale of disbursement i.e. March 31, 2022, and was repayable directly by
the GoF in a single bullet installment. The facility has been repaid by the Helding Company during the year on behalf of GeP
by obtaining long term loan from NBP.

2023 2022
msmmnars ~Rupees ('000Q)-—----mmmne-

Balance at beginning of the year 3,966,965 :
Draw dowi during the year 2,881,322 561,895,156
Interest accrued during the year 4,166,550 2.071.809
Repayment directly made by GoF (6,238,359}

Repayments dunng the year {64,776,478) -
Balance at end of the year . £3,966,985

This represents the long term finance facility obtained by the Heolding Company form Mational Bank of Pakistan [NBP} in
order o settle the short term finance facility obtained by the Holding Company on behalf of the GaP in order to fulfill the
commitment of the Government of Pakistan (GoP) towards the Government of Baiochistan (GoB) in relation to Reko Dig
project. The loan carries interest calculated at 5-month Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) + 0.20% effective from the
date of disbursernent. The loan was availed for a tenor of seven year (inclusive of a bwo-year grace perigd) with effect from
December 31, 2022 and is repayable in equal semi annual installments of principal amount starting from June 30, 2025. The
loan is secured against a GoP guarantee and letter of comifort.

2023 2022

Balance at beginning of the year - -
Draw down during the year 64,899,131 5
Interest accrued during the year 5,548,325 =
Repayments during the year = :
Balance at end of the year 70,447,456 G

AT -
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2023 2022

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note  -—-----mmme Rupeas ('HI0)----—---—---
Trade Creditors
e to joint operators 3,905,427 3,634,747
Cie to venders for services acguired 14,017 38,283
Trade payables 3z2.1 10,808,080 25,494 185

14,727,524 20,168,215
Other Fayables
Accrued liabilities 468,570 138,804
Provision for legal disputes 35.4.32 131,800 -
Gratuity fund 322 145,964 144,450
Payable to provident fund 4,200 3.010
Sales tax payable 822,487 807 836
Part charges recovered 4,539,305 3,871,262
Withholding tax payable 210,478 5,372
Other payables 10,417 11.418
Excise duty and cess payable at import stage 3,065,431 5,569,753
Other levies (receivable) / payable 13,713 11,359
Royalty payable Ba8,657 1,317,878
Provision for windfall levy on oil / condensate 35114 17,285,437 11,403,545

27,586,559 23,285,787

42,314,083 52,454,002

This amount includes payabla ta PGP Consortium Limited (PGPCL) of Rs. 2,318.01 million (2022: Rs. 1,732.84 million) on
account of regasification charges and payabls to LNG suppliers amounting to Rs. 8,480.07 million (2022: Rs. 23,761.54
million),

The Subsidiary Company, PLL had issued demand letters to its LNG suppliers namely ENI, Gunvar International (Gl) and
Gunvor Singapore (GS) to claim the amount due to PLL in relation to amounts overbilled to PLL in lieu of port charges. In
this respect, ENI made the payment for an amount of USD 9.19 milion under protest and has started arbitration
proceadings against PLL at London Court of International Arbitration (LCIA). Hearing of the case is scheduled on
September 28, 2023 at LCIA.

In relation to suppiies made by Gunvor International (31) PLL has raised debit notes for an amount of USD 10.7 million for
the recovery of Port Charges. PLL adjusted the aforesaid amount from Gl's invoice of February 2022,

Furthermore, Gl provided a Standby Letter of Credit {SBLC) amounting to USD 53 million to PLL. Pursuant ta the Gl's
refusal to renew their performance guarantee, PLL encashed the SBLC on date of expiry i.e. March 1st, 2022. G| has
initiated arbitration proceedings with LCIA against the aforementioned adjustment and encashment. Gurvor's claim is that
{a} it has discharged its obligations under the Contract, and (b} it has not failed to satisfy or otherwise contravened or failed
to perform any of the conditions of the Centract. Subsequent to the year end, the Tribunal issued a procedural order
according to which, the Hearing of the case is scheduled in March 2024,

besides the foregoing, PLL has signed Settlement Agreement with Gunvor Singapore {GS) for an amount of USD 2.4
miliion for recovery of entire overbilled port charges and reimbursement of legal cost amounting LUSD 280,000 Subsequent
to year end the amount has been received in PLL's lawyer account.

2023 2022
Gratuityfumd ] Rupees {*000)---r--xmxxrns:
The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 501,099 393 609
Fair value of plan assets {355,135) (249 158)
Met liability at end of the year 146,964 144 450
The movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined bensiii obligation at beginning of the year 393,609 259,251
Current s&rvice cost B1,718 52,583
Interest cost 50,127 28,718
Benefits paid {48,045) (45,836)
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation 23,691 58,883
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year 501,099 393,608

R74L
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2023 2022
= mmmram e -Rupees {("000)----m-wmmremem.
The mavement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 249,159 210,499
Contributions 86,328 a4 277
Expected return on plan assets 38,387 23,518
Payment by employer on bahalf of plan 12,764 -
Benefits paid (15,944} (24, 294)
Remeasurement of plan assets (15,549} {4,841}
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 355,135 249159
The movement in asset / (liability) recognlsed in the consolidated statement
of financial position is as follows:
Liability at beginning of the year 144,451 144 450
Expense for the year 93,458 67,793
Remeasurerment loss recognised in other comprehensive income during the
year 39,240 63,724
Paymenis to the fund during the year {131,185} (65,818)
Liability at end of the year 145,964 210,148
Detail of plan assets
Cash at bank 268,832 110,367
Term deposits 26,303 138,802
355,135 249 159

Funds coverad were invested within limits specified by requlations goveming investment of approved retirement funds in
Pakistan. The gratuity plan is a defined benefit final salary plan invested through approved trust fund. The fund is governed
under Trusts Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund, Companies Act, 2017, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2004 and the
Incume Tax Rules, 2002, The trustees of the fund are respensible to plan administration and investment, The Group
appoints the trustees. All trustees are employees of the Group.

2023 2022
-------------- Rupees (*000}--—------~—
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss;
Current service cost 8,718 62,5693
Met interast cost 11,740 5,201
93,458 67,794
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive Income:
Remeasurement loss recognised on defined benefit obligation 23,691 58,883
Remeasurement loss recognised on plan assets 15,549 4,841
38,240 63,724
The remeasurement loss arislng from:
Experience adjustments 39,240 83,724
Financial assumptions - o
39,240 83,724
Principle actuarial agsumptions;: e Percentage--susue-
Valuation discount rate (%} 15.75% to 16,25% 13.50%
Salary increase rate (%) 14.75% to 16.26%  12.5% to 13.5%
Mortality rates Adjusted SLIC 2001-2005

These resuits and balances related to employses’ benefits are based on acluarial calcutations carmied out for the year
ended June 30, 2023 for the Holding Company and subsidiaries respectively. The management believes that any change in
market assumptions as of today would nat have any material impact on the consclidated financial statements.
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Description of risks to the Group
The gratuity plans expose the Group to the following risks:

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate / government bonds, any
decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilitias.

Salary increase / inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary increase, where
benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an impact on liability.

Mortality risk - The risk that the actugl morality experience is lighter than that of expected i.e. the actual life expectancy is
longer than assumed.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from 1hat assumed in the calculatian.

Investment risk - The risk of cccurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any padicular investment.

2023 2022
Note  wemveracrvmcereas Rupees {'§00)-wmemrmmnmmnamnnn
PAYAEBLE TO GOVERNMENT UNDER ITFC AGREEMENT
Balance at the beginning of the year 120,565,163 50,314 065
Utilisation during the year 33.1 5,743,642 76,464 202
Amount repaid during the year {12,410,603) (14,213,104)
Balance at the end of the year 113,898,102 120,665,163

During the financiat year ended June 30, 2019, the Government of Pakistan (GoP) and International Islamic Trade Finance
Corporation (ITFC) entered into a deferred financing facility dated April 22, 2019 with the Subsidiary Company, PLL,
designated as an executing agency by the GoP. As per the agreement, payments to LNG suppliers are processed by ITFC,
with FLL processing the payment to the State Bank of Pakistan {SBP} in the designated bank account in USD equivalant
PKR. Accordingly, during the year PLL executed 2 transactions (2022: 13 transactions) with LNG suppliers under the
agreement, amoimnting to Rs. 5,744 million (2022: Rs. 75 464 million}.

2023 2022
Note  --——-emeeeeee Rupees {*000)-------—----smmn-
PROVISION FOR TAXATION / {ADVANCE TAX)
Income tax - payable at beginning of the year {51,88B) 308,574
Income tax paid during the year {34,671,804) {27.991,363)
Provision far taxation for the year 44 39,310,172 27,630 801
Income tax - {receivable) / payable at end of the year 4 586,480 {51,888)

The tax authorities had amended the assessments of the Holding Company for the tax years 2003 to 2020 raising an
aggregate demand of Rs. 24,650 milfion, which primarily relates to deplation allowance, development and production
expenditure, decommissioning cost, super tax, unrealised exchange losses, rebate on donation and tax credits under
sectons 61, 65 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Holding Company had paid the said amourts under protest (o
avoid penalties under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001,

An amount of Rs 14 633 million out of the said aggregate demand relates to depletion allowance. The afgresaid matter has
been decided in faver of the Holding Company by Islamabad High Court for tax years 2004, 2008, 2008, 2005 and 2010,
however the matier has been taken up by tax authorities in the Hongrable Supreme Court of Pakistan wherain it is at pre
admission stage and leave to appeal is not yet granted fo the tax authorities.

The above-mentioned amount includes depletion aliowance of Rs 3,686 for which the Commissioner Appeals {CIR - A) has
decided the matter in favour of the Halding Company, however, the matter has been taken up by the tax authorities in the
Appellate Tribunal which is pending for adjucation.

The Holding Company, based on the advice of its legal counssl, is confident that it has sound grounds to defend the case on
the aforesaid issue. Howsver, considering the fact that matier has not yet attained finality due to its pending status before
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Holding company as a matter of abundant caution, has continued to provide for
tax liabiliies primarily in respect of depletion allowance, super tax, development and production expenditure and tax cradits
under section 65 in the books of accounts. In case the matter relating to the said issues are decided in favor of the Holding
Cormpany, the amount provided for as well as paid under protest in the past will be credited to the consalidated statement of
profit or loss for that year.

ARRFIY.
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2023 2022
HNote oo ~-Rupees {'000)-----~--------- -
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Government Holdings (Private} Limited {The Holding Company)
Relating to carried cost liatility 3B111 2,507,151 1,765,033
Tax contingencies B11.2 18,177,837 18,177,837
20,684,988 18,942 870

This represents contingencies in respeact of 5% carried cost of the discovered fields where Declaration of Commercialities
{DOCs) have not yet been submitted at the year end ang for those development and production leases where the Holding
Company’s estimates varies with those of the operator.

The Federal Board of Revenue {FBR) issued a show cause notice to the Holding Company in respect of non-applicability of
zero percent sales tax on crude f condensate supplies from 2009-10 1o 2013-14 as per SRO No. 549{1)42008, which
includes the condition of "import and supplies thereaf” The Holding Company disputed the notice on the grounds that it
does not import crude / condensate and has filed wiit petition with Isiamabad High Court which is pending for adjudication.
The estimatad tax contingency has been calculated based on the sales tax amount involved, penalty, and default
surcharge.

The income tax assessment for tax year 2022 and 2021 was amsnded by the Additional Commissiorer Inland Revenue
(ADCIR) by making certain disallowances and add backs including depistion aliowance, development and production
expendiure, actuarial loss, provision for windfall levy etc. and created an additional tax demand of Rs 4,917 .84 million and
Rs 4,046.82 million for tax year 2022 and 2021 respetively. The Holding Company filed appeal against the arder of ADCIR
before CIR {4) which is pending for adjudication.

Contingeney with respect to imposition of Windfall Levy on il / condensate

The Haolding Campany is a working interest cwner in Tal, Mirpur Khas, Khipro, Mehar, Mubarak, Tando Alizh Yar, Gurgalat,
Sinjhoro, Bitrisrn, Khewar and Nim Blocks whose Petroleum Concessien Agreements (PCAs) were executed under the
framework of Petrcleurn Policies 1994 and 1997. Subseguently, in pursuance to the option available under Petroleum
Policy 2012, the Holding Company along with cther working interest owners signed Supplemental Agreemeants (SAs} with
the Government of Pakistan (GoP) for conversion of eligible existing and future discoveries under aforesaid PCAs to the
Petroleun Policy {PP), 2012. Under the said amangement, price regimes prevailing in PP 2007, PP 2009 and PP 2012 in
terms of PP 2012 shall be applicable, correlated with the spud dates of the wells in the respective policies starting from
November 27, 2007, The conversion package as defined in the Sas included windfall levy on natural gas only,

On Decembar 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Divisian) notified amandments in Petreleum Policy 2012 after
approval from the Council of Common Interests (CCI) dated November 24, 2017. These amendments include imposition of
windfall levy on oil / condensate (WLO). Under the said notification, the Supplemental Agreements already executed for
serversion from Petroleurn Policies of 1994 and 1997 shall be amended within 90 days, failing which the working interest
owners will not remain eligible for gas price incentive. On January 3, 2018, Direclorate General Petroleum Concessions
{DGPC) has required all expforation and production companies to submit Supplemental Agreements fo incorporate the
aforementioned amendments in Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCAs) signed under 1994 and 1997 policies, for
execution within the stipulated time as specified atxve or to forge the incentives available for gas pricing.

Based on legal advice, the Holding Company is of the view that terms of the existing PCAs as amended to-date through the
Supplemental Agreements already executed cannot unilaterally be amended by the GoP through introduction of
amendment nor can the GoP lawfully require and direct that such amendments be made to include imposition of WLO
retraspectively and nor the GoP unilaterally hold and direct that the gas price incentive to which the Holding Company is
presently entitled to and receiving under the conversion package as enshrined under the Supplemental Agreemsnt stands
withdrawn ar the Holding Gompany ceases to be eligible for such incentive in case of failure to adopt the unilateral
amendments in the existing PCAs. Accordingly, the aforementioned amendments as well as the subsequent letters
requiring implementation of the amendments are not enforceable or binding upon the Holding Company.

The Halding Company along with other joint operation partners has challenged the applicability of WLO against the
backdrop of Supplemental Agreements already executed pursuant to PP 2012 in the Honcrable Islamabad High Court
which has granted stay order against the CC! decision dated November 24, 2017 on imposition of WLO. It is pertinent to
note that all writ petitions on subject matter have been conselidated by the Honorable High Court. The petitions are pending
with date in office.
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The cumulative impact of Windfall Levy on Qil {(WLO) since application of incrementa! gas prices up till June 30, 2023
amount to approximately Rs 27 802 million (2022: Rs 21,719 millicn). As menticned above, the Holding Company based
on the advice of legal counsels, is confident that it has valid grounds to defend the aforesaid issue in the Court and that the
issue will be decided in its favor. Howevar, wilhout prejudics to the Holding Company's legal contention and as a matter of
prudence, the Holding Company has booked provision of Rs, 17,285 million to prospectively account far the impact of WLO
from the date of the SROQ i.e. December 27, 2017 till June 30, 2023. The provisian has been adeguately disclosed in note
32,

Unitization of Salamat / Adam West Field Reserves

A reservoir communication study by an independent third party, is currently in progress to determine reserve volume
estimates and level of communication between Salamat field (operated by UEPL; GHPL Wuorking Interest (W) 25%) and
Adam West field (operated by PPL; GHPL WI: Nil}. If regervoir communication between the fields is proved then subject to
final results of the study, agreement of concerned parties and Director General Petroleum Concessicns's (DGPG) approval,
financial exposure may arise equivalent to revenue from additional preduction from the reservair to be offset by royalty f
OPEX / tax and other related expenses incurred.

Other contingencies

As part of the investment in Pakistan Imernational Qit Limited (PICL), each asscciate of the consaortium companies
ingluding GHPL have provided, joint and several, parent company guaraniees te Abu Dhabi National Oil Company
{ADNCE) and Supreme Council for Financial and Economic Affairs Abu Dhabi, UAE to guarantee the obligations of the
associate, PIOL. The exposure against the said guarantee as at year end amounts to US$ 195 million {2022: US$ 225
miltion).

On December 17, 2018, Attock Refinery Limited {ARL) filed a writ petition againat the Holding Company before [slamabad
High Court and has disputed and withheld amounts invoiced to it prior to the signing of sales agreement i.e. March 13, 2018
on account of adjustment of premium or discount as announced by Saudi Aramco for deliveries to Asian customers /
destirations under the sales agreement. The amcunt withheld and disputed by ARL amounts to Rs 411 million {2022; Rs
411 miliion). The Halding Company believes that the debit notes / invoices have been raised in accordance with the sales
agreements signed with the Gavernmant of Fakistan (GoP} and no provision is required in this respect.

Inter State Gas Systems {Private) Limited - ISGSL (the Subsidiary Company)

ISGSL has not accrued any penalty under the terms of GSPA with Mational lranian Qil Company (NIOC) - an Iran state
owned enterprise on the basis of management's assessment of related maliers. In waking its assessmeni, the
management has considered that owing to the underying facts and circumstances an extension was agreed in 2019
wherein pipeline was required to be completed by 2024 and subsequent to that various factors including pandemic and
other matiers have been an impadiment in achigving the target. Further, management of the |SGSL believes that both the
enlities need additional time to fulfil their respective obligations under the GSPA, In addition, not only the matter is being
evaiuated from legal perspective but the matter is also being considered for a Govemment to Government level discussicn
to get an extension in the limitation peried expiring in 2024. Keaping in view the foregeing angd certain other allied factors,
the managemsent believes there is least likelihood of the Group being exposed to penal consequences in foraseeable future
and accordingly, no penalty is presently required to be accrued in these consolidated financial statements.

Pakistan LNG Limited - PLL {the Subsidiary Company)
Tax Contingencies

For tax year 2018, 2019 and 2020 tax authorities amended the PLL's assessment under section 122(5A} and created tax
demand of Rs. 1,691 milien, Rs, 4207 million and Rs. 2,828 millon by making disallewances of mainly related to
unrealised exchange loss, credit of tax paid under import stage, capacity, utilisation, flexibility charges and employees
benefits encashment.

The Subsidiary Company, PLL, filed appeals on relevant forms which are currently pending, however management. based
ol *he opinion of its tax consultants, believes that they have strong arguments in these matters hence, most iikely these wiill
be decided in their favour.

Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL} entered into an Operation and Service Agreement (2SA) with PGP Consortium
Lirnited (Operater), under which the Operator was required to achieve the commercial start date on or before July 1, 2017,
failing which, PLTL was entitled to receive liquidated damages. The commercial start date was delayed by 187 days and
achieved on January 4, 2018. Accordingly in pursuance of OSA, PLTL imposed liguidated damages of USD 41.1 million
and claim for other damages of USD 991,000 The Operator disputed the demand made by PLTL and referred the matter
far intemational arbitration at Lendon Court of international Arbitration {LCIA) whereby il was original case number 204638,

SURTLL.
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PLTL sent a notice for termination of OS5A fo the Operator on October 14, 2018 with immediate effect citing persistent
breach by the Operator of its abligations under the GSA to provide adequate assurance of performance. PGPCL disputed
the terminatien and referred the matter to LCIA on February 28, 2020, whereby it was original case number 204593, The
LCIA has merged both the aforesaid arbitration matters into one under the case number 204583 and same is pending for
decision.

As per its commitment, PLL had provided Standby Lettar of Cradit {SBLC) equivalent to three {03) months capacity charge
{USD 21.48 miilion). Howaever, PGPCL had disputed the amount and had referred the matter to International Arbitration.
Further, the terminal Operator has also demanded from PLL, reimbursement of Port Qasim Royalty. PLL has disputed the
reimbursement natue of ¢laim of royalty,

Lendon Court of iInternational Arbitration (LCIA) announced its final Award an April 26, 2023 and rejected ail claims of
parties except following:

17 LCIA finds that it does not have jurisdiction over PGPCL's claim of Pre-C5D and PQA Royalty Claim.

2} Agrees with PLL's calculation of SELC amounting USD 21,482 272,

3}  Award PGPCL to pay USD 7.2 miilion along with Default Interest @ 2 months KIBOR+1% starting from March 13,
2018 to PLL on account of liquidated damages, till full and final amount is paid.

4} PLL was not entitled to terminate the OSA.

5)  Order parties to share arbitration costs in egual shares.

6)  Order PLL to pay PGPCL PKR 109.46 milion, GBP 8,534.91 and GBP 5,825.36 along with Default Interest @ 3
months KIBOR+1% starting from April 27, 2022 till final payment.

In pursuance of LCIA Award, PLL has seltled entire amount in equivalent USD as referred in 6 above amounting USD
4,141.470 an May 22, 2023, has provided SBLC amounting USD 21,482,272, on July 5, 2023, and has agreed to recover
LDs amount in equal installment of USD 800,0004- over 16 months till the amount is fully recoverad. The estimated amount
of LDs along with Interast is USD 12.43 million. During the year PLL has recovered USD 1.6 million fram PGPCL.

PGPCL has filed enforcement petition wherein they have sought relief to pay LDs amount along with Defauit Interest at an
exchange rate prevailing as on March 13, 2018. PLL has disputed the relief as the judgement currency is in USD and the
LDs amount payabfe by PGPCL has to be in USD or equivalent PKR prevailing as of the payment date. The matter is
pending with |slamabad High Court,

2023 2022
Nota ~ - ~-Rupees ('000)-~~arreasamsames
COMMITMENTS
Government Holdings (Private} Limited {the Holding Company)
Minimumn work commitment J3a.21.1 3,224 78% 3636 842

This represents the Holding Company's share in the minimurm worlc commitments relating to non-operated joint aperations
2nd the Holding Company's own capital budget,

As part of the Shareholders Agreement with the consortium partners in PIOL, associate, the Holding Company has
committed te invest upto USE 100 million in PIOL during the next five years from 31 August 2021, out of which USS$ 35
million has bean invested till 30 June 2023 (2022: US$ 25 million). The remaining amaumt of USE 65 million (2022: US$ 75
million} will be invested in subsequent years

As per the Joint Venture Agreement, for reconstitution of the Reko Dig project, the Holding Company has entered into a Jv
agreement with stakeholder under which it has commitied US$ 388 million, adjustable for inflation, to fund its contributing
interest of all cost and expenses of the proiect. The Holding Company has also provided a corporate guarantee in this
respect,

Inter State Gas Systems (Private) Limited - ISGSL (the Subsidiary Company)

FSGSL has entered inte an investment agreement in respect of which it shall be subscribing for 940,000 shares in TAPI
Pipeline Company Limited (TPCL) at a consideration of US$ 10 per share. The said subscription shall be against first,
second, third and fourth ¢losings. Commitment amounting to USD 2.65 million in respect of fourth closing is still pending,

Pakistan LNG Limited - PLL (the Subsidlary Company)

In accordance with the provisions of the Operations and Services Agreement (OSA), PLL shall pay te PGPCL a capacity
charge of USD 245 220 per day subject ky capped availability factor (95%) and a flexibility charge in the event of excess
terminal capacily ulilisation at the rate of 25% of the applicable capacity fee, from the commencement of commercial
operation date,

SATLYL.
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In accardance with the provisions of Master Sale and Purchase Agreement (MSPA], PLL is obliged lo impert ane cargo of
LNG per month fram Mis. ENI SPA (the Sellers) for a peried of 15 years respectively frem the start of commercial
operation date. Under the agreement, PLL has issued a Standby Lettar of Credit {SBLC) to Eni for USD 42,433 104.

The Company uses premises for official purposes which is rented from the Ministry of Energy (Petroleurn Division}. In
respect of the same, the Company is required to make rental paymenis to the Ministry of Energy (Patroleum Division) on
applicable rates notified from time to tme. Subsequent to year end Company has paid rent to the Ministry, due till June 30,
2021, consequent to which, the Company has recognized accrual for the rental expanse amounting to Rs. 8.17 million.

As at 30 June 2023, PLL has FATR / LC facilities with commercial banks of USD 380.79 million, which are duly secured
ageainst a Pari Passu charge on current assets registered with the SECP.

2023 2022
--------------- Rupees ("000}--------smnux---
REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS - NET
Local
Sales
- Natural gas 69,380,603 51,198 837
- Crude of 48,303,085 41,102,933
- Liquefied petroleurn gas 13,298,302 11,401,864
- Regasified liquified natural gas 114,431,048 460,982 957
Services
- Regasification services 16,429,124 5,308,898
Export
- Crude oil 7,686,164 7,841,000
270,028,931 577,636,489
Goverrmant levies:
- Sales tax (31,570,156} {75,045,3218)
- Excise duly (573,080} {701,842}
- Petroleum development levy (341,950) {349,418)
{32,485,186) {80.096,679)
237,543,745 497 539,810
237,543 745 497 539,810

As per the decision of the Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) vide case no. ECC-682F12/2018 dated May 30, 2018,
the LNG margin of PLL was increased from 2.5% to 3.75% w.ef June 01, 2018, However, implermeantation of the same is
currently pending with Oif and Gas Regukatory Authority {OGRA). Once implemented, the margin will be recovered by PLL
prospectively.

Regassified liguified natural gas sales include sales to SNGPL invoiced on provisional prices. There may be adjustment in
revanue upon issuance of final regassified liquified natural gas price notification by QGRA for the respective month, impact
of which cannot be determined at this stage for all costs. Any possible impact related to such adjustments will be adjusted
prospectively,

Contract liabilities

The Group has recognised the following contract liabilities related 10 contracts with customers of liquefied petroleum gas
{LP3G):

2023 2022
------------- ~Rupees {'100)--—-~--meeeemn-
Movement in contract liabilitias
Balance at beginning of the year 67,353 B2,097
Advances received during the vear 5,230,309 4,386 640
Transferred to revenue during the year (5,285,954} (4,401,384}
Balance at end of the year 1,708 67 353

NiVvid
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2023 2022
Note e Rupees (*000)------—mmnmemn.
ar ROYALTY AND OTHER LEVIES
Royalty 37.1 13,864,396 10,595,840
Windfall levy 372 1,398,382 763,551
15,262,775 11,359,301
3741 Rovyalty and cther levies charged by the Government of Pakistan.
372 This pertaing to production from Gambat South, Chok Sultan and Shah Bandar.
3 OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and olher direct expenses 381 99,089,563 373,322,567
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.4 2,611,052 2,581,680
Depreciation on right of use asset 7 10,701,431 10,701,431
Amorisation of development and production assels 14 4,739,174 3,805 248
Impairment 382 412,428 1,232 021
Decommissicning cost actualised during the year 65,970 71,107
Reversal due to change in decommissioning cost estimates 29.3 (391,758) {347,222)
117,227 860 391,366,832
38.1 Operating and other direct expenses
Operating expenses - joint operations & LNG 3811&3B.1.2 93,910,835 348,558,289
LNG Import related costs 5,183,689 24 472 638
Capacily, utilisation and flexibility charges {11,015) 291,640
Operations & Maintenance 5,154 -
94,089,563 373,322 567

3811 It includes the Holding Company's share in operating expenses of joint operation amounting ta Rs. 10,974 million
(2022 Rs. 8,819 milfion) mainly comgpriging of personnel cost, field / conlract services, repair and maintenance,
workovers, travelling etc.

38.1.2  Under the Master Sales and Purchase Agreement {"MSPA"} and the respective Confirmafion Natices ("CN"} signed
with LNG Suppliers "Selier" of PLL, il is agreed that PLL "Buyer" shall make payment of inveices raised by the Seller
and the Parties shall adjust port charges retrospectively upon availability of final Port Qasim Authority (PQA) invoices.
PLL an the bases of legal opinion, is of the view that definition of “Port Charges”, under the MSPA and CN, is restricted
to Pilotage Fees (inclusive of towage charges) and any Monsoon Charges, Management is of the view that any other
charges which do net fall under ihis definition of "Port Charges” are the responsibility of the Seller,

During the peried from November 2017 to October 2020, the liquified natural gas suppliers have claimed Port Charges
which included certain components. The management, based on the above legal opinion, has disputed such charges
and issued debit notes to respective lerm and spot suppliers for the recovery of such charges in the month of
Cecember 2020,

Total disputed recoverable amount on account of Port Charges from inception to Cctober 2020 was USD 27.61 million
out of which USD 12.71 million has been withheld during the year ending Jurme 30, 2021, Amount recovered in
presented in note 32 of these consolidated financial statements as liability as one of the tiquified natural gas suppliers
M/s Eni 3.p.A ("Eni") after paying the disputed amount initiated arbitration on July 23, 2021 (Suit No. LCIA 215245 of
USD 11.043 million) before the Londen Court of International arbitration ("LCIA™). The arbilration is still at an early
stage. After Eni filed its request for arbitration {"RFA"} on July 23, 2021, the PLL filed its response i¢ the RFA on
October 01, 2021. On November 19, 2021, the LCIA cenfirmed the appointment of the arbitral tribunal. Procedural
order is yel to be issued by the arbitral tribunal after which exchange of correspondence between the arbitral tribunal
and the parties will take place. PLL is also pursuing 1he matter of ‘Port Charges’ with its liquified natural gas suppliers of
both term and spot cargoes who have not paid as per demand notices issued.
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2023 2022
Note e Rupees {'000}--------eem-
Impairment
Impairment on property, plant and equipment 6.6 104,076 459 808
Impairment on development and production assets 1¢ 308,352 772,213
412,428 1,232,021

During the current year, the Helding Company carried out impairmeni testing of its joint operations assels, as required
under |AS 36 - ‘Impairment of Assets' to assess whether there is any provision reguired on these assets. Based on the
assessmeni, management has rnade a provision of impairment on property plant and equipment, development and
production assets as specified in above note.

The Holding Company considers the relationship between international oil prices, production profiles, petroleum
reserves and carrying value of its joint operalion investments, amangst ather factors, when reviewing for indicators of
impairment. As at June 30, 2023, the estimales of future production profiles of preducing { discovered fields within the
joint operations have revised based on latesi technical information, indicating a potential impairment,

For the purpase of carrying out impairment testing, each joint operation has been considered a separale cash
generating unit and the recoverable value of the each joint cperation investment has been separately determined and
compared with the respective carrying value of the assets of that joint operaticn.

The recoverable amount of the joint operation investment |s basad on 'value-in-use' computalions. In assessing ihe
value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discouni rate that is
based on the existing policy rate pravailing within the country. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
is 15.18% (2022: 11.88%) per annum. As a result, impairment loss of 412 million is recognized which has been
respectively allocated to the property plant and equipment (PPE) and development and production (D&P} assets of the
CGU as disclosed in hete 38.2

2023 2022

Note —  -—cemeeeeeed Rupees {'000)=s——mvereem
FINANCE INCOME / (COSTS)
Finance Income
Finance income from financial assets
Return an bank deposits 4,290,533 1,575,015
Return on term deposit receipts 3,972,649 3,421,349
Interast on long term receivable from GoP 5,548,325 -

13,811,507 5,008,364

Finance income from non financlal assets
Gain an long term liability due to change in estimate 271 519,532 646,289
Finance Income 14,331,03% 5,652,653
Finance Cost
Inlerast expense on lease liability {7,337,880) {5,683,227)
Unwinding of discount on pravision for decommigsioning
cost 29.1 {923,436) (394,365)
Unwinding of discount cn long term liability 271 {137,133) (9.829)
Interest on long term loan (5,548,325) =
Interest on delayed payment {47,510} {179,757)
Bank charges {13,705} {21,173)
Finance cost (14,007,989} (6,288.361)
Mel finance cost 323,050 {635.708)

N
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EXPLORATION AND PROSPECTING EXPENDITURE

Cost of dry and abandoned wells
Prospecting expendilure

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and henefits
TAPI-project expenditure

Iran Pakistan gas pipeline project
Pak Stream Gas Pipeline {FSGP) project expenditure
Travelling and conveyance
Repairs and mainienance

Reni

Communications

Utiitias

Training and seminars

Printing and stationary
Advertisernent

Entertainment

Legal and professional charges
Audilors’ remuneration

Fes and subscription

Software maintenance fee
Insurance

Business development

Corporate social responsibility
Internship program of Ministry of Energy
Arbitration cost

Amortisation of intangible assets
Cepreciation

Securily services

Others

Note

41.1

41.5

6.4

2023 2022
----------- Rupees ('000)- armasnsa

7,160 358,809
440,743 297,326
447,903 685,935
1,642,585 1,042,560
372 13,893

2127 -
1,728 80,315
7,014 18,424
20,811 27724
49,709 36,484
1,650 1,580
24,910 28,880
29,725 6,750
3,382 7.032
14,454 7,771
4,749 3,055
73,599 124,880
18,052 20,069
8,244 3,688
47,135 43,600
19,591 19,980
272,475 8D 865

74,250 -
- 2,368
278,655 44 845
7,324 18,786
37,982 37,398
14,058 5,878
8,905 8,882
2,698,365 1,694,708

It includes Rs. 205.32 million (2022: Rs.172.59 million) in respect of post eamployment bensfits.

AITYL
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41.2 The apgregate amounts charged in these consclidated financial statements for the remuneration of the chief
executive officer and executives of the Group are as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Exscutives
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupees {'000)
Managerial remuneration 60,704 42,633 248,174 650,403
Bonus - Note 41.2.1 23,903 - 196,128 -
Fast employment benefits 13,550 14,505 265,748 172,802
Reimbursable expenses 220 207 2,320 1,392
Additional charge allowance - . -
98,377 57,345 1,412,431 824,698

Mumber of persons 1 1 107 88

41,21 Bonus includes accruals of expected bonus payment for financial years ended June 22 and June 23.

413 Key managemant parsonnel

Key management persconnel comprises chief executive, chief financial officer, company secratary, executive
directors and general managers of the Group.

2023 2022
--------------- Rupees {'000)--—--mmmumeen
Managerial remuneration 186,024 184,482
Bonus - Note 41 2.1 53,258 1,176
Post employment Benefit 41,801 50,496
Reimbursable expenses 220 1,774
281,303 237,628

41.4 Fee paid to non-executive directors for attending the Board of Directors meetings amounted to Rs. 85.7 million
(2022: Rs. 68.1 million).

2023 2022
[ —— Rupees {'000)-rr-rerrenecunen
41.5 Auditors’ remuneration
Holding Company
Statutory audit fee 4,692 3,944
Report on compliance of Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules 2013 138 116
Decommissioning certification 966 812
Cut of pocket expenses 504 342
Tax sarvices 150 1,225
8,450 6,439

Subsidiaries
Statutory audit fee 3,741 2,900
Report on  compliance of Public  Sector
Companies {Corporate Governance) Rules 2013 258 200
{Other Services 996 700
Qut of pocket expenses 205 167
Tax services 6,402 9,663

11,602 13,630

18,052 20,068

42 OTHER EXPENSES

Exchange loss - net 10,550,375 11,373.21%
Exchange loss on translation of lease liability 50,203,614 35,465,026
Windfall levy on oil / candensate 5114 5,881,892 4,995,336

W 66,635,581 51,833,581
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OTHER INCOME
Other incoma from non financial assets

t3ain an dispesal of fixed asset
{Contract renewal fee
Others

TAXATION
Current

Charge for the year
Adjustment on account of group taxation
Charge for pricr year

Deferred

(Credit) f charge far the year

Reconciliation of tax charge for the year:

Accounting profit
Tax rate

Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 50% (2022: 44%)
Tax effect of:

Unwinding of discount on provision of decommissioning cost
Exchange loss f (gain} on provision of decommissioning cost
Change in estimates rafated to provision of decommissicning cost
Depletion allowance

Effect of change in tax rate

Income chargeable to tax at reducad corporate rate

Deferred tax derecognised

Frior years charge

Difference in tax and accounting depreciation

Unrecognised tax benefits

Cthers

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year Rupees
Weighled average ordinary shares Number
Earnings per share - basic Rupees

Thereg is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of tha Group.

SEATG L.

2023 2022
.............. Rupees {("000)ersrr-amra-~rr—-
337,989 2,481
- 31,500
168,052 6
506,041 34,582
41,051,510 29,615,620
{1,741,338) (1.984.719)
39,310,172 27,650,901
{14,829,437) {11,994,763)
24,480,735 15,636,138
35,445,302 36,894,770
50% 44%
17,722,651 16,233,699
451,718 173,521
1,730,598 822,063
268,152 (558.812)
{8,304,590) {7,396,794)
127,772 655,414
9,957,280 2,787,285
496,273 3,741,075
{57,118} -
- (303,787}
2,168,992
{90,893} (517,524}
6,758,084 (597.560)
24,480,735 15636138
10,964,566,955 21,258,632,301
2,164,316,961 2.103,260.097
5.07 10.11
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following detzil shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities. It does not include fair value information as
the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value as the current inancial assets and liabilities ara short term and
some financial assets are also interest bearing. Further, the financial assets due directly / uliimately from GoP carrigs
contractual right and entittemant to receive interest cn late payment and is exempt from ECL accounting / disclosure as
disclosed in note 3.3. The non current financial assets are alsa interest bearing.

Carrying amaunt
2023 2022

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets classified as amortised cost:

Recaivable from GoP 70,447,456 53,966,985
Shart term investment 31,427,558 26,517,895
Loans to staff 98,587 53,675
Trade dabts- net 292,997,128 272175,706
Loan, advances and other receivables exclusiva of
Staff loans and other receivables 1,015,689 203,909
Security deposits 1,031 230
Cash and bank balances 23,581,917 17,604,323
Accrued Interest 296,258 216,721
419,865,621 379,739 524
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilittes classified as amortised cost:
Laan from National Bank of Pakistan {NBP) - securad 70,447,456 83 966,265
Long term liabilities 6,175,325 5,036,503
Trade and other payables 20,766,373 34,807 577
Leasa liability 185,417,918 149,185 473
FPayable to Government 113,598,102 120,565,162
396,705,174 373,271,681

Credlt gquality of financial assets

The credit quality of the Group financial assets have been assessed below by reference to external credit ratings of
counterparties determined by The Fakistan Cradit Rating Agency Limited {PACRA) and JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company
Limited {JOR-VIS). The counterpartias for which external credit ratings were not available have been assessed by reference to
internal ¢redit ratings determined based on their historical infarmation for any defaults in meeting obligations.

Rating 2023 2022
--------------- Rupees {'000)----------m=m-o-
Trade Debits
Counter parties without external credit rating
Due from associated companies 284,147 538 261,220,000

Others 8,849,592 10,955,707
— 292,997,128 272,175,707
Loans, advances, deposits and other receivables
Counterparties without external credit rating 99,832 40,480
Bank Balances
Countarparties with external credit rating Al+ 23,580,053 17,602,333
Short term investments
Counter parties with external credit rating A+ 31,427,558 25,517,885

Accrued Interest receivable
Counter parties with external credit rating A+ 296,255 216,721

SKRF G
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Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government yield curve at
the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assets are fixed rate instruments,
there is no significant difference in market rate and the rate of instrument, fair value significantly approximates to
carrying value,

Detarmination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for beth financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure
purposes based on the following methods.

Non - derivative financial assels

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
the market rate of interest at the repoerting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes,

Non - derivative financial Habkilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the prasent value of future principal and
interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Financial risk factors
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s chjectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further gquantitalive
disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statermnents.

The Board of Directors has overall respensibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group's audit and risk management committee oversees haw management moniters compliance with the Group's
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Group. The audit and risk management committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the audit and risk management committee.

AT 4.
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46.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts, short tern investments and its
balances at banks.

Trade debts

Trade debts are essentially due from oil refining companies, gas distribution companies and power generation
companies and the Group does not expect these companies to fail to meet their obligations. Majority of sales to the
Group's customers are made on the basis of agreements approved by the GoP.

Sale of crude cil and gas is at prices specified in reievant agreements and/ or as notified by the Government authorities
based on agreements with customers or relevant applicable petroleum policy or Petroleum Cancession Agreements.
Prices of liquefied petroleum gas are determined by the Group subject to maximum price notified by Qil and Gas
Regulatory Authority (OGRA).

As putlined in note 3.3. the Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade debts and lease receivables that are due directly / ultimately frem the Government of
Pakistan (GoP) till June 30, 2023.

Others

The credit risk related to balances with banks, in term deposits and saving accounts, are managed by investing in liquid
secunties and maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A. While bank
balances and investments in term deposits are also subject to the requirements of IFRS 9 the identified impairment
loss was immaterial as the counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings.

The credit risk on advances to suppliers and other receivables is minimal as the Group has long established
relationship with the counterparties, which are mainfy state owned enterprises, and management does not expect non-
perfarmance by these counterparties on their obligatiens ta the Group.

2023 2022
Short Term Long Term Short Term Long Term  Credit rating Agency
MNational Bank of Pakistan A-1+ ALA A=+ ALA PACRA
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AdA, A-1+ Al FACRA
Bank Alfglah Limited A1+ Al+ A-1+ AA+ PACRA
Habhib Bank Limited A1+ ABA A-1+ AAA VIS
MCB Bank A-1+ A, A-1+ AAL, PACRA
Lnited Bank Limited A-1+ AAS, A-1+ AbA VIS
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAL A-1+ AAA VIS
Askari Bank Limited A-1+ Ab+ A-1+ Al+ PACRA
Habib Metropolitan Bank A1+ Al A-1+ Ad+ PACRA
Bank of Punjab A1+ Ab+ A-1+ Ad+ PACRA

ey
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456.2.1 Exposure to ceedit risk

The Group's madimum exposure to credit risk for the cormponents of consolidaled statement of financial position at June 30, 2023 and 2022 is equal lo the camying amounis of financial assets as given

below:
2023 2022
Rupees {'000)——--—----
Receivable from Government of Pakisian {GoP) 70,447 458 53,966,955
Loan to siaff 98,587 53675
Trade debts 292,193,528 272715410
Staff advances and other receivables 1,015,689 213,922
Securily deposits 1,031 330
Short term investmeants 31,427,558 25517 885
Cash and bank balznces 23,581,917 17,604,323
Acerued Interest 296,255 216,721
420,062,321 380,289 241
The Group has maintained saving accounts with different banks having credit rating as mertioned below;
Cradit rating Rating agency
A+ PACRA 17,404,890 14,554 667
A1r JERMS 8,175,164 3,047 666
23,580,054 17 602.333
Credit ratings for short term investments disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
46.2.2 Impairment [esses
The aging of frade debts at the reporting date is as follows:
2023 2022
Gross Dehts Impaired Gross Debts Impaired
Rupees Rupseas
Mol Past Due 26,069 445 - 31,734 926
Past due up to three monihs 113,457,250 - 132 455 385
Past due three to six monlhs 18,203,562 . 11.895 708 -
Past due more than six months 135,363,572 186,700 96.615,393 538,704
293,193,829 156,700 272,715,410 539,704
Party wise aging of trade debls other than related parties al reporting date is as under:
2023
Past Dug
Party name Not past due Up to threa Three to six More than six Impaired balance Total
months months muonths
Attock Refinery Limited 56,736,584 866,113 - 207,682 (77,917} 6,732,482
Mational Refinery Limited 117,774 IT67H {11,359) 163,593 (49,554} 288,133
Pakistars Refinery Limited 538,337 793,180 348,060 {402} - 1,673185
Dthers 197,963 (113,559 1,911 162,178 {95,701} 148,792
6,590,668 1,583,423 3385612 533.061 {196,172} 8,849,592

7L



e

= ==

[

65
2022
Fast Dug
P i I
Elyname e Up 1o three months || Three to six months ||Mare than six months mPatedtalance o3
Attock Refinery Limiled 7.254.200 1,123,208 {245) 210,519 (57 549) 8,530,131
National Refinery Limiled 186.554 975 - 152,709 {152 235) 168,003
Pakistan Refinery Limited 651.076 - {2,637 733 - 649,172
United Energy Pakistan Limited 1,497 913 - - - - 1,447 913
Mhers 97 342 [78.841) 7.613 163,171 (98,701} 90,485
9.687 086 1,045 240 4731 827,132 (308.485) 10,955 704
Party wise aging of frade debts of relaled parties al reporting date is as under:
2023
Past Due
Party name Not past due Up to three Three to six More than six Impaired balance Total
months months months
Sui Morthern Gas Pipelines Limited 8,378,502 100,475,002 4,792,474 41,415,754 - 155,062,672
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 8.536 440 10,203,699 13,087,237 23,214,623 a 125,044,999
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,944,201 1,069 (5, 865) 6,306 {6) 1,945,705
Enar Petroloum Refining Facility 76,165 . {3,384) 3,356 - 76,136
il & Gas Devalopment Company 519,490 1,114,498 - 191,652 {522} 1,625,113
Pakitstan Petroloumn Limited 23,979 75,558 93,548 {1179 - 145,906
19.478.777 111,873,826 17,964,950 134,830,511 {528} 284,147 536
2022
Past Dua
F ired bal Total
iiane LR Up te three manths]| Thres & six months ||More than six months D i)
Sui Northermn Gas Pipelines Limited 13,504,343 122,376,290 3,285,956 31,080,717 - 170,247 306
Sui Southemn Gas Company Limited 5,393,137 B.799 352 8,606,423 63,312,585 - 87,111,497
Pak Arab Refinery Cormpany Limited 1,487 423 201,318 (1,904) 33,111 {1,180 1,728,788
Enar Petroleun Refinlng Facility 119,183 - - {20} - 119,152
Qil & Gas Development Company 496 944 - = 1,663 056 {230,039) 1,529 961
Pakistan Pelrolenm Limlted 35,812 47 184 499 {1,175 - 83316
22,047 840 131,424 144 11.890.974 96 088,261 (231,218} 261,220,000

As explained in note 18.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group believes 1hal no impairment allowance is necessary in respact of trade debts past due from Sui Morthem Gas Pipelings
Limited and Sul Southem Gas Company Limiled. Trade debls are essentially due from il refining companies, natural gas and liquefied petrolaum gas transmission and distribution companies, the
Group s actively pursuing for recovery of debls and the Group does not expect these companles 10 fail fo meet their obligations. Impart of ECL on financisl sssets not coversd under exemption as

explained in note 3.3 has been recorded in note 18.3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Expecled credit loss on loans, advances, deposits and other receivables is calculated uging general approach {as disclosed in note 5.13.1]. As at the reporting date, Group envisages that default risk on
account of laans, advances, deposits and othar receivables is immaierial based on historic Irands adjusted to reflect forward looking infarmation,

Bank balances and investments in term deposits are also subject to the requirements of IFRS § the identified impairment loss was immalerial ag the counterparties have reasonably high credit ralings.

IATRL.
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The movement in 1he allowance for impairment in respecd of trade debls during the year was as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Provision / (reversal) during the year
Balance at end of the year

Liguidity risk

2023 apzz2
Rupwas
535 704 -
{343,004) 535,704
196,700 530 704

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able 1o meet its financis| obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and markelable securities fo
close out market positions due to dynamic nalure of the busingss. The Group's approach to managing liquidity i5 o ensure. as far as pessible. that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet ils
liabillties when due, under both normal and stressed conditionss, without incurdng unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. Since the Group has sufficient asssts against ils

liabilities, and being fully owned by Governmenl of Pakistan {GoP) it does nol have any significant liquidity risk,

The maturity profile of the Group’s finangial assets and liabilities based on Jung 30, 2023, is summarized below:

2023

Effective yield /

Markup ! Interast

Non markoup /

Total

Interest Rate bearing [ntarast baaring
% Rupees ['000)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturity up ta one year
Long term loan - - 25,904 23,904
Trade debts - et - - 292997128 292,997,128
Receivable frorm Govemment of Pakislan (GaP) KIBOR+0.2 5,548,328 - 5,548,325
Loan, advances and other receivables - - 1,097,851 1,057,851
Deposits - - 1,031 1,03
Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP) KIBOR + (.50 5,648,325 - 5,548,325
Short-term investmenis 11.82 - 14.15 3,427 553 - 31,427,558
Bank balances 2.75-13.0 23,581,917 - 23,581,817
66,106,125 294,121,914 360,223,039
Maturity after one year:
Long term loan - - 72,683 72,683
Receivable from Government of Pakisian (GoF} KIBOR+0.2 54,899,13f - 64,899,111
64,889,131 72,683 64,971,814
131,005,256 234,194 5387 425153 853
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to one year
Trade and giher payables - - 20,766,373 24,766,373
Loan from Maticnal Bank of Pakistan (MNBP) - securad KIBOR+D.2 5.548,325 - 5,548,325
Current portion of long term liabilities - - 1,667,523 1,667,623
Lease liabllity 4.20 16,252,001 - 1£,252,001
Sharl term borrowing KIBOR + 0.50 5,548,325 - 5,348,325
Payable to Govarnment - - 113,698,102 113,688,102
27,348,651 136,331,998 163,680 645
Maturity after ane year:
Long term liabilites - - 4,507,802 4,507,802
Loan from National Bank of Pakislan (NBF) - secured KIRBOR+D.2 64,89%,131 - 64,899,111
Lease fability 4.20 169,165,917 - 165,185,917
% 234,065,048 4,507,802 238,572,850
. 261,413 700 140,839,800 402,253,499
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Effective yiald / Markup ! Interest Mon markug /
HiH Interest Rate bearing Interest bearing Total
% e -—Rupees {000} —-—-w-rmeeee- -
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Waturity up to one year
Long term loan - - 33,307 33,307
Trade debls - net - - 272,175,706 272,175,706
Receivable from Govemnment of Pakistan (GoP) KIBOR+0.5 61,966,964 93 - 83,966,965
Loan, advances and glher recelvables - = 20,174 320,174
Deposits 330 330
Short-term investments 11.82 - 14,15 2% 517,695 - 25,517,895
Bank balances 275-13.0 17,604,323 - 17,604 323
107,089,183 272 528,517 379,618,700
Maturity after cne year: -
Long lerm loan - - 20,388 20,368
: 20,368 20,368
107.089 183 372545 885 379.639,068
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to one year
Trade and other payables - 34 507 577 34,507 577
Current portton of long term liabilities - - 1,588 557 1,580.557
Lease labillty 4.20 11.528 681 - 11,528,681
Short term borrowing KIBOR+(.5 63,966,985 63,966,965
Pzayable to Government - 120,565,163 120,565,163
75,405,645 156 672,297 232 167,943
Maturity after one year:
Long term liablitles - - 3,435,946 3436046
Lease liahility 4.20 137,666,792 - 137 666 792
137,666,792 3,436 948 141,103,728
. 213162438 160,109,243 373.271 681
2023 2022
OFF BALAMCE SHEET ITEMS e Rupees ["000}——oe .
Capital expenditure commitments 3,224,784 3,636,642

0274
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valus of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because af changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise three type of risks; interest rate risk, forgign exchange risk and other price risk.
Finanzial instruments affected by market risk include trade debts, balances held in banks in saving and term depasits, iong
term liability in respect of carmried interest and payable to joint operation partners.

Interest rate risk

interest / mark-up rate risk managament is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will Aluctuate due to changes in
interest rate. The Group does not have interest bearing financial lakbility; therefore, it does net have any interast rate/mark-up
risk in respect of financial liabilties. The Group has invested in fixed interest bearing securities in the farm of short term
deposit receipts as mentioned in note 23.1. Further the Group has bank balances in deposit accounts that camy variable
interest ratas, as mentionad in note 24,1,

Foreign currancy riak

Currency risgk is tha risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that
exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Pakistani rupee (Rs.) is the functional currency of the Group and as a result currency exposure arise from transactions and
balances in currencies other than Pakistani rupee. The Group's potential Gurrency exposure comprise;

- Transactional exposure in respect of non funclianal currency monetary items,
- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues.

The potential currency exposures are discussed below,
Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary ltems

Monetary iterns, including financial assets and ligbilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Group are periodically restated to Pakistani rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the consclidated
statement of profit or loss. The fereign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk management
strategy.

Transactional exposure fn respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Certain operating and capital expenditure is incurred by the Group in currencies other than the functional currency. Certain
sales revenue is earned in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group, These currency risks are managed as
a part of overall risk managemant strategy. The Group dees not enter irto forward exchange contracts.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to the risk in changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the trade debts, fong term liahility
in respect of carried interest and payable to joint operation operators. At the date of consclidated statermert of financial
pesition, the net foreign currency exposure aggregates (o USD 26.97 million (2022 USD 104.40 million}.

2023 2022
e LT o 1] 1) S—
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Short term exposure
Trade debts 37,1 54,281
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Short term exposure
Due to joint operation gperators {13,637} (17 784)
Long term hability {carried interesh (5,823) {7 826)
Fareign currency payables {28,947} (11§,262)
{48,407} {141.872)
Long term exposure
Long term liability (carried imterest) (15,740} (15,818)
(64,147) {158,688)
Net exposure to forsign currency risk (26,976) (104,357)
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The fellowing significant exchange rates applied during the year;

Average rate Reporting date rate
2023 2022 2023 2022
{Pak Rupees)
248.04 177.45 286.33 204.38

Foreign currency sensitivity

A 10% strengthening of the functional currency against USD at June 30, 2023 wauld have increased consolidated profit and
loss by Rs. 772 million (2022 Rs. 2,134 milion). A 10% weakening of the functional surrency against USD at June 30, 2023
walld have had the equal but oppasita effect of these amounts. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2022,

Capital management

The Group's abjective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to remain as a going concem and continue
to provide return for Government of Pakistan (GoP). The Group is solely financed by the shareholders' equity.

The Group manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to GoP and f or issue new shares.

BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Group is controlted by Government of Pakistan, Tharefors, all entities ownad and controlled by the Government of
Pakistan are related parties of the Group. Other related parties comprise subsidiaries, direclors, major shareholders,
companies with common directorship, key management persannel and gratuity fund. The Group in normal course of business
pays for eleclricity, gas, airfare, rent and telephone to entities controlled by Govemment of Pakistan which are not material,
hence not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. Significant transactions of the Group with related parties and
balances cutstanding at the year end are as follows:

2023 2022

e e Rupees {'000)—-------—------
Paklistan International Oil Limited {PIOL)- Associated Company - 25% share
holding of the company and common directarahip
Cost of investment 6,431,700 4,205,500
Share of 10ss in assaciate (297,110) {2,513,552)
Pakistan Minerals {Private} Limited (PMPL)- Associated Company - 33.3% share
holding of the company and commaon direstorship
Cost of investmeant 36,569,203 -
Share of less in associate {386,040) -
Major shareholders
Government of Pakistan {(100% share holding)
Dividend paid 5,000,000 5,000,000
Receivable from SoP 70,447,456 £3,966,865
Deposit against Reko Diq project - 34,301,231
Payable o GoP under ITFC arrangementis 113,688,102 120,585,163
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Related parties by virtue of GoP holdings and { or common directorship
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited

Sale of crude oil - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited

Sale of natural gas - net
Sale of RLNG - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Bui Southern Gas Company Limited

Sale of natural gas - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Enar Petroleum Refining Facility

Sale of crude oil - nat
Trade dabts as at June 30

Qil and Gas Development Company Limited

Receivable as at June 30

Payable as al June 30

Expenditure charged by joint opearation partner

Cash calls paid against joint operation pariner expenses

Pakistan Petroleum Limitecd

Receivable as at June 30

Payable as at June 30

Expenditure charged by joint operation partner

Cash calis paid against joint oparation partner expenses

National Bank of Pakistan

Balance of bank accounts
Interest eamed during the year
Long term laan

Short term borrowing

Other related parties

Contribution to gratuity fund (refer note 32.2}
Remuneration o key management persgnnel {refer note 41.3)

NUMBER OF EMLPOYEES

Mumber of employess as at year end
Average number of employees employed during the year

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

2023 2022
--------------- Rupees {'000H-------—--m----
9,980,008 8,519,235
1,945,705 1,728,768
17,161,874 12,018,367
111,608,083 398 579,164
155,062,672 170,247 3086
40,665,685 30,288 718
125,041,999 87,111,483
667,609 404,008
76,136 114,152
1,825,118 1,829,961
2,041,207 1,938,970
5,091,838 4,702,205
5,218,579 3,973,822
195,905 83,218
702,955 620,551
1,565,925 1,761,888
1,562,877 1,793,832
925,777 2,253,351
285,432 250,561
70,447,458 =
- 63,966,965
86,328 44,277
281,303 237928
2023 2022
181 138
145 135

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provision of section 218 of the Companies Act,

2017 and rules fermulated for this purpose.
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GENERAL
Capacity and production

Government Holdings {Private) Limited (The Holding Company}
Production for the year

Product Unit 2023 2022

(Gas MMSCF 71,458 80,005
Oil Barrels 2,821,611 2,862,337
LPG Metric ton 73,494 75,087

Cue to the nature of operations of the Group, installed capacity of above products is not relevant.

Pakistan LNG Limited (The Subsidiary Company)

Regasified liquified natural gas 2023 2022

in MMSCFD
Capacity 600 600
Production 266 414

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of petter presentation in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the

Group in its meeting held on 1.8 =4 ~R©33 The directors have the power to amend and reissue these
consolidated financial statements.

INNTEL.

Chief Executive Officer Director






